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PART I

ltem 1. Business

OVERVIEW

Who We Are

IAC is a leading media and Internet company. Then@any is organized into four segments: The Matabu@ywhich consists of dating,
education and fitness businesses with brands subtatch, OkCupid, Tinder, The Princeton Review BradlyBurn; Search & Applications, whi
includes brands such as About.com, Ask.com, Diatiprcom and Investopedia; Media, which includesrasses such as Vimeo, Electus, The
Daily Beast and CollegeHumor; and eCommerce, wimcludes HomeAdvisor and ShoeBuy. IAC’s brands pirodiucts are among the most
recognized in the world, reaching users in over @dntries.

For information regarding the results of operatiohfAC’s segments, as well as their respectiverdontions to IAC’s consolidated results
of operations, see “ltem 7-Management's DiscusaimhAnalysis of Financial Condition and Result©gpkrations” and “ltem 8-Consolidated
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”

All references to “IAC,” the “Company,” “we,” “ourbr “us” in this report are to IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Our History

IAC, initially a hybrid media/electronic retailingpmpany, was incorporated in 1986 in Delaware utlftename Silver King Broadcasting
Company, Inc. After several name changes (firét$\, Inc., then to USA Networks, Inc., USA Interaetand InterActiveCorp, and finally to
IAC/InterActiveCorp) and the completion of a numbésignificant corporate transactions over thergethe Company transformed itself into a
leading media and Internet company.

From 1997 through 2002, the Company acquired aalling interest in Ticketmaster Group (and the a@mng interest in 1998), Hotel
Reservations Network (later renamed Hotels.com)Eaqukdia, as well as acquired Match.com and otinatler e-commerce companies. In 2002,
the Company contributed its entertainment asseéviendi Universal Entertainment LLLP, a joint vang, and sold its interests in that venture to
NBC Universal in 2005

In 2003, the Company continued to grow its portfaf e-commerce companies by acquiring all of theras of Expedia.com, Hotels.com
and Ticketmaster that it did not previously owrgdther with a number of other e-commerce compdiriekiding LendingTree and Hotwire).

In 2005, IAC acquired Ask Jeeves, Inc. (now knownAC Search & Media, Inc.) and completed the sajiam of its travel and
travel-related businesses and investments into an indepepdblic company called Expedia, Inc. In 2008C I#eparated into five publicly trad
companies: IAC, HSN, Inc., Interval Leisure Grolng,., Ticketmaster and Tree.com, Inc.

In 2009, we sold the European operations of Match.to Meetic S.A. (now known as Meetic S.A.S. (“MeB), a leading European online
dating company based in France, in exchange f@2aidterest in Meetic and a €5 million note. In @0%e exchanged the stock of a wholly-
owned subsidiary that held our Evite, Gifts.com &@ Advertising Solutions businesses and approséiye$218 million in cash for substantia
all of Liberty Media Corporation’s equity stakel#C.

In 2011, we increased our ownership stake in Meet&1%. In 2012, we acquired The About Group, Whgdmarily consists of About.cor
a comprehensive online content and reference Yibrar

In 2014, we acquired the remaining publicly tradbdres of Meetic, ValueClick’s “Owned and Operatedbsite businesses, including
Investopedia and PriceRunner, as well as The Randeeview, a leading test preparation and colbtyaission services company.

EQUITY OWNERSHIP AND VOTE

IAC has outstanding shares of common stock, withvaite per share, and Class B common stock, withdées per share and which are
convertible into common stock on a share for shasgs. As of January 30, 2015, Barry Diller, IACbkairman and Senior Executive, owned
5,789,499 shares of Class B common stock (theéb8hares”) representing 100% of IAC’s outstanditegss B common stock and
approximately 42.5% of the outstanding total votoogver of IAC.

Pursuant to an agreement between Mr. Diller and, i@eCtain transfer restrictions apply to 1.5 milliof the Diller Shares, including a
requirement that, until December 1, 2015 and eximegtansfers to certain permitted transferees,Diller Shares must first be converted into
common stock in order to be transferred. In addjtpursuant to an amended and restated governgreengent between IAC and Mr. Diller, for
so long as Mr. Diller serves as IAC’s Chairman &edhior Executive,
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he generally has the right to consent to limitedtens in the event that IAC’s ratio of total debtEBITDA (as defined in the governance
agreement) equals or exceeds four to one overtoons twelve-month period.

As a result of Mr. Diller’'s ownership interest, @ power and the contractual rights described ebbir. Diller is currently in a position to
influence, subject to our organizational documamis Delaware law, the composition of IAC’s Boardafectors and the outcome of corporate
actions requiring shareholder approval, such agensr business combinations and dispositions etsssmong other corporate transactions.
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DESCRIPTION OF IAC BUSINESSES

Search & Applications
Overview
Our Search & Applications segment consists of:

e Websites, including Ask.com, About.com, CityGHizictionary.com, Investopedia, PriceRunner and.fskthrough which we provide
search services, content and other services; and

» Applications, including our direct-to-consumehloadable applications operations (“B2C”), ourtparship operations (“B2B"),
SlimWare and Apalon.

Our Websites and Applications businesses providecheservices and content to our users. Searcltsegenerally involve the generation
and display of a set of hyperlinks to websites degnelevant to search queries entered by useasldition to these algorithmic search results,
paid listings are also generally displayed in reseao search queries. Paid listings are advertisesisplayed on search results pages that
generally contain a link to an advertiser's webdfaid listings are generally displayed based gmvkeds selected by the advertiser. The paid
listings we display are supplied to us by Google (iGoogle”) pursuant to a services agreement Bitlogle that expires on March 31, 2016.

Websites

Our Websites business primarily consists of thio¥dhg destination websites: Ask.com, which progdgneral search services, as well as
guestion and answer services that provide direswars to natural-language questions; About.comchvprovides detailed information and
content written by independent, freelance subjeatten experts across hundreds of vertical categjdbietionary.com, which primarily provides
online and mobile dictionary and reference seryibesestopedia, a resource for investment and patdmance education and information;
PriceRunner, a shopping comparison website; andrisla question and answer social network.

Our Websites business also includes CityGrid, areididing network that integrates local content addertising for distribution to both
affiliated and third party publishers across web ambile platforms.

Applications

Our Applications business consists of our B2C a@B Bperations, as well as SlimWare, a providerashmunity-powered software and
services that clean, repair, update and optimizeopal computers, and Apalon, a developer of alargl growing suite of mobile applications
worldwide.

Our B2C operations develop, market and distributargety of downloadable applications that offeenssthe ability to access search serv
as well as engage in a number of other activitidme, such as play games, send e-cards, decomatgl€ and web pages and explore select
vertical categories. The majority of our B2C apgiions are toolbars, which consist of a browserckelaox and related technology (which
together enable users to run search queries ardxosie access search services directly from thelr Browsers). Many of our toolbars are
coupled with other applications that we have dgwetbthat enable users to personalize their ontitieittes and otherwise make these activities
more expressive and fun. These applications inclMyg&unCards, through which users can send onlieetigng cards; Popular Screensavers,
through which users can personalize their deskigtbsphotos, images and animations; and RetrogameGaming Wonderland, through which
users can access classic arcade, sports and antiasther casual games directly from their web kera; Other B2C applications target users
a special or passionate interest in select vertt@gories (such as television programming, spsitspping and gossip, among others) or provide
users with particular reference information or asa® specific utilities (such as maps, weathexdasts or file conversion technology). We
distribute our B2C applications directly to consusteee of charge.

Our B2B operations work closely with partners ia goftware, media and other industries to desigindawelop customized browsérased
search applications to be bundled and distributitll these partners’ products and services.

We also market and distribute a number of mobif@ieations through which we provide search and osleevices, including: the Ask.com
iOS and Android applications, which provide gensedrch and naturdhnguage question and answer services, and thoiacy.com iOS and
Android applications, which provide dictionary amderence services.

Revenue
The Search & Applications segment’s revenue canpishcipally of advertising revenue, which is gexted primarily through the display of

paid listings in response to search queries, asasdtom display advertisements appearing on @ssites and, to a lesser extent, the syndication
of search results generated by Ask-branded deistins¢arch websites. The
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substantial majority of the paid listings we digptae supplied to us by Google pursuant to ourisesvagreement with Google.

Pursuant to this agreement, we transmit searcheguer Google, which in turn transmits a set ofvaht and responsive paid listings back to
us for display in search results. This ad-servirgg@ss occurs independently of, but concurrenttia,wihe generation of algorithmic search results
for the same search queries. Google paid listingsliaplayed separately from algorithmic searchltesnd are identified as sponsored listings on
search results pages. Paid listings are pricedmita per click basis and when a user submitsaechejuery through our Search & Applications
properties or services and then clicks on a Gopagie listing displayed in response to the quenyo@e® bills the advertiser that purchased the paid
listing directly and shares a portion of the fearged to the advertiser with us. We recognize |isticig revenue from Google when it delivers the
user's click. In cases where the user’s click isegated due to the efforts of a third party distrils, we recognize the amount due from Google as
revenue and record a revenue share or other payhkgdtion to the third party distributor as tiefacquisition costs. To a lesser extent, we also
syndicate Google paid listings to third party wésiwith whom we enter into syndication agreemesge. “Item 1A-Risk Factors-We depend
upon arrangements with Google and any adverse ehiarthis relationship could adversely affect ousibess, financial condition and results of
operations.”

Competition

We compete with a wide variety of parties in corimecwith our efforts to:

e attract and retain users to our various Search flidations properties and services gener

» develop, market and distribute our Applicatic

e attract third parties to distribute our Applicatioand related technology; ¢

e attract advertiser

In the case of our search services generally, @opetitors include Google, Yahoo!, Bing and othestthation search websites and
searchcentric portals (some of which provide a broad eaofjcontent and services and/or link to variousktigp applications), third party toolb
convenience search and applications providersy staach technology and convenience service pros/i@ecluding Internet access providers,
social media platforms, online advertising netwotkaditional media companies and companies ttatige online content). When we market our
content and other services, our competitors inctlegination websites that primarily acquire taffirough paid and algorithmic search results.

Moreover, some of our current and potential conipesinave longer operating histories, greater brandgnition, larger customer bases
and/or significantly greater financial, technicatlanarketing resources than we do. As a resuly, tthee the ability to devote comparatively
greater resources to the development and promotfitireir products and services, which could resugfreater market acceptance of their proc
and services relative to those offered by us.

In the case of our Websites business, we belieateotlr ability to compete successfully will depgmoarily upon:

» the relevance and authority of our search resattsyers and other conte

» the quality of the content and features on ourotariwebsites, and the attractiveness of the serpicided by these websites gener:
relative to those of our competitors;

e our continued ability to differentiate Ask.conorn its competitors through question and answetices that provide accurate,
authoritative and direct answers to natdl@hguage questions (in the form of algorithmic sbaesults and/or responses from other
Ask.com users, as well as indexed question andersairings from various websites and online ses)icwhich depends primarily
upon our ability to deliver authoritative and trustthy content to users, as well as our abilitattvact advertisers to this initiative; and

» our ability to successfully market our products aedvices effectivel

In the case of our Applications business, we beliat our ability to compete successfully will deg primarily upon our continued ability
to:

« create toolbars and other applications thatrr@sowith consumers (which requires that we coettaubundle attractive features, content
and services, some of which may be owned by thartigs, with quality search services);

* maintain industryfeading monetization solutions for our Applicatig

» differentiate our toolbars and other applicagifrom those of our competitors (primarily throygividing customized toolbars and
access to multiple search and other services througtoolbars);



* secure costffective distribution arrangements with third pest an

« market and distribute our toolbars and othetiegfions directly to consumers in a caftective manne
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The Match Group
Overview

The Match Group segment consists of our North Acaediating businesses (which include Match, ChemiBeople Media, OkCupid,
Tinder and other dating businesses operating witteérlnited States and Canada), our Internaticatéigl businesses (which include Meetic,
Tinder and all other dating businesses operatingjariof the United States and Canada) and oudating businesses, The Princeton Review,
Tutor.com and DailyBurn.

Through the brands and businesses within our datiisqesses, we are a leading provider of subsamiased and ad-supported online
personals services in North America, Europe, LAtimerica, Australia and Asia. We provide these smwithrough websites and applications that
we own and operate.

As December 31, 2014, we collectively provided malpersonals services to approximately 3.5 mikiobscribers. In addition, we own a
20% interest in Zhenai, Inc., a leading provideowline dating and matchmaking services in China.

Through the brands and businesses within our ntingdausinesses, we provide a variety of educatiseices, including in-person and
online test preparation and tutoring (The Princd&Reriew and Tutor.com), as well as streaming fereesd workout videos across a variety of
platforms (DailyBurn).

Dating

Services. We provide online personals services through vartmanded websites that we own and operate, alhiwh provide single adults
with a private and convenient environment for nregtither single adults. These websites providenergersonals services to registered members
(those who establish a username and passworduasdribers (those who establish a username andipatsand pay a subscription fee).

Within our portfolio of websites, we have both stiifgion-based and ad-supported offerings. Our subscriptiased websites offer
registered members the ability to post a profilé ase any related searching and matching toolsofrebarge, while subscribers have access to
enhanced tools and a broader feature set, inclutiegbility to initiate, review and respond to ecoumications with or from other users. Our
subscription programs consist of programs withngls-month term, with discounts for programs with vagdonger terms. Our adupported
websites generally provide online personals sesvigéh basic functionality without the commitmerittomonthly subscription, in some cases
making a variety of premium or add-on featureslatée for a fee. We also offer access to our sesviga various mobile devices through our
Match, OkCupid, Tinder and other branded mobildiaations. We also provide live, local events far &atch members in certain markets in
North America and Europ

Marketing. We market our online personals services througide wariety of offline and online marketing actieg. Our offline marketing
activities generally consist of traditional marketiand business development activities, includahgvision, radio and print advertising and related
public relations efforts, as well as events. Oumenmarketing activities generally consist of thechase of banner and other display advertising,
search engine marketing and e-mail campaigns.

Revenue. Dating revenue is derived primarily from subscoptifees for our subscriptiebased online personals and related services.
Revenue is also derived from online advertising iedourchase of add-on or premium features.

Competition. The personals business is very competitive andyhfglgmented and barriers to entry are minimal. 8gmpete primarily with
online and offline broatbased personals, dating and matchmaking servioéis faid and free), social media platforms andiappons, the
personals sections of newspapers and magazines,aathventional media companies that provide patsaervices and traditional venues where
singles meet (both online and offline).

We believe that our ability to compete successfullthe case of our dating businesses will depeimdapily upon the following factors:

» the size and diversity of our registered membersatgcriber bases relative to those of our congrs

« the functionality of our websites and mobile ligdions and the attractiveness of their featares our services and offerings generally
to consumers relative to those of our competitors;

* how quickly we can enhance our existing technolagg services and/or develop new features and esrinaesponse 1
¢ new, emerging and rapidly changing technolo

¢ the introduction of product and service offeringsolir competitor:



» evolving industry standards; ¢
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e changes in consumer requirements and trends isingée community relative to our competitc

. our ability to engage in cost-effective marketeftprts; and

. the recognition and strength of our various bsaredative to those of our competitors.
Non-Dating

Services. The Princeton Review is a leading provider of g@lend graduate school admissions test prepasatidicollege readiness servi
to individuals, schools and school districts. Thglorutor.com, we provide a wide variety of live geon-one, on-demand tutoring in over forty
different subjects through our online interactil@ssroom to libraries, colleges and universities,Wnited States military, businesses and
individuals. DailyBurn is a health and fitness prdy that provides streaming fitness and workodews across a variety of platforms, including
iOS, Android, Xbox and other Internet-enabled tediew platforms.

Marketing. We market our test preparation and tutoring sesvy@marily through search engine marketing, direatketing campaigns and
public relations efforts, as well as through atmzk at industry conferences and our sales foreem#@rket our streaming fithess and workout
videos primarily through television advertisingvadising on ad-supported video-on-demand senacelscontent platforms and search engine
marketing.

Revenue. The Princeton Review and Tutor.com’s revenue ctspismarily of fees received for in-person andmaltest preparation classes,
access to online test preparation materials aridichahl tutoring services. DailyBurn’s revenue cisitss primarily of subscription fees.

Competition. The markets for test preparation, college readisessces and tutoring services are highly comipetind barriers to entry are
minimal. We compete primarily with regional andioatl test preparation companies, as well as opliogiders of test preparation and college
readiness services with limited overhead costsréeth a national audience, and individual tutors.

We believe that our ability to compete successfullthe case of The Princeton Review and Tutor.edirdepend primarily upon the
following factors:

» the recognition and strength of The Princetoni®e brand relative to those of its competitors and ability to build and maintain
awareness of (and loyalty to) the Tutor.com brand;

* our ability to engage in cosffective marketing effort
» the quality of our offerings generally to consummigtive to those of our competitors;
» the quality, diversity and stability of our insttacs and tutors and the quality of the servicewipem by these profession:

The fitness and workout market is highly competitand barriers to entry, particularly in the casentine platforms, are minimal. We
compete primarily with other streaming fitness amitkout platforms and, to a lesser extent, fitreess$ workout DVDs.

Media
Overview
Our Media segment consists primarily of Vimeo, Hisand The Daily Beast.

Vimeo operates a global video sharing platformcfeators and their audiences. Vimeo offers videators simple, professional-grade tools
to share, distribute and monetize content onlind,@ovides viewers with a clutter-free environmienivatch content across a variety of Internet-
enabled devices. As of December 31, 2014, Vimecdpadoximately 35 million registered members arathed a global monthly audience of
more than 160 million.

Electus is an integrated multimedia entertainmerdis that unites producers, creators, advertigedsdistributors to produce video content
for distribution across a variety of platforms retUnited States and various jurisdictions abr&dettus also operates Electus Digital, which
consists of the following websites and propertiésliegeHumor.com, Dorkly.com and WatchLOUD.com; Yabe channels WatchLOUD,
Nuevon and Hungry; and Big Breakfast (a productiompany).

The Daily Beast is a website dedicated to news ngentary, culture and entertainment that curategabtishes existing and original online
content from its own roster of contributors in theited States.
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Vimeo

Services. Through Vimeo, we offer video creators simple, pesional grade tools to share, distribute and nmmebntent online, and
provide viewers with a clutter-free environmentatch content across a variety of Internet-enabiadces, including mobile devices and
connected television platforms. We offer thesedssivices free of charge.

We also offer premium services for a fee through swbscription-based products, which provide suibscs with varying levels of premium
features, including: additional added storage spawerity video conversion, advanced video privaopntrols, extensive video player
customization options, premium support and thetgtd sell videos. As of December 31, 2014, Viniea over 500,000 paid subscribers.

We also provide transactional video-demand services through Vimeo On Demand, whichvalladeo creators to sell videos they crea
viewers. As of December 31, 2014, Vimeo On Demaaduired over 16,000 titles from a variety of geihes can be purchased and viewed by
consumers on vimeo.com or on third party websit#is an embedded Vimeo On Demand player. Titlesaaqgired from video creators by way
of direct uploads to vimeo.com and through negetiatgreements with content owners, producers atidbditors.

We also sell custom advertising through our Braneh@ve Fund service, which connects advertisetis wileo creators to produce original,
branded videos, which are then presented as bggonssred content on vimeo.com and/or the advemisésites.

Marketing. We market Vimeo’s services primarily through onlmarketing efforts, including search engine marigte-mail campaigns,
display advertising, affiliate marketing and telwon advertising and, in the case of our subsomptiased offerings only, through upgrade
channels on vimeo.com.

Revenue. Vimeo revenue is derived primarily from subscriptiees and, to a lesser extent, from video andrtigivey sales.

Competition. Vimeo competes with a variety of online video prdwisis, including platforms that provide videos tofumers on an
advertising-supported, subscription or transactiembasis. We believe that Vimeo differentiatsslf from its competitors by offering a
customizable, high definition video player, propaiy uploading and encoding infrastructure anduste-free viewing experience (advertisements
are not placed in videos created by registered reesrdnd subscribers). We believe that our abiitygampete successfully will depend primarily
on:

» the quality of our platform and the viewing expede we provide

e our ability to engage with users on mobile devi

» whether our subscription offerings resonate wittewi creator:

e our ability to attract high-quality content, hdbr free and fedased viewin(

» the accessibility of our videos on search engimessacial media platforr

» the recognition and strength of the Vimeo brandtiet to those of our competitors;

* our ability to drive new subscribers and viewersuo platform through various forms of direct adigéng.

Electus

Services. Through Electus, we provide production and prodseevices for both unscripted and scripted telewisieature film and digital
content, primarily for initial sale and distribution the United States. Our content is distribudadh wide range of platforms, including broadcast
television, premium and basic cable televisionsstption-based and ad-supported video-on-demanvitses and through theatrical releases and
other outlets. We sell and distribute Electus praogning and other content, together with programnaimg) other content developed by third
parties, outside of the United States through Hkebiternational. We also work with various bratastegrate their products into, as well as
sponsor, Electus content through our Content Margeeam.

In addition, we operate Electus Digital, which dstssof the following websites and properties: €EgdHumor.com, Dorkly.com and
WatchLOUD.com; YouTube channels WatchLOUD, Nuevod Blungry; and Big Breakfast (a production compaifiyie various brands and
businesses within Electus Digital specialize iratirgy content for digital, television and featuitenfplatforms across a variety of genres, as w&
provide branded and third party creative producsiervices.

Revenue. Electus revenue is derived primarily from mediadurction.

Marketing. We do not engage in any formal marketing effortthcase of our production and executive prodsegrices, instead relying
on referrals and the quality of our services amjguts. For content distribution, we rely on odesdorce, referrals and the quality of our sersice



and projects, and for international distributiodypttendance at industry trade
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shows. In addition, the platforms to which we liserour content for distribution market our contbnbugh their own independent marketing
efforts. Electus Digital attracts users and audigmamarily through social media, search engineketarg and affiliate agreements.

Competition. We compete with entertainment studios, productmmanies, distribution companies, creative agerariescontent websites.
We believe that our ability to compete successfwilydepend primarily upon the following factors:

« the quality and diversity of our content and tiied parties to whom we license our content, el &s the quality of the services
provided by licensees of our content;

* our continued ability to create new content thabrates with licensees and viewers;

e our ability to sell integration and sponsorship appnities for our conter
eCommerce

Our eCommerce segment consists primarily of Homégwhand ShoeBuy.

HomeAdvisor

Overview. HomeAdvisor is a leading online marketplace forehatg consumers with home services professiondlseitunited States, as
well as in France and the Netherlands under vatioaisds. HomeAdvisor connects consumers, by wayagrietary and patented technologies,
with home services professionals, most of whichpeeescreened and customeated.

As of December 31, 2014, HomeAdvisor’'s network ofite services professionals consisted of more tB2008 professionals in the United
States providing services in more than 500 categ@eanging from simple home repairs to larger hcengodeling projects. HomeAdvisor also
operates mHelpDesk, a provider of cloud based eldice software for small to mid-size businesses.

Matching and Other Consumer Services. When a consumer submits a request through the Hdmgdér marketplace, we generally match
consumer with up to four home services profess@fram our network based on the type of servics#reld and the consumer’s location.
Consumers can then review profiles of home senpecefessionals with whom they have been matchedsalwtt the professional whom they
believe best meets their specific needs. In additig(or in lieu of) submitting a request througlr marketplace, consumers can also search, selec
and contact home service professionals directiyuttin our online directory. In all cases, the corsuisunder no obligation to work with home
service professionals referred by or found throdgmeAdvisor.

In addition to matching services, consumers caaszcour free, online CostGuide, which providesqmtogost information for more than 2
project types on a local basis, as well as an edimary of servicerelated resources, which primarily includes ari@bout home improvement,
repair and maintenance, tools to assist consunmidrghve research, planning and management of pinejects and general advice for working v
home services professionals.

Consumers can also access all HomeAdvisor seraings$ools on iOS and Android devices though the elddvisor mobile application.

Subscription Services for Home Services Professionals. We offer multiple subscription products for homevsees professionals, each for a
flat monthly, quarterly or annual fee. The basiambership package includes membership in our netebhlome services professionals, as well
as a listing in our online directory. Additional mbeership packages include all of the basic memieptkage services, plus matches through
the marketplace and, in the case of one packaggmuvebsite and mobile development and hostingcsss.

Home services professionals who are new to Homesddvwnust generally sign up for one of the subsoripbroducts described above. As
December 31, 2014, approximately 45,000 of the rttrae 85,000 home services professionals withimetwork had purchased a membership
package.

Revenue. HomeAdvisor’s revenue is primarily derived fromdqeaid by home services professionals for consuma¢ches (regardless of
whether the professional ultimately provides thguested service), subscription fees and fees fbsitehosting services. Fees for matches vary
based upon the service requested and where thHeeserprovided.

Marketing. We market our services to consumers primarily thhotelevision marketing, as well as search engiagkeating and through
affiliate agreements with third parties. Pursuarthese agreements, third parties agree to adventid promote our services and those of our |
services professionals on their websites and weeatgrpay them a fixed fee when visitors from thegbsites submit a valid service request
through our website (on a cost-per-acquisitiond)asi click through to our website (on a cost-parkdasis). We also market our services to
consumers through the purchase of paid listingdaed in yellow page directories, portals and egtutal home improvement related sites an
a lesser extent, through radio advertising. We etaolar subscription packages to home services gsimfieals through our sales force, as well as
through search engine marketing, relationships trittie associations and affiliate marketing refegfops.
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Competition. We compete with home services-related lead genaragrvices, as well as Internet search enginesliaactories and with
other forms of local advertising, including raditirect marketing campaigns, yellow pages, newssaged other offline directories. We also
compete with local and national retailers of homeriovement products that offer or promote instilfaservices. We believe that our ability to
compete successfully will depend primarily upon fillowing factors:

» the size, quality (as determined, in part, gnence to our preereening efforts and customer ratings and reviedugrsity and stabilit
of our network of home services professionals &edjuality of the services they provide;

» our continued ability to deliver service reqeeastat convert into revenue for our network of haaerices professionals in a cost-
effective manner;

» whether our subscription products resonate witld @ovide value to) our home services professiq

« the functionality of our websites and mobile liggiions and the attractiveness of their featargs our services generally to consumers
and home services professionals, as well as olityabiintroduce new products and services thabnate with consumers and home
services professionals; and

e our ability to build and maintain awareness of (kalty to) the HomeAdvisor brar
ShoeBuy

ShoeBuy is a leading Internet retailer of footwaad related apparel and accessories. ShoeBuy {gmersses purchases made by
customers through its various websites on to tlevaat vendors for fulfilment and shipping. ShogBurevenue consists of merchandise sales,
reduced by incentive discounts and sales returesmatket ShoeBuy to consumers primarily througihckeangine marketing, affiliate
agreements and comparison shopping engines. ShaBuyetes primarily with other leading internetti@ear and other retailers and traditional
footwear and other retailers with an offline andirmpresence.

Employees

As of December 31, 2014, IAC and its subsidiariepleyed approximately 5,000 full-time employeesClAelieves that it generally has
good employee relationships, including relationshifith employees represented by unions or othefasiorganizations.

Additional Information

Company Website and Public Filings. The Company maintains a website at www.iac.dgeither the information on the Company’s
website, nor the information on the website of BR§ business, is incorporated by reference inte #ninual report, or into any other filings with,
or into any other information furnished or subndtte, the SEC.

The Company makes available, free of charge thrisghebsite, its Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Qerdy Reports on Form 10-Q and
Current Reports on Form 8-K (including related admeants) as soon as reasonably practicable aftghtine been electronically filed with (or
furnished to) the SEC.

Code of Ethics. The Company'’s code of ethics applies to all legyges (including all of IAC’s executive officeradsenior financial
officers (including IAC’s Chief Financial Officema Controller)) and directors and is posted onGbepany's website at
http://ir.iac.com/corporate-governance-documentaibocumentlD=11373. This code of ethics complietWagm 406 of SEC Regulationksanc
the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Any changeke code of ethics that affect the provisionsiegl by Item 406 of Regulationlg-and any
waivers of such provisions of the code of ethigdALC’'s executive officers, senior financial officeor directors, will also be disclosed on IAC’s
website.
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Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information

This annual report on Form 10-K contains “forwdaabking statements” within the meaning of the Prv8ecurities Litigation Reform Act
of 1995. The use of words such as “anticipatesstifieates,” “expects,” “intends,” “plans” and “belies,” among others, generally identify
forward-looking statements. These forwatdoking statements include, among others, statesmetdting to: IAC’s future financial performance,
IAC’s business prospects and strategy, anticipeettls and prospects in the industries in which'sAtlisinesses operate and other similar
matters. These forwartboking statements are based on IAC managemerm&ctations and assumptions about future eventstae date of this
annual report, which are inherently subject to utadeties, risks and changes in circumstancesatteatlifficult to predict.

Actual results could differ materially from thosentained in these forwartboking statements for a variety of reasons, iniclgdamong
others, the risk factors set forth below. Otherngwn or unpredictable factors that could also agklgraffect IAC’s business, financial condition
and results of operations may arise from timerttiln light of these risks and uncertainties,foresard-looking statements discussed in this
annual report may not prove to be accurate. Acogigj you should not place undue reliance on theseard-looking statements, which only
reflect the views of IAC management as of the déthis annual report. IAC does not undertake tdatp these forwardooking statements.

Risk Factors

Mr. Diller owns a significant percentage of the voting power of our stock and will be able to exercise significant influence over the composition
of our Board of Directors, matters subject to stockholder approval and our operations.

As of January 30, 2015, Mr. Diller owned 5,789,48@res of IAC Class B common stock representinddl6DIAC’s outstanding Class B
common stock and approximately 42.5% of the taté$tanding voting power of IAC. As of this date,.Nhiller also owned 930,734 vested
options to purchase IAC common stock and 75,00@sted options to purchase IAC common stock.

In addition, under an amended and restated goveeregreement between IAC and Mr. Diller, for saglas Mr. Diller serves as IAC’s
Chairman and Senior Executive, he generally hasighéto consent to limited matters in the evénattiAC’s ratio of total debt to EBITDA (as
defined in the governance agreement) equals oedsdeur to one over a continuous twelg®nth period. While Mr. Diller may not currently
exercise this right, no assurances can be givenhisaright will not become exercisable in theufigt, and if so, that Mr. Diller will consent to any
of the limited matters at such time, in which cBS€ would not be able to engage in transactionke actions covered by this consent right.

As a result of Mr. Diller's ownership interest, wrag power and the contractual rights described apbir. Diller currently is in a position to
influence, subject to our organizational documamis Delaware law, the composition of IAC’s Boardafectors and the outcome of corporate
actions requiring stockholder approval, such agermst business combinations and dispositions etsssmong other corporate transactions. In
addition, this concentration of voting power codldcourage others from initiating a potential mer¢gkeover or other change of control
transaction that may otherwise be beneficial to,lA@ich could adversely affect the market priceéAE securities.

We depend on our key personnel.

Our future success will depend upon our continu®lityato identify, hire, develop, motivate andaet highly skilled individuals, with the
continued contributions of our senior managemeimgoespecially critical to our success. Competifimnwell-qualified employees across IAC
and its various businesses is intense and ourreadiability to compete effectively depends, irt,pgpon our ability to attract new employees.
While we have established programs to attract mepl@yees and provide incentives to retain exiséingployees, particularly our senior
management, we cannot assure you that we will leetatattract new employees or retain the senaf@air senior management or any other key
employees in the future. Effective succession ptanis also important to our future success. Iffaikto ensure the effective transfer of senior
management knowledge and smooth transitions invglsenior management across our various businesseability to execute short and long
term strategic, financial and operating goals, el & our business, financial condition and resoitoperations generally, could be adversely
affected.

11




Table of Contents

We depend upon arrangements with Google and any adverse change in thisrelationship could adversely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our consolidated reversattributable to a services agreement with Gotvgleexpires on March 31, 2016. Pursi
to this agreement, we display and syndicate psithtjs provided by Google in response to searchiegigenerated by users of our Search &
Applications properties. In exchange for making search traffic available to Google, we receivlars of the revenue generated by the paid
listings supplied to us, as well as certain otlearsh-related services.

The amount of revenue we receive from Google depapdn a number of factors outside of our coningluding the amount Google
charges for advertisements, the efficiency of Gesglystem in attracting advertisers and servingaig listings in response to search queries and
parameters established by Google regarding the euartdl placement of paid listings displayed in oesp to search queries. In addition, Google
makes judgments about the relative attractivertesadyertisers) of clicks on paid listings from reées performed on our Search & Applications
properties and these judgments factor into the atnafurevenue we receive. Google also makes judtgrabout the relative attractiveness (to
users) of paid listings from searches and thesgneaits factor into the amount of advertisementsavepurchase. Changes to Google’s paid
listings network efficiency, its judgment about tieéative attractiveness to advertisers of clickgaid listings from our Search & Applications
properties, its judgment about the relative ativacess to users of paid listings from searcheébeparameters applicable to the display of paid
listings could have an adverse effect on our bgsingnancial condition and results of operatid@sch changes could come about for a number of
reasons, including general market conditions, cditiqe or policy and operating decisions made by@e.

Our services agreement with Google requires thatomeply with certain guidelines promulgated by Gedgr the use of its brands and
services, including the manner in which Googlleaid listings are displayed within search resaltsl that we establish guidelines to govern ag
activities of third parties to whom we syndicatéddéstings, including the manner in which thesetigs drive search traffic to their websites and
display paid listings. Subject to certain limitaitsp Google may unilaterally update its policies gaitlelines without advance notice, which could
in turn require modifications to, or prohibit andfender obsoleteertain of, our products, services and/or busipesastices, which could be cos
to address or otherwise have an adverse effectiobusiness, financial condition and results ofrapens. Noncompliance with Google’s
guidelines by us or the third parties to whom wedsgate paid listings or through which we secusgritiution arrangements for our applications
could, if not cured, result in Google’s suspensibsome or all of its services to our websitesherwebsites of our third party partners, the
imposition of additional restrictions on our akliltb syndicate paid listings or the terminatiortred services agreement by Google.

The termination of the services agreement by Godigéecurtailment of IAC’s rights under the agreet@hether pursuant to the terms
thereof or otherwise) or the failure of Google &rfprm its obligations under the agreement woulelren adverse effect on our business, fina
condition and results of operations. In additiour, imability to obtain a renewal of our agreemeithvGoogle with substantially comparable
economic and other terms upon the expiration ofcomrent agreement could have an adverse effegtiphusiness, financial condition and res
of operations. In addition, Google's ability to iliraur ability to market our products and servitdea®ugh its advertising services, whether due to
policy or competitive reasons or otherwise, cowdtéhan adverse effect on our business, financraition and results of operations. If any of
these events were to occur, we may not be abiadahother suitable alternate paid listings prewigr if an alternate provider were found, the
economic and other terms of the agreement andualitygof paid listings may be inferior relative @ar arrangements with, and the paid listings
supplied by, Google) or otherwise replace theregenues.

General economic events or trends that reduce advertising spending could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

A substantial portion of our consolidated reversiatiributable to online advertising. Accordinghg are particularly sensitive to events and
trends that could result in decreased advertisipgmrditures. Advertising expenditures have histdiydeen cyclical in nature, reflecting overall
economic conditions and budgeting and buying padteas well as levels of consumer confidence asatelionary spending.

Small and local businesses with which we do busiaes particularly sensitive to these events atity, given that they are not as well
situated to weather adverse economic conditiortiseaslarger competitors, which are generally brattgpitalized and have greater access to credit
In the recent past, adverse economic conditione baused, and if such conditions were to recunarfuture they could cause, decreases and/or
delays in advertising expenditures, which wouldumtour revenues and adversely affect our busifiragcial condition and results of
operations.
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Our success depends upon the continued growth and acceptance of online advertising, particularly paid listings, as an effective alternative to
traditional, offline advertising and the continued commercial use of the Internet.

We continue to compete with traditional advertisingdia, including television, radio and print, ohidition to a multitude of websites with
high levels of traffic and online advertising netk& for a share of available advertising expemdgwand expect to face continued competition as
more emerging media and traditional offline medienpanies continue to enter the online advertisiagket. We believe that the continued
growth and acceptance of online advertising gelyanall depend, to a large extent, on its perceieféctiveness and the acceptance of related
advertising models (particularly in the case of eledhat incorporate user targeting and/or utiimebile devices), the continued growth in
commercial use of the Internet (particularly abjo#ite extent to which web browsers, software pogr and/or other applications that limit or
prevent advertising from being displayed becomernonplace and the extent to which the industry e &beffectively manage click fraud. Any
lack of growth in the market for online advertisimpgrticularly for paid listings, or any decreasdtie effectiveness and value of online adverti
(whether due to the passage of laws requiring imahait disclosure, an industry-wide move to selfulagpry principles that require additional
disclosure and/or opt-in policies for advertisihgttincorporate user targeting or other develops)embuld have an adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of openat

We depend, in part, upon arrangements with third partiesto drive traffic to our various websites and distribute our products and services.

We engage in a variety of activities designed t@et traffic to our various websites and convésiters into repeat users and customers.
How successful we are in these efforts dependsarith upon our continued ability to enter into agements with third parties to drive traffic to
our various websites, as well as the continueddhtction of new and enhanced products and serthe¢sesonate with users and customers
generally.

For example, we have entered into (and expectritirage to enter into) agreements to distribute Ge&rApplications search boxes,
toolbars and other applications to users througtl tharties. Most of these agreements are either@xalusive and shofterm in nature or, in the
case of longterm or exclusive agreements, are terminable Ineeparty in certain specified circumstances. lditéah, a few of these agreements
collectively represent a significant percentagéhefrevenue generated by our B2B operations. Ginility to enter into new (or renew existing)
agreements to distribute our search boxes, toodrather applications through third parties foy eeason would result in decreases in website
traffic, queries and advertising revenue, whichlddwave an adverse effect on our business, finbooiaition and results of operations.

In addition, in the case of the businesses withia WMatch Group segment, we have entered into a euoflarrangements with third parties
to drive traffic to our online personals websitearsuant to these arrangements, third parties génpromote our services on their websites or
through e-mail campaigns and we either pay a ffeedvhen visitors to these websites click througlot register with) our online personals
websites or pay a percentage of revenue we refreiresuch visitors who pay us subscription feeseseharrangements are generally not
exclusive, are shorterm in nature and are generally terminable byeeigfarty given notice. If existing arrangementswfitird parties are
terminated (or are not renewed upon their expindtamd we fail to replace this traffic and relatedenues, or if we are unable to enter into new
arrangements with existing and/or new third paitie®sponse to industry trends, our businessnéi@h condition and results of operations could
be adversely affected.

In the case of our HomeAdvisor business, our aitititdrive traffic depends, in part, on the natamel number of home services professic
who are members of our network. While these homécas professionals are required to agree thatuhkoperate in accordance with our terms
and conditions, we do not enter into letgrm agreements with them generally and subscriptiemberships may be canceled at any time. In
addition, a significant number of our home servigasfessionals are sole proprietorships and snuaihesses, which are particularly sensitive to
adverse economic conditions, such as constraigeitlity and decreases in consumer spending. Asudtyeur network of home services
professionals experiences turnover. This turndfeignificant or recurring over a prolonged pericduld result in a decrease in traffic to
HomeAdvisor.com and increased costs, all of whimhid adversely affect our business, financial cbadiand results of operations.
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Even if we succeed in driving traffic to our projes, we may not be able to convert this traffiothrerwise retain users and customers
unless we continue to provide quality products semdices. For example, in the case of About.comrelyeon independent, freelance subject
matter experts to generate quality content forumers. If we fail to recruit and retain such expgenerally and/or the experts ultimately retained
cannot provide us with quality content in a coseetfive manner, the experience of our users woalddversely affected, which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations. In addition, we may not be abladapt quickly and/or in a cost-effective manner
to frequent changes in user and customer prefesemdech can be difficult to predict, or appropeisttime the introduction of enhancements
and/or new products or services to the market.iQalility to provide quality products and servisesuld adversely affect user and customer
experiences, which would result in decreases irsysastomers and revenues and could adverselt affie business, financial condition and
results of operations.

As discussed below, our traffic building and comsi@n initiatives also involve the expenditure ohsimerable sums for marketing, as well as
for the development and introduction of new produseérvices and enhancements, infrastructure dued @lated efforts.

Marketing efforts designed to drive traffic to our various websites may not be successful or cost-effective.

Traffic building and conversion initiatives involeensiderable expenditures for online and offlideeatising and marketing. We have me
and expect to continue to make, significant expeinels for search engine marketing (primarily in fibven of the purchase of keywords, which we
purchase primarily through Google), online dispdalyertising and traditional offline advertisingdonnection with these initiatives, which may
not be successful or cost-effective. In the casmuofsearch engine marketing efforts, our failaresspond successfully to rapid and frequent
changes in the pricing and operating dynamics afcbeengines, as well as changing policies andefjnies applicable to keyword advertising
(which may be unilaterally updated by Google withadvance notice), could adversely affect the pramd of paid listings that appear in respc
to keywords we purchase and the related user exquar; as well as adversely affect the pricing diheradvertising we purchase generally, which
would increase our costs and adversely impactfteetereness of our advertising efforts overalltte case of paid advertising generally, the
policies of sellers and publishers of advertisimgl(iding Google) may limit our ability to purchasertain types of advertising or advertise some
of our products and services, which could affectatility to compete effectively and, in turn, adsely affect our business, financial condition
and results of operations.

One of the most cost-effective efforts we emplogttoact and acquire new (and retain existing)siaad customers is commonly referred to
as search engine optimization, or SEO. SEO invallee®loping websites to rank well within searchieegesults. Search engines frequently
update and change the logic that determines tleiplent and display of search results. The failitcessfully manage SEO efforts across our
businesses, including the timely modification of(5&fforts from time to time in response to perioch@nges in search engine algorithms, search
query trends and related actions by providers afcteservices designed to ensure the display gluendfferings in search results (which actions
by search service providers may result in algoritHiatings being displayed less prominently witsarch engine results), could result in a
substantial decrease in traffic to our various Websas well as increased costs if we were taoepiree traffic with paid traffic, which would
adversely affect our business, financial condiiod results of operations.

In addition, search engines continue to expand tiffgrings into other, non-search related categrnd in certain instances display their
own integrated or related product and service wffsrin a more prominent manner than those of théndies within their search results. Contin
expansion and competition from search engines aeslalt in a substantial decrease in traffic tovarous websites, as well as increased costs if
we were to replace free traffic with paid traffichich would adversely affect our business, finanoisdition and results of operations.

Lastly, as discussed above, we also enter intowsarrangements with third parties in an effoibhtwease traffic, which arrangements are
generally more cost-effective than traditional nedirkg efforts. If we are unable to renew existiagd enter into new) arrangements of this nature,
sales and marketing costs as a percentage of revemuid increase over the long-term.

Any failure to attract and acquire new (and re&idisting) traffic, users and customers in a cofetive manner could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to build, maintain and/or enhance our various brands.
Through our various businesses, we own and opanatenber of highly-recognizable brands with strbrend appeal within their respective
industries, as well as a number of fledgling brathas$ we are in the process of building. We belignat our success depends, in part, upon our

continuing ability to maintain and enhance ourld&ghed brands, as well as build awareness of @ty to) our fledgling brands. Our brands
and brand-building efforts could be negatively irted by a
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number of factors, including product and servicelifyyconcerns, consumer complaints, actions brobgltonsumers, governmental or regula
authorities and related media coverage and datagtien and security breaches. Moreover, the faitarmarket our products and services
successfully (or in a cost-effective manner), tiebility to develop and introduce products andisessthat resonate with consumers and/or the
inability to adapt quickly enough (and/or in a ceffective manner) to evolving changes in the mt¢and related technologies, applications and
devices, could adversely impact our various bramsbrand-building efforts, and in turn, our bussdinancial condition and results of
operations.

The Internet and related technologies and applications continue to evolve and we may not be able to adapt to these changes.

The development of new products and services porese to the evolving trends and technologiesefriternet, as well as the identificati
of new business opportunities in this dynamic emvinent, require significant time and resources.ég not be able to adapt quickly enough
(and/or in a cost-effective manner) to these changgpropriately time the introduction of new produand services to the market or identify new
business opportunities in a timely manner. Alsesthchanges could require us to modify relatedsiriuctures and our failure to do so could
render our existing websites, applications, sesvared proprietary technologies obsolete. Our faitarrespond to any of these changes
appropriately (and/or in a cost effective mannen)ld adversely affect our business, financial cbodiand results of operations.

In the case of certain of our applications, thiadties have introduced (and continue to introdunesy or updated technologies and policies
that may interfere with the ability of users to @sg or utilize our applications generally or othiseamake users less likely to use our services
(such as through the introduction of features anglocesses that disproportionately and adversgbact the ability of consumers to access and
use our services relative to those of our compsdité-or example, third parties continue to intrmeltechnologies (including new and enhanced
web browsers and operating systems) that may t¢ingrevent certain types of applications from beigalled and/or have features and policies
that significantly lessen the likelihood that useit install our applications or that previouslystalled applications will remain in active use. In
addition, there are technologies that interferdhie functionality of (or settings changes madedwy applications. For example, there are
technologies that interfere with search boxes emadvithin our toolbars and the maintenance of hpege and web browser search settings
previously selected by our users. These techndpgjgplications and policies adversely impact dilita to generate search queries through our
applications, which in turn adversely impacts @awenues. Technologies have also been introduceédahalock the display of advertisements on
web pages and that provide users with the abditypt out of advertising products. Our failure tesessfully modify our toolbars and other
applications in a cost-effective manner in respdogbe introduction and adoption of these newnetdgies could adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and monetize mobile versions of our products and services.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability telbgpvand monetize mobile versions of our productsservices. While many of our users
continue to access our products and services thrpegsonal computers, users of (and usage volumjesabile devices, including smartphones
and tablets, continue to increase relative to tlwbgmrsonal computers. While we have developedilmgbrsions of certain of our products and
services (and have developed certain productsemites exclusively for mobile devices) and intémdontinue to do so in the future, we may
be able to monetize these applications as effdgtagwe monetize our non-mobile products and sesviln addition, the success of our mobile
applications is dependent on their interoperabilitth various mobile operating systems, technolegmetworks and standards that we do not
control and any changes in any of these thingsabwapromise the quality or functionality of our gemts and services could adversely impact
usage of our products and services on mobile dewnd, in turn, our ability to attract advertisérsstly, as the adoption of mobile devices
becomes more widespread, we will need to take stepssure that our products and services aretteao users of mobile devices. This shift
could adversely affect our business, financial domdand results of operations if we are unablesfdace the related revenues.

The processing, storage, use and disclosure of personal data could giveriseto liabilities as a result of governmental regulation, conflicting legal
requirements or differing views of personal privacy rights.

We receive, transmit and store a large volume fqreal information and other user data (includiagspnal credit card data, as well as
private content (such as videos and correspondeimcednnection with the processing of search aseithe provision of online products and
services, transactions with users and customersadwvettising on our websites. The sharing, uselatiare and protection of this information are
determined by the respective privacy and data ggqualicies of our various businesses. These @diare, in turn, subject to federal, state and
foreign laws and regulations, as well as evolvimduistry standards and practices, regarding prigaogrally and the storing, sharing, use,
disclosure and protection of personal informatind aser data. Examples include the European Unaia Protection Directive (as adopted and
implemented by the various European Union memlagestthe "EU Directive"), various U.S. state ragjohs concerning minimum data
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security standards, industry self-regulating pples that have become standard practice and nrargesit contractual protections (and related
compliance obligations) regarding privacy and dateurity.

In addition, if an online service provider failscomply with its privacy policy, it could becomebject to an investigation and/or proceeding
for unfair or deceptive practices brought by th8 UFederal Trade Commission under the Federal T€ademission Act (and/or brought by a s
attorney general pursuant to a similar state laa)yell as a private lawsuit under various U.Sefaband state laws. Similarly, in the European
Union, the online service provider could becomgexttlio an investigation and/or proceeding fortimdation of the data protection laws and
regulations brought by a member state or its sug@mnw authority (an independent body charged witmitoring compliance with data protection
laws), as well as private causes of action undeEtt Directive. In general, personal informatiomisreasingly subject to legislation and
regulation in numerous jurisdictions around theld/@particularly in the European Union), the intefitvhich is to protect the privacy of personal
information that is collected, processed and trattschin or from the governing jurisdiction.

U.S. and foreign legislators and regulators mayenaw laws and regulations regarding privacy aaid gecurity. For example, in May
2014, the White House released a review of "big'datactices, which called for an update to U.8/gmy laws based on the proposed Consumer
Privacy Bill of Rights released by the White Hours&ebruary 2012 and the enactment of a federal loleach notification law. In addition, in
February 2013 the U.S. Federal Trade Commissiaredsa report seeking changes in Internet and mphitacy protection and disclosures.
Similarly, new privacy laws and regulations at $iegte level, as well as new laws and directivesab(particularly in the European Union), are
being proposed and implemented. For example, Bgisl in the state of California that became effecon January 1, 2014 requires companies
that collect personal information to disclose hbeytrespond to web browser “Do Not Track” signaild the European Union is in the process of
adopting new guidelines for data protection andamy to address recent globalization and techncébgievelopments, which will supersede the
EU Directive. In addition, existing privacy lawsathwere intended for brick-and-mortar businessetddoe interpreted in a manner that would
extend their reach to our businesses. New lawsemdations (or new interpretations of existing$m this area may make it more costly to
operate our businesses and/or limit our abilitgrigage in certain types of activities, such astadyadvertising, which could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat

As privacy and data protection have become morsitbenissues, we may also become exposed to paltéabilities as a result of differing
views on the privacy of consumer and other usex dallected by our businesses. Also, we cannotagiee that our security measures will
prevent security breaches. In the case of seduritgiches involving personal credit card data, teead companies could curtail our ability to
transact payments and impose fines for failureotoy with Payment Card Industry (PCIl) Data Segustandards. Moreover, any such breach
could decrease consumer confidence in the case difitsiness that experienced the breach or oundsssis generally, which would decrease
traffic to (and in turn, usage and transactionstbe)relevant website and/or our various websibesvehich in turn, could adversely affect our
business, financial condition and results of openat The failure of any of our businesses, orthaiious third party vendors and service
providers, to comply with applicable privacy polisj federal, state or foreign privacy laws and leg@ns or PCI standards, as well as the
unauthorized release of personal information oerotiser data for any reason, could adversely aff@cbusiness, financial condition and resul
operations.

We may not be able to protect our systems, infrastructures and technologies from cyber attacks. In addition, we may be adversely impacted by
cyber attacks experienced by third parties. Any disruption of our systems, infrastructures and technologies, or compromise of our user data or
other information, due to cyber attacks could have an adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

The incidence of malicious technology-related esestich as cyber attacks, computer hacking, compinteses, worms or other destructive
or disruptive software, distributed denial of seevattacks or other malicious activities (or angnbmation of these events) is on the rise
worldwide. From time to time, we may become theiriof these types of attacks.

While we continuously develop and maintain systémmdetect and prevent events of this nature fropaicting our various businesses, these
efforts are costly and require ongoing monitoring apdating as technologies change and effortggéocome preventative security measures
become more sophisticated. Despite our efforts;ammot assure you that these events will not doctire future and if they do occur, will not
have an adverse effect on our business, financradition and results of operations.

Furthermore, we may become the victim of secunigabhes, such as the misappropriation, misuseadeakalsification or accidental release
or loss of user, customer or vendor data maintaimedr information technology systems or thoséhofl parties with whom we do business (or
upon whom we otherwise rely in connection with day to day operations).
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Any cyber attack or security breach we experiemmeddcprevent us from providing our products andisess, damage our reputation, erode
our brands and/or be costly to remedy, as welesaglrin a degradation of our products and senaceor cause damage to our systems,
infrastructures, technologies and data. Even ilv@ot experience such events, the impact of ady suents experienced by third parties with
whom we do business (or upon whom we otherwiseinetpnnection with our day to day operations) ddudve a similar effect. Moreover, even
cyber attacks and security breaches that do nadmnygs directly may result in a loss of consumerfidence generally, which could make
consumers and users less likely to use our produnciservices.

In addition, we may not have adequate insurancerege to compensate for losses resulting from &ttyese events.

We may not be able to identify suitable acquisition candidates and even if we are able to do so, we may experience operational and financial
risksin connection with acquisitions. In addition, some of the businesses we acquire may incur significant losses from operations or experience
impairment of carrying value.

We have made numerous acquisitions in the pastvarzbntinue to seek to identify potential acquisittandidates that will allow us to
apply our expertise to expand their capabilitissyall as maximize our existing assets. As a resultfuture growth may depend, in part, on
acquisitions. We may not be able to identify suéadrquisition candidates or complete acquisitmmsatisfactory pricing or other terms and we
expect to continue to experience competition imemtion with our acquisition-related efforts.

Even if we identify what we believe to be suitabtgjuisition candidates and negotiate satisfactomg, we may experience operational and
financial risks in connection with acquisitionsdao the extent that we continue to grow througiugsitions, we will need to:

» successfully integrate the operations, as welhastcounting, financial controls, management médion, technology, human resour
and other administrative systems, of acquired lassi@s with our existing operations and systems;

» successfully identify and realize potential synesgamong acquired and existing busine
» retain or hire senior management and other keyopesd at acquired businesses;

» successfully manage acquisitiorlated strain on the management, operations aaddial resources of IAC and its businesses and/or
acquired businesses.

We may not be successful in addressing these algakeor any other problems encountered in conmewtith historical and future
acquisitions. In addition, the anticipated benefitene or more acquisitions may not be realizatifature acquisitions could result in increased
operating losses, potentially dilutive issuancesafity securities and the assumption of contingiahtlities. Also, the value of goodwill and ott
intangible assets acquired could be impacted byoomeore continuing unfavorable events and/or tsemdhich could result in significant
impairment charges. The occurrence of any thesaet®eeuld have an adverse effect on our business)dial condition and results of operations.

We operate in various international markets, somein which we have limited experience. Asa result, we face additional risksin connection with
our international operations. Also, we may not be able to successfully expand into new, or further into our existing, international markets.

We currently operate in various jurisdictions alskead may continue to expand our internationaleres. In order for our products and
services in these jurisdictions to achieve widespcceptance, commercial use and acceptance loftéineet must continue to grow, which
growth may occur at slower rates than those expeeigin the United States. Moreover, we must caetio successfully tailor our products and
services to the unique customs and cultures ofgorerisdictions, which can be difficult and cgs#nd the failure to do so could slow our
international growth and adversely impact our bes# financial condition and results of operations.

Operating abroad, particularly in jurisdictions wheve have limited experience, exposes us to atditirisks. For example, we may
experience difficulties in managing internationpémations due to distance, language and cultuifereihces and political and/or economic
instability, including issues associated with elsaiing and maintaining effective management systarmd infrastructures (including disclosure
controls and procedures and internal control ovemftial reporting), the staffing of foreign opéoat, exchange rate fluctuations and online
privacy and protection of personal information. Guccess in international markets will also dep@ngart, on our ability to identify potential
acquisition candidates, joint
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venture or other partners, and to enter into agarnts with these parties on favorable terms aockssfully integrate their businesses and
operations with our own.

A variety of new laws, or new interpretations of existing laws, could subject usto claims or otherwise harm our business.

We are subject to a variety of laws in the U.S. aloibad that are costly to comply with, can resuttegative publicity and diversion of
management time and effort, and can subject usiims or other remedies. Some of these laws, ssidficame, sales, use, valaelded and other
tax laws and consumer protection laws, are apgédabbusinesses generally and others are uniqtnetearious types of businesses in which we
are engaged. Many of these laws were adoptedtpribe advent of the Internet and related technetognd, as a result, do not contemplate or
address the unique issues of the Internet ancecetathnologies. Laws that do reference the Intemgebeing interpreted by the courts, but their
applicability and scope remain uncertain.

For example, through our various businesses wegmuklink to third party content, including thirdnty advertisements, links and websites.
We also allow users to submit content, such as camsnphotographs and videos. We could be sulgjdiettility for posting, hosting or linking 1
third party content, and while we generally reqtiivied parties to indemnify us for related claim& may not be able to enforce our
indemnification rights. Some laws, including then@ounications Decency Act, or CDA, and the Digitalléhnium Copyright Act, or DMCA,
limit our liability for posting or linking to thirgparty content. For example, the DMCA generallytgcts online service providers from claims of
copyright infringement based on the storage ofitharty content at the direction of the user, sglas certain statutory requirements are satisfied
However, the scope and applicability of the DMCA aubject to judicial interpretation and, as suemain uncertain, and the U.S. Congress may
enact legislation affecting (and potentially limij the protections afforded by the DMCA to onlgevice providers. Moreover, similar
protections may not exist in other jurisdictionsaihich our various businesses operate. As a radaiins have been, and could be, threatened anc
filed under both U.S. and foreign laws based upmaf third party content asserting, among othieg#) negligence, defamation, invasion of
privacy or right or publicity, copyright infringemeor trademark infringement.

Also, we send electronic messages to users througharious businesses, as well as develop, marid#or distribute a variety of
downloadable applications through our B2C and B@Brations, which could subject us to liability failing to comply with laws governing the
sending of electronic messages to our users andstadlation of downloadable applications. Formpée, Canada’s Anti-Spam Legislation
(“CASL"), which became effective on July 1, 2014¢kpibits all commercial electronic messages (inicige-mail, text, social media, sound and
image messages) that are sent without proper carstonsent. And, effective January 15, 2015, th&CPestricts the unsolicited installation of
computer programs and applications. While sev@aaladian regulators are jointly empowered to eefarwd issue administrative and monetary
penalties for CASL violations, effective July 1,120individuals may also file private and class@tiawsuits to collect statutory damages for
CASL violations.

In addition, changing Internet business practicey aitract increased legal and regulatory atten@ore example of such changing practices
is the increasing use of “native” advertising, enfof advertising in which sponsored content isspreéed in a manner that some may view as
similar to traditional editorial content. The UFRederal Trade Commission has indicated that itawilitinue to monitor the use of online native
advertising to ensure that it is presented in aneathat is not confusing or deceptive to consumers

Any failure on our part to comply with applicabds may subject us to additional liabilities, wheadhuld adversely affect our business,
financial condition and results of operations. didiéion, if the laws to which we are currently seidtjare amended or interpreted adversely to our
interests, or if new adverse laws are adoptedpmducts and services might need to be modifiembtoply with such laws, which would increase
our costs and could result in decreased demamalfoproducts and services to the extent that we pasuch costs to our customers. Specifically,
in the case of tax laws, positions that we havenade will take are subject to interpretation by thlevant taxing authorities. While we believet
the positions we have taken to date comply witHiegbple law, there can be no assurances that tbeams taxing authorities will not take a
contrary position, and if so, that such positiori mot adversely affect us. Any events of thisuratcould adversely affect our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We may fail to adequately protect our intellectual property rights or may be accused of infringing the intellectual property rights of third parties.
We regard our intellectual property rights, inchglirademarks, domain names, trade secrets, pateptgights and other similar

intellectual property, as critical to our succds®. example, the businesses within certain of eporting segments (Search & Applications, The
Match Group and eCommerce) rely heavily upon ttragtemarks (primarily Ask.com,
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About.com, Dictionary.com, Investopedia, PriceRunAek.fm, our various toolbar brands, SlimWare tdtecom, OkCupid.com, OurTime.com,
Meetic.com, HomeAdvisor.com and ShoeBuy.com aratedldomain names and logos), through which thekehéheir products and services
and seek to build and maintain brand loyalty amogeition. So long as these businesses continpeliime unauthorized use of these trademarks
and take action against infringement, use thesketnarks to identify their products and servicestandly renew trademark and related domain
name registrations as required, they should coatiawenjoy trademark protection indefinitely underrent laws, rules and regulations.

The businesses within our Search & Applicationsrsag also rely upon trade secrets, including allgors for the generation, organization
and presentation of search results. To a lessengxhese businesses also rely upon patentedat@dtpending proprietary technologies and
processes, primarily those relating to searelated products and services, with expirationglfde patented technologies ranging from 2017 to
2033, and copyrighted material, primarily softwarnel content, such as emoticons, characters andauth&ent that is incorporated into (and used
in connection with the marketing of) toolbars apglecations generally.

The Match Group segment also relies upon tradeetseand patented (with expiration dates ranging 2025 to 2034) and patefending
proprietary technologies relating to matching psscgystems and related features, products anadssrtiomeAdvisor relies heavily upon trade
secrets, primarily the matching algorithm throudtickh members of its network of home services pifesls are matched with consumers, as
well as related patented proprietary technolodias éxpire in 2020.

We rely on a combination of laws and contractusirietions with employees, customers, supplieffiljiaés and others to establish and
protect our various intellectual property rightsr Example, we have generally registered and coatio apply to register and renew, or secure by
contract where appropriate, trademarks and semaris as they are developed and used, and resegister and renew domain names as we
deem appropriate. Effective trademark protectioy mat be available or may not be sought in eveynty in which products and services are
made available and contractual disputes may affiectise of marks governed by private contract. |Siyj not every variation of a domain name
may be available or be registered, even if avalabl

We also generally seek to apply for patents oother similar statutory protections as and if werdeappropriate, based on then current-
and circumstances, and will continue to do so @nftliure. No assurances can be given that any tpegbptication we have filed (or will file) will
result in a patent being issued, or that any exjstr future patents will afford adequate protetagainst competitors and similar technologies. In
addition, no assurances can be given that thirdesawill not create new products or methods tichieve similar results without infringing upon
patents we own.

Despite these measures, our intellectual propegtys may still not be protected in a meaningfuhmer, challenges to contractual rights
could arise or third parties could copy or otheenddtain and use our intellectual property withauthorization. The occurrence of any of these
events could result in the erosion of our brandklamitations on our ability to control marketing or through the Internet using our various
domain names, as well as impede our ability tocsiffely compete against competitors with similathieologies, any of which could adversely
affect our business, financial condition and resaftoperations.

From time to time, we have been subject to legatgedings and claims in the ordinary course ofrtassi, including claims of alleged
infringement of trademarks, copyrights, patents @ther intellectual property rights held by thirarfles. In addition, litigation may be necessary
in the future to enforce our intellectual propeights, protect our trade secrets or to deterntieevalidity and scope of proprietary rights claimed
by others. Any litigation of this nature, regardies outcome or merit, could result in substardgdts and diversion of management and technical
resources, any of which could adversely affecttuginess, financial condition and results of openst Patent litigation tends to be particularly
protracted and expensive.

Our success depends, in part, on the integrity of our systems and infrastructures and those of third parties. System interruptions and the lack of
integration and redundancy in our and third party information systems may affect our business.

To succeed, our systems and infrastructures mustrpewell on a consistent basis. From time to tirve may experience occasional sys
interruptions that make some or all of our systemdata unavailable or that prevent us from progdiroducts and services. Moreover, as traffic
to our websites, applications and online propeitiesases and the number of new (and presumalily comnplex) products and services that we
introduce continues to grow, we will need to upgradr systems, infrastructures and technologiesrgéin to facilitate this growth. If we fail to
do so, users, customers and third parties with wivendo business may not be able to access our @odnd services on an intermittent or
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prolonged basis, which could adversely affect thality of their experiences. In addition, we coelgperience inefficiencies and/or operational
failures in connection with these efforts, whiclultbhave the same effect. Moreover, even if we atcetperience inefficiencies and/or operati
failures in connection with these efforts, thirdtgs with whom we do business (or upon whom wetise rely in connection with our day to
day operations) may not make the changes to thsiess, infrastructures and technologies needaddess our products and services on a timely
basis, if at all. The occurrence of any of thesenév could adversely affect our business, finaro@abition and results of operations.

We also rely on third party computer systems, datders, broadband and other communications systadhservice providers in connect
with the provision of our products and servicesayalty, as well as to facilitate and process certi@nsactions with our users and customers. Any
interruptions, outages or delays in our systenth@se of our third party providers, or deteriomatio the performance of these systems, could
impair our ability to provide our products and seeg and/or process certain transactions with wsstcustomers. Furthermore, fire, power loss,
telecommunications failure, natural disasters, attgar or terrorism, acts of God and other similaents or disruptions may damage or interrupt
computer, data, broadband or other communicatigstesis at any time. Any event of this nature caaldse system interruptions, delays and loss
of critical data, and could prevent us from prorglservices to users and customers. While we hasfeulp systems in place for certain aspects of
our operations, our systems are not fully redundadtdisaster recovery planning is not sufficiemtdil eventualities. In addition, we may not
have adequate insurance coverage to compensadtsdes from a major interruption.

If any of these events were to occur, it could dgenaur reputation and result in the loss of cureert potential users and customers, which
could have an adverse effect on our business,diaboondition and results of operations and otleeve costly to remedy.

Our estimated income taxes could be materially different from income taxes that we ultimately pay.

We are subject to income taxes in both the UnitatkS and numerous jurisdictions abroad. Signifigadgment and estimation is required
in determining our provision for income taxes aakhted matters. In the ordinary course of our lessnthere are many transactions and
calculations where the ultimate tax determinatargsuncertain or otherwise subject to interpretat@ur determination of our income tax liability
is always subject to review by applicable tax atitles and we are currently subject to audits mueber of jurisdictions. Although we believe
income tax estimates and related determinationseasmonable and appropriate, relevant taxing aiiteomay disagree. The ultimate outcome of
any such audits and reviews could be materialligiht from estimates and determinations reflestemir historical income tax provisions and
accruals. Any adverse outcome of any such aud#wew could have an adverse effect on our findrcadition and results of operations.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

Not applicable.

Iltem 2. Properties

IAC believes that the facilities for its managemand operations are generally adequate for itentiend near-term future needs. IAC's
facilities, most of which are leased by IAC's besises in various cities and locations in the Urfiades and various jurisdictions abroad,
generally consist of executive and administratiffie@s, operations centers, data centers and effiess.

All of IAC's leases are at prevailing market ratd<C believes that the duration of each lease exjadte. IAC believes that its principal
properties, whether owned or leased, are curradiguate for the purposes for which they are usddee suitably maintained for these purpc
IAC does not anticipate any future problems rengvanobtaining suitable leases for any of its gpatproperties. IAC's approximately 202,500
square foot corporate headquarters in New York, Mevk houses offices for IAC corporate and varitA€ businesses within the following
segments: Search & Applications, The Match Groupedia. For a discussion regarding the financih@od related mortgage interest in) 1A
corporate headquarters, see “Iltem 8-Consolidatean€ial Statements and Supplementary Data-Note 8."
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings

In the ordinary course of business, the Companyitaralibsidiaries are parties to litigation involyiproperty, personal injury, contract,
intellectual property and other claims. The amotimi$ may be recovered in such matters may be ubjénsurance coverage.

Rules of the Securities and Exchange Commissionnethe description of material pending legal pextings (other than ordinary, routine
litigation incidental to the registrant's busineassyvhich the registrant or any of its subsidiaigea party or to which any of their property ibgci
and advise that proceedings ordinarily need natdseribed if they primarily involve claims for dages for amounts (exclusive of interest and
costs) not exceeding 10% of the current assetseafegistrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidbésis. In the judgment of Company
management, none of the pending litigation mattdnish the Company and its subsidiaries are defgnidivolves (or is likely to involve) amour
of that magnitude, nor do such matters involveassur claims that may be of particular interesheoCompany's shareholders.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Not applicable.
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PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases &quity Securities

Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Sockholder Matters

IAC common stock is quoted on The Nasdaq Stock ktak "NASDAQ," under the ticker symbol "IACL." €he is no established public
trading market for IAC Class B common stock. THaddelow sets forth, for the calendar periodsdatiid, the high and low sales prices per ¢
for IAC common stock as reported on NASDAQ.

High Low
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Fourth Quarter $ 68.4C $ 56.5(
Third Quarter 73.9: 63.0(
Second Quarter 73.2i 61.0(
First Quarter 80.6¢ 64.4¢
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Fourth Quarter $ 70.4¢ % 50.1¢
Third Quarter 54.71 46.4¢
Second Quarter 52.2i 43.3(
First Quarter 48.7: 38.2(

As of February 23, 2015, there were approximaté®®Q holders of record of the Company's commorksane the closing price of IAC
common stock on NASDAQ was $67.22. Because thetaotiesl majority of the outstanding shares of IA@menon stock are held by brokers and
other institutions on behalf of shareholders, IAQdt able to estimate the total number of beradfstiareholders represented by these record
holders. As of February 23, 2015, there was onedenalf record of the Company's Class B common stock

In 2013, IAC's Board of Directors declared four qedy cash dividends, all of which were $0.24 pleare of common and Class B common
stock outstanding. In 2014, IAC's Board of Direstdeclared four quarterly cash dividends, two oictwhvere $0.24 per share of common and
Class B common stock outstanding and two of whiehev$0.34 per share of common and Class B commoch stitstanding.

On February 3, 2015, IAC's Board of Directors destlea quarterly cash dividend of $0.34 per shamofmon and Class B common stock
outstanding, which is payable on March 1, 2015doldolders of record as of the close of businesBebruary 15, 2015. While we currently
expect that comparable cash dividends will contitouige paid in the near future, any future casbtioer dividend declarations are subject to the
determination of IAC's Board of Directors.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2014, thep@asgndid not issue or sell any shares of its comsatook or other equity securities
pursuant to unregistered transactions.

Issuer Repurchases of Equity Securities

The Company did not purchase any shares of its ammstock during the quarter ended December 31,.284 4f that date, approximately
8.6 million shares of common stock remained avélétr repurchase under the Company's previoustpamced April 2013 repurchase
authorization. IAC may purchase shares pursuathisaepurchase authorization over an indefinitegoein the open market and in privately
negotiated transactions, depending on those fali@snanagement deems relevant at any particutag,tincluding, without limitation, market
conditions, share price and future outlook.
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ltem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following selected financial data for the fixgars ended December 31, 2014 should be read jormtion with the consolidated
financial statements and accompanying notes indiheeein.

Year Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data‘®

Revenue $ 3,109,54 $ 3,022,98 $ 2,800,93° $ 2,059,44. $ 1,636,81
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 234,55 281,79¢ 169,84 175,56¢ (9,399
Earnings (loss) per share from continuing operatattributable to IAC shareholders:
Basic $ 2.8¢ $ 34C $ 198 208 $ (0.09
Diluted $ 2.71 $ 321 $ 181 $ 18¢ $ (0.09
Dividends declared per share $ 11¢ % 0.9 $ 0.7z $ 0.1z $ —

December 31,
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

(In thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 4,274,87 $ 4,234,68 $ 3,805,820 $ 3,409,860 $ 3,329,07
Long-term debt, including current maturities 1,080,00t 1,080,001 595,84« 95,84« 95,84«

@ We recognized items that affected the comparatmfityesults for the years 2014, 2013 and 2012} Ise® 7—Management's Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Result©pfkrations.”
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis &inancial Condition and Results of Operations
MANAGEMENT OVERVIEW

IAC is a leading media and Internet company. Then@any is organized into four segments: The Matabu@ywhich consists of dating,
education and fithess businesses with brands subtatch, OkCupid, Tinder, The Princeton Review BradlyBurn; Search & Applications, whi
includes brands such as About.com, Ask.com, Dietigrtom and Investopedia; Media, which includesrasses such as Vimeo, Electus, The
Daily Beast and CollegeHumor; and eCommerce, winicludes HomeAdvisor and ShoeBuy. IAC's brands@oducts are among the most
recognized in the world, reaching users in over @ntries.

Sources of Revenue

Substantially all of the revenue from our SearcB@plications segment is derived from online adwémtj. This revenue is primarily
attributable to our services agreement with Godmgte ("Google"), which expires on March 31, 201@ir@ervices agreement requires that we
comply with certain guidelines promulgated by G@o@ubject to certain limitations, Google may ueilally update its policies and guidelines,
which could require modification to, or prohibitddar render obsolete certain of our products, sesvand/or business practices, which could be
costly to address or otherwise have an adverseteffeour business, financial condition and resafltgperations. For the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , revenue e&wwredsoogle was $ 1.4 billion , $ 1.5 billion and # billion , respectively.

The revenue earned from The Match Group segmegrised from dating and non-dating services. Datexgnue is principally earned
from subscription fees for our subscription-baseline personals and related services; with addifioevenue generated from online advertising.
Non-dating revenue is primarily earned from fees nesifor in-person and online test preparation elssaccess to online test preparation
materials and individual tutoring services. Thearave earned by our Media segment is derived frodian@oduction, subscriptions and
advertising. HomeAdvisor's revenue is derived pritpmdrom fees paid by members of its network ohfeservices professionals for consumer
leads and subscription sales to service professioBhoeBuy's revenue is derived principally fromramandise sales.

Strategic Partnerships, Advertiser Relationships ad Online Advertising

A significant component of the Company's revenuadtisbutable to the services agreement with Godgkrribed above. We market and
offer our products and services directly to consgntlerough branded websites and subscriptionsyadpconsumers to transact directly with us
in a convenient manner. We have made, and expedntinue to make, substantial investments in erdind offline advertising to build our
brands and drive traffic to our websites and coresgrand advertisers to our businesses.

We pay traffic acquisition costs, which consispaf/ments to partners who distribute our B2B custeshbrowser-based applications,
integrate our paid listings into their websiteslect traffic to our websites. We also pay to neaknd distribute our services on third-party
distribution channels, such as search enginesraechet portals. In addition, some of our businessanage affiliate programs, pursuant to which
we pay commissions and fees to third parties basadvenue earned. These distribution channelstralgb offer their own products and servi
as well as those of other third parties, which cetapvith those we offer.

The cost of acquiring new consumers through ordime offline third-party distribution channels hasreased, particularly in the case of
online channels as internet commerce continuesot® gnd competition in the markets in which IACisimesses operate increases.

Factors Affecting Results

In 2014, we delivered 3% revenue growth; howeveljusted EBITDA and operating income declined 9% &ih%h, respectively. Revenue
growth was primarily driven by The Match Group segi while the declines in Adjusted EBITDA and agigrg income were primarily driven
the Search & Applications and Media segments. Rey&om The Match Group segment benefited fromeased subscribers and the
contributions from The Princeton Review, which vaaguired August 1, 2014, and FriendScout24, whiak acquired August 31, 2014. The
results of our Search & Applications segment wesgatively impacted by decreased revenue from optiégtions business, which was
principally due to lower queries from our B2B opémas. The Search & Applications Adjusted EBITDAsw@egatively impacted by the loss from
SlimWare, which was acquired April 1, 2014, du¢hte write-off of $11.0 million of deferred revenineconnection with its acquisition, partially
offset by the positive contribution of ValueClick®wned & Operated” ("O&0O") website businesses,clihvas acquired January 10, 2014.
Within the Media segment, additional investmen¥imeo increased its revenue and losses; this reveruease was more than offset by the
lower revenue and increased losses at The DailgtBekowing its sale of Newsweek in August 2013ieh generated a $6.3 million gain.

Other events affecting year-over-year comparabiijude:
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0] a $3.9 million benefit in 2014 related to tlepiration of the statute of limitations for a nimeome tax matter (reflected in The Ma
Group segment);

(ii) the sale of the Rezbook assets in July 2013, wieishlted in a gain of $8.4 million (reflected irtaCommerce segmel

(i) the move of CityGrid from the eCommerce segmto the Search & Applications segment, effeciivly 1, 2013, following its
reorganization; and

(iv) $4.2 million in employee termination costs ass@&dawith the CityGrid restructuring in 2013 (refledtin the eCommerce segme

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012

Revenue
Years Ended December 31,
2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 159625 $ (8,699 L% $ 1,604,95 $ 139,15! 9% $ 1,465,79
The Match Group 897,24! 91,85¢ 11% 805,39( 91,16¢ 13% 714,22:
Media 181,78( (9,659 B)% 191,43 27,38 17% 164,05:
eCommerce 435,36: 13,29¢ 3% 422,06¢ (35,116 8% 457,18
Inter-segment elimination (1,090 (237) (28)% (85%) (53¢€) A70% (317)

Total $ 3,109,54 % 86,56( 39 $ 3,022,98 $ 222,05¢ 8% $ 2,800,93

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Search & Applications revenue decreased 1% to §illién reflecting a decline from Applications (wdh includes our direct-to-consumer
downloadable applications operations (B2C), outrgship operations (B2B), SlimWare and Apalon)tipbly offset by an increase from
Websites (which is principally composed of Ask.cdxbput.com, CityGrid, Dictionary.com, InvestopediajceRunner.com and Ask.fm).
Applications revenue decreased 7% to $760.5 mijlli@spite strong query growth from our B2C operatiand the contribution of SlimWare,
which was acquired on April 1, 2014, primarily dodower queries from our B2B operations. Websitgagnue grew 6% to $835.8 million driven
by the acquisition of the ValueClick O&O websitesmesses on January 10, 2014, growth from Aboutaoedithe contribution of CityGrid,
which had been moved from the eCommerce segméhétBearch & Applications segment, effective Jyl2a13, following its reorganization,
partially offset by a decline in revenue from Agit

The Match Group revenue increased 11% to $897l®bmdriven by a 6% increase in Dating revenue. DatiogttNAmerica revenue (whit
includes Match, Chemistry, People Media, OkCupidd&r and other dating businesses operating willeérinited States and Canada) and D¢
International revenue (which includes Meetic, Tinded all other dating businesses operating outsidee United States and Canada) both
increased 6% to $557.2 million and $279.3 millimspectively. These businesses are collectiverned to as "Dating." The growth in Dating
revenue was driven by increased paid subscribendhMmerica and International paid subscribersdased 5% and 4%, respectively. Ndating
revenue (consisting of The Princeton Review, Tatim and DailyBurn) increased 254% principally dué¢hie contribution of The Princeton
Review, which was acquired on August 1, 2014.

Media revenue decreased 5% to $181.8 million piilsndue to the impact of the closure of the Newskveent business and sale of the
Newsweek digital business in August 2013 and deslat Electus, partially offset by strong growtWemheo and the contribution in the curre
year of $11.3 million from IAC Films.

eCommerce revenue increased 3% to $435.4 millientdgrowth at HomeAdvisor and ShoeBuy, partiaffget by the move of CityGrid

described above. The increase in revenue from Halvisér is driven by an increase in domestic serxécpiests and accepts of 13% and 9%,
respectively.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Search & Applications revenue increased 9% to 8illién , reflecting strong growth from WebsitescbApplications. Websites revenue
grew 11% to $786.9 million, reflecting the conttiiom from The About Group, acquired
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September 24, 2012, and CityGrid, following its radkom the eCommerce segment to the Search & Agtjmics segment. The About Group
revenue increased $108.4 million to $138.6 miliiw2013, as it was not in the full prior year peridpplications revenue grew 8% to
$818.0 million, driven by increased contributionsm existing and new B2C products.

The Match Group revenue increased 13% to $805lbmiriven by a 10% increase in Dating revenueiridgNorth America and Dating
International revenue increased 10% to $523.7 aniléind 12% to $264.5 million, respectively. Thevgitoin Dating revenue was driven by
increased paid subscribers. North America andat@nal paid subscribers increased 18% and 238peotively. International revenue also
benefited from the contribution of Twoo, which waxjuired January 4, 2013. International revendk® was negatively impacted by the write-
off of $5.2 million of deferred revenue in connectiwith the acquisition of Meetic. Nasating revenue increased to $17.2 million due prigngo
the contribution from Tutor.com, an online tutorisgution acquired December 14, 2012.

Media revenue increased 17% to $191.4 million prilpdue to strong growth from Electus and Vimeo.

eCommerce revenue decreased 8% to $422.1 millieriaithe move of CityGrid described above, patiaffset by increased sales at
HomeAdvisor and ShoeBuy.

Cost of revenue

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Cost of revenue $883,176 $(120,545) (12)% $1,003,721 $12,033 1% $991,688
As a percentage of revenue 28% 33% 35%

Cost of revenue consists primarily of traffic aaitibn costs and includes payments made to panmsosdistribute our B2B customized
browserbased applications, integrate our paid listings their websites or direct traffic to our websitEeese payments include amounts base
revenue share and other arrangements. Cost ofuewaso includes ShoeBuy's cost of products saldshipping and handling costs, production
costs related to media produced by Electus and btignesses within our Media segment, contentiaitiqun costs, expenses associated with the
operation of the Company's data centers, includargpensation (including stock-based compensatiaothogher employee-related costs for
personnel engaged in data center functions, reatgg and hosting fees.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Cost of revenue in 2014 decreased from 2013 priynduie to decreases of $135.3 million from SearchAgplications and $12.3 million
from eCommerce, partially offset by an increas&3#.9 million from The Match Group. The Search &plipations decrease was primarily du
a reduction of $154.5 million in traffic acquisii@osts driven primarily by lower revenue from &2B operations, partially offset by the
acquisition of the ValueClick O&O website businesaad the move of CityGrid from the eCommerce segtaethe Search & Applications
segment. The eCommerce decrease was primarilyodhe tmove of CityGrid, partially offset by an iease in the cost of products sold at
ShoeBuy resulting from increased sales. The Matdusincrease was primarily due to the acquisitibiihe Princeton Review and increases in
revenue share payments made in connection witpprnparchases sold through Dating's mobile prodaitshosting fees. As a percentage of
revenue, cost of revenue in 2014 decreased fror@ gfitharily due to an increase in the proportioM@bsites revenue that resulted from
increased online marketing due to the acquisitiothe ValueClick O&O website businesses and stignogvth from About.com.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Cost of revenue in 2013 increased from 2012 primdrie to increases of $12.7 million from The Ma&toup and $10.1 million from
Search & Applications, partially offset by a deceaf $8.4 million from eCommerce. The Match Griwgrease is primarily due to various
acquisitions at Dating and an increase in contequiaition costs from Tutor.com, which was acquibeEtember 14, 2012. The Search &
Applications increase was primarily due to an iasein content acquisition costs resulting fromatguisition of The About Group and the move
of CityGrid from the eCommerce segment to the Se&répplications segment, partially offset by a dease of $7.7 million in traffic acquisition
costs driven primarily by decreased revenue frot@sn. The eCommerce decrease was primarily dileetmove of CityGrid, partially offset
by increases in revenue share payments at Homedrduigl cost of products sold at ShoeBuy resultiomfincreased sales. As a percentage of
revenue, cost of revenue in 2013 decreased frora gfitharily due to the transition of Newsweek frarprint business to a digital only
publication in December 2012 (which was subsequesatld in August 2013) and a decrease in traffguésition costs due to an increase in the
proportion of Websites revenue that resulted frooneéased online marketing.
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Selling and marketing expense

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Selling and marketing expense $1,124,437 $168,027 18% $956,410 $61,972 7% $894,438
As a percentage of revenue 36% 32% 32%

Selling and marketing expense consists primarilgcbfertising expenditures and compensation (inntudtock-based compensation) and
other employee-related costs for personnel engmgedles, sales support and customer service amsctAdvertising expenditures include online
marketing, including fees paid to search enginesthind parties that distribute our B2C downloadadypplications, and offline marketing, which
is primarily television advertising.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Selling and marketing expense in 2014 increased #0613 due to increases of $116.4 million from 8e#& Applications, $24.0 million
from The Match Group, $19.2 million from eCommearel $8.9 million from Media. The Search & Applicats increase was primarily due to a
$111.5 million increase in online marketing, whigas primarily related to our B2C downloadable agailbns, About.com and the acquisitions of
the ValueClick O&0O website businesses and SlimVifa014. Search & Applications was also impacte@byncrease in compensation due, in
part, to recent acquisitions. The Match Group iaseewas primarily due to an increase of $20.2 onilih offline and online marketing and the
acquisition of The Princeton Review. The eCommarcezase was primarily due to increases of $14lomiin offline and online marketing
principally related to HomeAdvisor and $6.9 milliancompensation due, in part, to an increase atbeunt at HomeAdvisor. The Media incre
was primarily due to an increase in both online affithe marketing at Vimeo. Search & Applicatioasd eCommerce were also impacted by the
move of CityGrid from the eCommerce segment toSkarch & Applications segment. As a percentagewnue, selling and marketing expense
in 2014 increased from 2013 primarily due to améase in online marketing at Search & Applicatiaas result of the acquisition of the
ValueClick O&O website businesses.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Selling and marketing expense in 2013 increased #2012 due to increases of $42.7 million from Se&Applications, $21.2 million fror
The Match Group and $6.8 million from Media, pdlyi@ffset by a decrease of $7.1 million from eCoertoe. The Search & Applications
increase is primarily due to increases of $28.3oniland $11.2 million in online marketing and cagnpation, respectively. The increase in online
marketing was primarily related to B2C downloadadpglications and the inclusion of The About Grisginning September 24, 2012. The
Match Group increase was primarily due to increa$&d 4.3 million in advertising expenditures arid@million in compensation. The increas
advertising expenditures was primarily due to amease in television advertising. The increasempensation was primarily due to an increase
in headcount at Meetic and various acquisitiong Media increase was primarily due to an incred$sa million in online marketing at Vime
The eCommerce decrease was primarily due to themb€ityGrid to the Search & Applications segmeuatitially offset by an increase of $4.0
million in online and offline marketing at HomeAdwar.

General and administrative expense

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

General and administrative
expense $443,610 $65,468 17% $378,142 $(8,319) (2)% $386,461

As a percentage of revenue 14% 13% 14%

General and administrative expense consists piiynafrcompensation (including stock-based compeospaand other employee-related
costs for personnel engaged in executive managefirarice, legal, tax and human resources, faslitiosts and fees for professional services.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013
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General and administrative expense in 2014 inccefisen 2013 due to increases of $21.2 million frBearch & Applications, $15.8 million
from The Match Group, $11.9 million from eCommer$#0.4 million from Corporate, and $6.1 millionfindVedia. The Search & Applications
increase was primarily due to recent acquisititims most significant being the ValueClick 0&0 webdiusinesses, and increases in
compensation and professional fees. The incregsmfassional fees was primarily due to transadié®@s related to various acquisitions made in
2014. The Match Group increase was primarily dud¢cacquisition of The Princeton Review and andgase in compensation, partially offset by
a decrease of $13.3 million in acquisition-relatedtingent consideration fair value adjustment® ifiecrease in compensation was primarily due
to an increase in headcount due, in part, to remeisitions. The eCommerce increase was primduiéyto the inclusion in the prior year of an
$8.4 million gain on the sale of Rezbook assethilp 2013 and an increase in compensation at Howiedidand ShoeBuy, partially offset by
$4.2 million in employee termination costs in thimpyear associated with the CityGrid restructgriithe Corporate increase was primarily du
increases in compensation and professional feesintiease in compensation was primarily due t@.8 fillion increase in non-cash
compensation expense related to the issuance @y @yuards since the prior year. The Media incremas primarily due to the inclusion of a $6.3
million gain related to the sale of Newsweek in Asg2013.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

General and administrative expense in 2013 dealdas® 2012 due to decreases of $25.3 million f@onporate, $9.4 million from
eCommerce and $6.4 million from Media, partialljset by increases of $20.4 million from The Matclo@ and $12.4 million from Search &
Applications. The Corporate decrease was primdiily to a decrease of $25.5 million in non-cash esation expense related primarily to the
vesting of certain awards and an increase in tinebeun of awards forfeited as compared to the préaryThe eCommerce decrease was primarily
due to the inclusion of an $8.4 million gain on #ade of the Rezbook assets in July 2013. The Mielisease was primarily due to $7.0 million in
restructuring costs in 2012 related to the tramsitf Newsweek to a digital only publication anfiGa3 million gain related to the subsequent sale
of Newsweek in August 2013, partially offset byiacrease in compensation related to the growthiined. The Match Group increase was
primarily due to various acquisitions, an incre@seompensation of $5.6 million at Dating, resudtiinom an increase in headcount, and an
increase in professional fees due primarily togeation fees related to the purchase of the ren@jmiblicly-traded shares of Meetic ("Meetic
tender offer"). The Search & Applications increasses primarily due to the inclusion of The About Gpdeginning September 24, 2012.

Product development expense

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Product development expense  $160,515 $20,756 15% $139,759 $23,233 20% $116,526
As a percentage of revenue 5% 5% 4%

Product development expense consists primarilyofpensation (including stock-based compensatiothoéimer employeeelated costs th
are not capitalized for personnel engaged in tisggdedevelopment, testing and enhancement of ptaxfferings and related technology.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Product development expense in 2014 increased 2@ primarily due to increases of $13.2 millioonfr Search & Applications and $6.7
million from The Match Group. The Search & Applicats increase is primarily related to the acqusitbf the ValueClick O&O website
businesses and an increase in compensation at M&psimarily due to increased headcount. The M&iahup increase is primarily related to an
increase in compensation driven primarily by inseshheadcount at Tinder and Tutor.com.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Product development expense in 2013 increased 2@ primarily due to increases of $16.3 millioonfr Search & Applications, $5.3
million from The Match Group and $4.4 million froktedia. The Search & Applications increase is pritlpalue to an increase in compensation
associated with the inclusion of The About Grougibeing September 24, 2012, and an increase incbeatirelated to B2C products. The Ma
Group increase is primarily due to various acqisi. The Media increase is primarily due to ThéyDBeast, consolidated June 1, 2012.
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Depreciation
Years Ended December 31,
2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Depreciation $61,156 $2,247 4% $58,909 $6,428 12% $52,481
As a percentage of revenue 2% 2% 2%

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013
Depreciation in 2014 increased from 2013 due taasd@ipns and the incremental depreciation assediatith capital expenditures, partially

offset by certain fixed assets becoming fully defa&d and the inclusion in the prior year of thé@evoff of $2.7 million in capitalized software
costs at The About Group primarily related to petgavhich commenced prior to its acquisition.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012
Depreciation in 2013 increased from 2012 due tanbeemental depreciation associated with capitpkaditures, various acquisitions and

the write-off of $2.7 million in capitalized softn&acosts at The About Group described above, figrtifiset by certain fixed assets becoming
fully depreciated.

Adjusted EBITDA

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 362,02¢ $ (23,82 6)% $ 385,85. $ 57,71( 18% $ 328,14:
The Match Group 264,73 (2,219 (1)% 266,94 30,17: 13% 236,77t
Media (36,720 (19,74 (116)% (16,976 21,57¢ 56 % (38,55Y
eCommerce 17,28: (5,60¢) (25)% 22,89( (8,310 7% 31,20(
Corporate (63,257 (2,840) (5)% (60,41) (292) — % (60,119
Total $ 544,07¢ $ (54,22) 9% $ 598,30 % 100,85¢ 20% $ 497,44!

As a percentage of revenue _ 17% 20% 18%

Refer to Note 13 to the consolidated financialestagnts for reconciliations of Adjusted EBITDA toewating income (loss) by reportable
segment.

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Search & Applications Adjusted EBITDA decreased 69$362.0 million , primarily due to the lower rene noted above, increases in
selling and marketing expense and general and astraitive expense and losses related to the atiquisif SlimWare, partially offset by the
move of CityGrid from the eCommerce segment toSbarch & Applications segment, a decrease in dostvenue and the contribution from the
acquisition of the ValueClick 0&0 website businesskhe loss from SlimWare was due to the writeedf$11.0 million of deferred revenue in
connection with its acquisition on April 1, 201shdincrease in selling and marketing expense wasaply due to an increase in online
marketing related to our B2C downloadable applicatiand About.com. The increase in general andrasimative expense was primarily due to
increases in compensation and professional feesd&brease in cost of revenue was primarily deedecrease in traffic acquisition costs driven
from lower revenue from our B2B operations.

The Match Group Adjusted EBITDA decreased 1% to4$26nillion despite higher revenue noted abovenarily due to losses related to
The Princeton Review and FriendScout24 acquisitamtshigher cost of revenue, selling and markegixgense and general and administrative
expense. The losses from The Princeton Review @eddScout24 were due to the write-off of $11.8lioml of deferred revenue in connection
with these acquisitions. The increase in cost wémee was primarily due to increases in revenueegbayments made in connection with in-app
purchases sold through Dating's mobile productshasting fees. The increase in selling and margetkpense was primarily due to an increase
in offline and online marketing. The increase img®l and administrative expense was primarilytdusn increase in compensation, partially
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offset by a $3.9 million benefit recorded in thesfiquarter of 2014 related to the expiration ef $katute of limitations for a naneome tax matte

Media Adjusted EBITDA loss increased 116% to a fis$36.7 million primarily due to increased invasint in Vimeo, the inclusion in the
prior year of a $6.3 million gain related to théesaf Newsweek in August 2013 and losses at IA@Ejlpartially offset by lower losses at Elec

eCommerce Adjusted EBITDA decreased 25% to $17l&mprimarily due to the prior year benefitingofn an $8.4 million gain on the
sale of Rezbook assets in July 2013 and the mo@aty®rid to the Search & Applications segment tigdly offset by $4.2 million in employee
termination costs in 2013 associated with the Qiiy@structuring.

Corporate Adjusted EBITDA loss increased 5% toss lof $63.3 million primarily due to higher profiessl fees.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Search & Applications Adjusted EBITDA increased 189%385.9 million , due to the higher revenue datbove, partially offset by
increases of $42.7 million in selling and marketixgpense, $16.3 million in product development espe$12.4 million in general and
administrative expense and $10.1 million in costesenue. The increase in selling and marketingese was primarily due to B2C downloadi
applications and the inclusion of The About Grdogginning September 24, 2012. The increase in foithuct development expense and general
and administrative expense was primarily due tmarease in compensation related to the inclusforhe About Group. Product development
expense was also impacted by an increase in heatdedated to B2C products. The increase in cdstevenue was primarily due to an increase
in content acquisition costs resulting from thewasition of The About Group and the inclusion ofy@rid in the Search & Applications segment,
partially offset by a decrease of $7.7 millionaffic acquisition costs driven primarily by decsed revenue from Ask.com.

The Match Group Adjusted EBITDA increased 13% t6&2 million, due to the revenue growth noted above, partidfet by increases
$21.2 million in selling and marketing expense, .42dillion in general and administrative expensk2.$ million in cost of revenue and $5.3
million in product development expense. The incegasselling and marketing expense was primariky tuincreases in television advertising and
compensation due, in part, to an increase in heed@ Meetic and various acquisitions. The inaeds general and administrative expense, cost
of revenue and product development expense weareagly due to various acquisitions. General and iatitnative expense was also impacted by
an increase in compensation of $5.6 million at @@tresulting from an increase in headcount antbdrigrofessional fees primarily due to
transaction fees related to the Meetic tender offer

Media Adjusted EBITDA loss decreased 56% to a &dskl7.0 million primarily due to the closure oktNewsweek print business and the
inclusion of a $6.3 million gain related to theesaf Newsweek in August 2013.

eCommerce Adjusted EBITDA decreased 27% to $22lilomreflecting the move of CityGrid to the Sea&tApplications segment and

$4.2 million in employee termination costs ass@&datith the CityGrid reorganization that took plaeehe second quarter of 2013. Partially
offsetting the decrease in Adjusted EBITDA wasiticdusion of an $8.4 million gain on the sale of RRezbook assets in July 2013.
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Operating income (l0ss)

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Search & Applications $ 311,34 $ (28,77) B)%n $ 340,11° $ 34,47 11% $ 305,64«
The Match Group 240,91: 12,757 6 % 228,15! 27,98¢ 114% 200,16¢
Media (40,177 (19,374 (939% (20,809 26,09¢ 56% (46,902
eCommerce (1,257 (1,196  (1,979% (61) (15,389 NM 15,32z
Corporate (132,09)) (10,88¢) (9% (121,209 29,45¢ 2C% (150,667)
Total $ 378,72 % (47,479 1% $ 426,20 $ 102,63! 32% $ 323,56¢

As a percentage of revenue ___ 12% 14% 12%

NM = not meaningfu

For the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the year ended December 31, 2013

Operating income in 2014 decreased from 2013 dtleetdecrease of $54.2 million in Adjusted EBITD@ésdribed above and increases of
$6.6 million in non-cash compensation expense & /illion in depreciation, partially offset bydeases of $13.7 million in acquisitioelatec
contingent consideration fair value adjustments$&h@ million in amortization of intangibles. Thecrease in noeash compensation expense
primarily due to the issuance of equity awardsesite prior year. The decrease in acquisition-edlabntingent consideration fair value
adjustments was principally related to changeswnd's forecast of earnings and operating metribe. decrease in amortization of intangibles
was primarily related to lower amortization expeas®ating due to certain intangible assets becgrilly amortized, and the inclusion in the
prior year of a $3.4 million impairment charge asated with an indefinite-lived intangible assdated to the CityGrid restructuring, partially
offset by amortization of intangibles related toeet acquisitions.

At December 31, 2014, there was $113.2 millionroegognized compensation cost, net of estimatddifares, related to all equity-based
awards, which is expected to be recognized ovezighted average period of approximately 2.4 years.

For the year ended December 31, 2013 compared to the year ended December 31, 2012

Operating income in 2013 increased from 2012 dukddncrease of $100.9 million in Adjusted EBITDAscribed above and a decrease of
$32.6 million in non-cash compensation expensdigiigroffset by increases of $24.1 million in artipation of intangibles and $6.4 million in
depreciation. The decrease in non-cash compensatfmmse was primarily a result of the vestingesfain awards and an increase in the number
of awards forfeited as compared to the prior y&he increase in amortization of intangibles wamprily related to the acquisition of
The About Group and a $3.4 million impairment cleaagsociated with an indefinite-lived intangibleedgelated to the CityGrid restructuring in
the second quarter of 2013.

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Equity in losses of
unconsolidated affiliates $(9,697) $(3,082) (47)% $(6,615) $18,730 74% $(25,345)

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates iri20ncreased from 2013 primarily due to the in@asin the second quarter of 2014 of a ¢
million other-than-temporary impairment charge ore @f our investments following the sale of a m&jasf the investee's assets, partially offset
by reduced losses associated with our equity mathastments.

Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates il 2@ecreased from 2012 due to the inclusion in 2ZB2non-cash charge of $18.6 million
related to the re-measurement of the carrying vefumir equity method investment in The Daily Beadfair value in connection with our
acquisition of a controlling interest.
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I nterest expense

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest expense $(56,314) $(22,718) (68)% $(33,596) $(27,447) (446)% $(6,149)

Interest expense in 2014 increased from 2013 pifyrdue to the 4.875% Senior Notes due NovembelBQ8 (the "2013 Senior Notes"),
which were issued on November 15, 2013.

Interest expense in 2013 increased from 2012 pifyrdue to the 4.75% Senior Notes due DecembeR@82 (the "2012 Senior Notes"),

which were issued on December 21, 2012, and th& 3ehior Notes.

Other (expense) income, net

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Other (expense) income, net $(42,787) $(73,096) NM $30,309 $33,321 NM $(3,012)

Other expense, net in 2014 includes $66.6 millloather-than-temporary impairment charges relaiezbttain cost method investments as a
result of our assessment of the near-term prospect$inancial condition of the investees, parialifset by a $19.4 million gain related to the
sale of Urbanspoon and $3.6 million in gains reldtethe sale of several long-term investments.

Other income, net in 2013 includes $35.9 milliomains related to the sale of long-term investmeradially offset by a $5.0 million other-
than-temporary impairment charge related to am@thod investment.

Other expense, net in 2012 includes an $8.7 mitidwer-than-temporary impairment charge relatea lingterm marketable equity secur
as a result of the Company's assessment of thetereaprospects of the issuer in relation to theesty and duration of its unrealized loss.

Partially offsetting the impairment charge is $8\#lion in interest income and a $3.3 million gaélated to the sale of certain marketable equity
securities.

Incometax provision

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)
Income tax provision $(35,372) NM NM $(134,502) NM NM $(119,215)

In 2014, the Company recorded an income tax pravir continuing operations of $35.4 million , whirepresents an effective income tax
rate of 13%. The effective rate is lower than ttadgory rate of 35% due principally to a reductioriax reserves and related interest due to the
expiration of statutes of limitations for fedemtome taxes for 2001 through 2009 of $88.2 milkod foreign income taxed at lower rates,
partially offset by the largely unbenefited loss@sated with the write-downs of certain of the @amy's investments and non-deductible
goodwill associated with the sale of Urbanspoor2dh3, the Company recorded an income tax provigipnontinuing operations of $134.5
million , which represents an effective income ttate of 32%. The effective rate is lower than tagugory rate of 35% due primarily to foreign
income taxed at lower rates. In 2012, the Compangrded an income tax provision for continuing agiens of $119.2 million which represent
an effective income tax rate of 41%. The effectate is higher than the statutory rate of 35% diragrily to an increase in reserves for and
interest on reserves for income tax contingeneaesluation allowance on the deferred tax asseteteby an other-than-temporary impairment
charge and state taxes, partially offset by forégome taxed at lower rates.

The Company recognizes interest and, if applicgi@ealties related to unrecognized tax benefitekénincome tax provision. Included in the
income tax provision for continuing operations aitontinued operations for the year ended DeceBihe2014 is a $58.5 million and a $19.7
million benefit, respectively, net of related deéet taxes, from the decrease in interest on unreped tax benefits as a result of the expiration of
statutes of limitations described above. Includethe
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income tax provision for continuing operations aifetontinued operations for the year ended Dece®he2013 is a $4.8 million expense and a
$1.4 million expense, respectively, net of reladeterred taxes, for interest on unrecognized taefiis. At December 31, 2014 and 2013, the
Company has accrued $2.8 million and $133.0 millioespectively, for the payment of interest. AcBaber 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company
has accrued $2.9 million and $5.1 million , resiwety, for penalties.

The Company is routinely under audit by federaltestlocal and foreign authorities in the areanobime tax. These audits include
questioning the timing and the amount of income @dexdlictions and the allocation of income and dedlnstamong various tax jurisdictions. The
Internal Revenue Service is currently auditing@oenpany’s federal income tax returns for the yeaded December 31, 2010 through 2012.
Various other jurisdictions are open to examinafmnvarious tax years beginning with 2006. Incamnees payable include reserves considered
sufficient to pay assessments that may result #wamination of prior year tax returns. Changeegerves from period to period and differences
between amounts paid, if any, upon the resolutfaudits and amounts previously provided may beendt Differences between the reserves
income tax contingencies and the amounts oweddZtmpany are recorded in the period they becoroaikn

The statutes of limitations for federal income wf@ the years 2001 through 2009 expired on JuB014. As a result, previously
unrecognized tax benefits, including interest,liagp$374.8 million were recognized in the thirdagier of 2014. The income tax benefit to
continuing operations and discontinued operatioas $88.2 million and $175.7 million , respectivéljie remaining amount of $110.9 million
impacted various balance sheet accounts, prinraoitycurrent deferred tax assets, which were redbget1 00.1 million . At December 31, 2014
and 2013, the Company has unrecognized tax benafitading interest, of $33.2 million and $408.8lion , respectively. If unrecognized tax
benefits at December 31, 2014 are subsequentlgmnéced, $30.5 million, net of related deferred &agets and interest, would reduce income tax
provision for continuing operations. The Companljdwes that it is reasonably possible that its oogaized tax benefits could decrease by $8.8
million within twelve months of the current repadi date primarily due to expirations of statutesimitations; $8.4 million of which would
reduce the income tax provision for continuing agiens.

Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax

Years Ended December 31,

2014 $ Change % Change 2013 $ Change % Change 2012
(Dollars in thousands)

Earnings (loss) from
discontinued operations, net of
tax $ 174,67. NM NM $ 1,92¢ NM NM $ (9,05

Earnings from discontinued operations, net of 2014 increased from 2013 principally due to #lease of tax reserves as a result of the
expiration of the statutes of limitations for fealencome taxes for the years 2001 through 2009.
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FINANCIAL POSITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

At December 31, 2014, the Company had $990.4 milhbcash and cash equivalents, $160.6 million afk@table securities, and $1.1
billion of longterm debt. Domestically, cash equivalents primaridpsist of commercial paper rated A2/P2 or bettel AAA rated money mark
funds. Internationally, cash equivalents primacibnsist of AAA rated money market funds and timpadits. Marketable securities consist of
short-to-medium-term debt securities issued bystment grade corporate issuers and an equity $gcline Company invests in marketable debt
securities with active secondary or resale markegnsure portfolio liquidity to fund current optoas or satisfy other cash requirements as
needed. The Company also invests in equity seesids part of its investment strategy. Long-terbt densists of $500.0 million in 2013 Senior
Notes due November 30, 20:$500.0 million in 2012 Senior Notes due December2022 and $80.0 million in Liberty Bonds due Septer 1,
2035.

At December 31, 2014, $220.4 million of the $ 99@iflion of cash and cash equivalents was helcheyGompany's foreign subsidiaries. If
needed for our U.S. operations, most of the caditash equivalents held by the Company's foreitysidiaries could be repatriated; however,
under current law, would be subject to U.S. fedaral state income taxes. We have not providedrfpisach tax because the Company currently
does not anticipate a need to repatriate thesesfimfihance our U.S. operations and it is the Caamy{s intent to indefinitely reinvest these funds
outside of the U.S.

In summary, the Company's cash flows attributadleontinuing operations are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 424,04t $ 410,96. $ 354,52
Net cash used in investing activities (439,79)) (79,76)) (341,30)
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (80,98() 17,66¢ 33,52(

Net cash provided by operating activities attriblggto continuing operations consists of earningess from continuing operations adjus
for non-cash items, including non-cash compensatiqense, depreciation, amortization of intangildsset impairment charges, excess tax
benefits from stock-based awards, deferred incaxest equity in earnings or losses of unconsolilatfdliates, acquisition-related contingent
consideration fair value adjustments, an adjustmadated to gains on sales of long-term investmerssets and a business, and the effect of
changes from working capital activities. Net casbvgled by operating activities attributable to ttoning operations in 2014 consists of earnings
from continuing operations of $234.6 million , astiments for non-cash items and gains on sale®osiaess and long-term investments totaling
$272.2 million , partially offset by a decreasenfravorking capital activities of $82.7 million . Ag§tments for non-cash items and gains on sales
of a business and long-term investments primaolysest of $76.9 million of deferred income taxe86$ million of impairments related to long-
term investments, $61.2 million of depreciation9 $million of non-cash compensation expense amddillion of amortization of intangibles,
partially offset by $45.0 million of excess tax léits from stock-based awards, a $ 21.9 millioruatiient related to gains on sales of a business
and long-term investments and $13.4 million in dsitjon-related contingent consideration fair vahdgustments. The deferred income tax
provision primarily relates to a net reduction efaetred tax assets related to the expiration d¢fitgts of limitations for federal income taxes foe t
years 2001 through 2009. The changes from worlamital activities consist of a decrease in incoaxe$ payable of $94.5 million and an
increase in accounts receivable of $19.9 millipartially offset by an increase in deferred reveoiu$30.1 million . The decrease in income taxes
payable is primarily due to a net reduction inraserves related to the expiration of statutegfdtions for federal income taxes for the years
2001 through 2009, partially offset by current y@ome tax accruals in excess of current yeamectax payments. The increase in accounts
receivable is primarily due to revenue growth attéédvisor. The increase in deferred revenue istdugcreases related to acquisitions and
growth in subscription revenue at The Match Growog ®imeo.

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2014 includes acquisiiof $259.4 million , which include the
ValueClick O&O website businesses, The Princetovid®e SlimWare and FriendScout24, purchases of atalie debt securities, net of
proceeds from maturities and sales of $154.2 millioapital expenditures of $57.2 million primaniglated to the internal development of
software to support our products and servicesjrarestments of $24.3 million , partially offset $$8.4 million of proceeds from the sales of a
business and long-term investments.

Net cash used in financing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2014 includes $97.3ianilrelated to the payment of cash
dividends to IAC shareholders, $33.2 million foe furchase of noncontrolling interests in Tindet Eteetic, $8.1 million in contingent
consideration payments related principally to tB&@2Twoo acquisition, partially offset by excess enefits from stock-based awards of $45.0
million and the return of $12.4 million of fundsltéén escrow related to the Meetic tender offer.
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Net cash provided by operating activities attriblgeto continuing operations in 2013 consists ofiegs from continuing operations of
$281.8 million , adjustments for non-cash items gaiths on sales of long-term investments and assteding $110.8 million , and an increase
from working capital activities of $18.4 milliorAdjustments for non-cash items and gains on sdllEsg-term investments and assets primarily
consist of $59.8 million of amortization of intabtgs, $58.9 million of depreciation and $53.0 roilliof noneash compensation expense, parti
offset by a $50.6 million adjustment related tongadn sales of long-term investments and asset$2h@ million of excess tax benefits from
stock-based awards. The changes from working dautivities consist of an increase in income tgagable of $49.2 million and a decrease in
accounts receivable of $10.4 million , partiallyseft by an increase of $34.6 million in other assEhe increase in income taxes payable is due to
current year income tax accruals in excess of ntgrear income tax payments. The decrease in atsoeceivable is primarily due to a $14.8
million decrease in accounts receivable relatddeavsweek's transition to a digital only publicatemd our services agreement with Google; the
related receivable from Google declined from $12bilion at December 31, 2012 to $112.3 milliorDetcember 31, 2013, mainly due to lower
year-overyear December revenue. These decreases werelpartisét by an increase in accounts receivablelettus due to higher revenue. 7
increase in other assets is primarily due to areamse in short-term and long-term production catst®rtain of our media businesses that are
capitalized as the television program, video enfi being produced.

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2013 includes acquieaiof $40.4 million, which include Twoo,
capital expenditures of $80.3 million , which ind&$23.6 million related to the purchase of a 5@¥ership interest in an aircraft and
investments of $51.1 million, partially offset bgtrmaturities and sales of marketable debt seesré@nd sales of long-term investments and asset
of $95.6 million .

Net cash provided by financing activities attrithiéato continuing operations in 2013 includes $8Gfillion in proceeds from the issuance
of our 2013 Senior Notes and excess tax benefits ftock-based awards of $32.9 million , partiaffiget by $264.2 million for the repurchase of
4.5 million shares of common stock at an average mf $50.63 per share, $79.2 million relatechi® payment of cash dividends to IAC
shareholders, $71.5 million held in escrow reldtethe Meetic tender offer, $67.9 million for therphase of noncontrolling interests in Meetic
and a subsidiary of HomeAdvisor, $15.8 million fbe payment of our 2002 Senior Notes, which weee dhnuary 15, 2013, and $7.4 million of
debt issuance costs associated with our 2013 SHboies.

Net cash provided by operating activities attriblegto continuing operations in 2012 consists ohiegs from continuing operations of
$169.8 million , adjustments for non-cash item$204.2 million , partially offset by a decreasenfraorking capital activities of $19.5 million .
Adjustments for non-cash items primarily consigt$&5.6 million of non-cash compensation expef5,5 million of depreciation, $37.1
million of deferred income taxes, $35.8 millionashortization of intangibles and $25.3 million gfuity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates,
which includes a non-cash charge of $18.6 millmretmeasure the carrying value of our investment in Dagy Beast to fair value in connecti
with our acquisition of a controlling interest, pally offset by $57.1 million of excess tax bengfirom stock-based awards. The deferred income
tax provision primarily relates to the vesting e$tricted stock units, the exercise of stock ogtiand the accelerated payment of 2012 bonuses.
The changes from working capital activities priryaconsist of an increase of $31.0 million in agots receivable, an increase of $23.0 million

in other assets, a decrease in accounts payabletiaer current liabilities of $14.4 million , paaity offset by an increase in income taxes payable
of $47.0 million . The increase in accounts redeli@as primarily due to the growth in revenue at$h & Applications earned from our services
agreement with Google; the related receivable f@oogle was $125.3 million and $105.7 million at Beber 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.
While The Match Group and HomeAdvisor businessgeganced growth, the accounts receivable at thesmesses are principally credit card
receivables and, accordingly, are not significanelation to the revenue of these businessesinEhease in other assets is primarily related to a
receivable for insurance claims related to Hurric&andy, an increase in capitalized downloadalsleBdoolbar costs and an increase in short-
term production costs at certain of our Media besses that are capitalized as the television pmagraeo or film is being produced. The
decrease in accounts payable and other curreiiitiegbis primarily due to a decrease in accrusblyee compensation and benefits, partially
offset by an increase in accrued advertising exp€eRse decrease in accrued employee compensatidoearefits is due to the payment of the
2012 and 2011 bonuses in 2012. The increase ined@dvertising expense is primarily due to aneiase in advertising expenditures at Sear
Applications. The increase in income taxes payabiieie to current year income tax accruals in exoésurrent year income tax payments.

Net cash used in investing activities attributableontinuing operations in 2012 includes acquisgiof $400.3 million, primarily related to
The About Group, capital expenditures of $51.2iomllprimarily related to the internal developmehseftware to support our products and
services and investments of $36.1 million , pdstiaffset by net maturities and sales of marketalalbt securities and sales of long-term
investments and assets of $156.2 million .

Net cash provided by financing activities attrithiéato continuing operations in 2012 includes $8Gfillion in proceeds from the issuance

of our 2012 Senior Notes, proceeds related tosthgaince of common stock, net of withholding tar€$262.8 million , and excess tax benefits
from stock-based awards of $57.1 million , paryiaffset by $691.8 million
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for the repurchase of 15.5 million shares of commtock at an average price of $46.09 per share2$68ion related to the payment of cash
dividends to IAC shareholders, $11.0 million of tissuance costs associated with our 2012 SenitesNmd $10.8 million in contingent
consideration payments principally related to tA@22OkCupid acquisition. Included in the proceelated to the issuance of common stock are
proceeds of $284.1 million from the exercise ofraats to acquire 11.7 million shares of IAC commstatk, some of which were exercised on a
cashless or net basis. The weighted average giiig® of the warrants was $28.40 per share.

The Company's principal sources of liquidity asedash and cash equivalents and marketable sesiagtiwell as its cash flows generated
from operations. The Company has a $300.0 millewolving credit facility, which expires on Deceml®dr, 2017, and is available as an additi
source of financing. At December 31, 2014, thereewm outstanding borrowings under the revolviregitrfacility.

The Company anticipates that it will need to makpital and other expenditures in connection withdbvelopment and expansion of its
operations. The Company expects that 2015 capiperelitures will be higher than 2014. At DecembkrZ)14, IAC had 8.6 million shares
remaining in its share repurchase authorizatio& hAay purchase shares over an indefinite peridonaf on the open market and in privately
negotiated transactions, depending on those fal@snanagement deems relevant at any particutag,tincluding, without limitation, market
conditions, share price and future outlook. On Babyr 3, 2015, IAC declared a quarterly cash dividen$0.34 per share of common and Class B
common stock outstanding payable on March 1, 20 E5dackholders of record on February 15, 2015. feudieclarations of dividends are subject
to the determination of IAC's Board of Directors.

The Company believes its existing cash, cash elpritsaand marketable securities, together witkxisected positive cash flows generated
from operations and available borrowing capacitgierrits $300.0 million revolving credit facility,ilvbe sufficient to fund its normal operating
requirements, including capital expenditures, shaperchases, quarterly cash dividends, and imgesind other commitments for the foreseeable
future. Our liquidity could be negatively affectied a decrease in demand for our products and ssrvidhhe Company may make acquisitions and
investments that could reduce its cash, cash dgunittsaand marketable securities balances andesuli,ithe Company may need to raise
additional capital through future debt or equityafincing to provide for greater financial flexibjlitAdditional financing may not be available at all
or on terms favorable to us. The indentures gowgrtiie 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes restrict ouitglbd incur additional indebtedness in the
event we are not in compliance with the maximunetage ratio of 3.0 to 1.0. In addition, the terrhthe revolving credit facility require that we
maintain a leverage ratio of not more than 3.0.00ahd restrict our ability to incur additional etitedness. As of December 31, 2014, the
Company was in compliance with all of these covéman
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND COMMERCIAL COMMITMENTS

Payments Due by Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than
Contractual Obligations @ 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total
(In thousands)
Long-term debt? $ 52,12t % 104,25 $ 579,87! $ 715,25( % 1,451,50
Operating lease8 32,25¢ 57,82¢ 41,11 191,10t 322,30:
Purchase obligatiori8 10,71( 521 — — 11,23:
Total contractual cash obligations $ 95,09( $ 162,59¢ $ 620,98( $ 906,35¢ $ 1,785,03

(@

(b)

©

(d)

The Company has excluded $30.9 million in unrecogphitax benefits and related interest from thestabbve as we are unable to ma
reasonably reliable estimate of the period in whigse liabilities might be paid. For additiongbimation on income taxes, see Note 3
to the consolidated financial statements.

Represents contractual amounts due including isit
The Company leases land, office space, data cktiities and equipment used in connection witkragions under various operating
leases, many of which contain escalation claudes.dJompany is also committed to pay a portion efrtlated operating expenses under

a data center lease agreement. These operatingsegoare not included in the table above.

The purchase obligations primarily include advargscommitments, which commitments are reducibleeaninable such that these
commitments can never exceed associated revenaen@aningful amount.

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than

Other Commercial Commitments®© 1 Year Years Years 5 Years Total

(In thousands)

Letters of credit and surety bonds $ 127¢  $ — 3 738 1437 $ 2,78¢

(e)

Commercial commitments are funding commitments t¢oatd potentially require registrant performance¢hie event of demands by third
parties or contingent events.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

Other than the items described above, the Compaay dot have any off-balance sheet arrangemeinfsecember 31, 2014.
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IAC'S PRINCIPLES OF FINANCIAL REPORTING

IAC reports Adjusted EBITDA as a supplemental measo U.S. generally accepted accounting princifl@é®AP"). This measure is one
of the primary metrics by which we evaluate thefgrenance of our businesses, on which our interndblets are based and by which manage
is compensated. We believe that investors showld hecess to, and we are obligated to providesahee set of tools that we use in analyzing our
results. This non-GAAP measure should be consideraddition to results prepared in accordance B#AP, but should not be considered a
substitute for or superior to GAAP results. IAC eadors to compensate for the limitations of the-8@AP measure presented by providing the
comparable GAAP measure with equal or greater prende and descriptions of the reconciling itemdpiting quantifying such items, to derive
the non-GAAP measure. We encourage investors tmiesthe reconciling adjustments between the GAAdPreon-GAAP measure, which we
discuss below.

Definition of IAC's Non-GAAP Measure

Adjusted EBITDA is defined as operatingdme excluding: (1) non-cash compensation expe@3etepreciation; and (3) acquisition-related
items consisting of (i) amortization of intangilslesets and goodwill and intangible asset impairsnand (ii) gains and losses recognized on
changes in the fair value of contingent consideratirrangements. We believe this measure is ukefahalysts and investors as this measure
allows a more meaningful comparison between ouppaance and that of our competitors. Moreover,mmanagement uses this measure
internally to evaluate the performance of our besias a whole and our individual business segniEmsabove items are excluded from our
Adjusted EBITDA measure because these items areasimin nature, and we believe that by excludiegé items, Adjusted EBITDA
corresponds more closely to the cash operatingrieogenerated from our business, from which cajpitedstments are made and debt is serviced.
Adjusted EBITDA has certain limitations in thatibes not take into account the impact to IAC'sst&int of operations of certain expenses.

Non-Cash Expenses That Are Excluded From IAC's NoiGAAP Measure

Non-cash compensation expense consists principally of expense assocwitbdhe grants, including unvested grants assumedquisitions
of stock options, restricted stock units ("RSUs') @performance-based RSUs. These expenses araidan gash, and we include the related
shares in our fully diluted shares outstandinggiite treasury method; however, performance-ba&tdsRire included only to the extent the
performance criteria have been met (assuming teethe reporting period is the end of the corgimgy period). Upon the exercise of certain
stock options and vesting of RSUs and performamsed RSUs, the awards are settled, at the Complisgtetion, on a net basis, with the
Company remitting the required tax-withholding amifrtom its current funds.

Depreciation is a non-cash expense relating to our propertyeguipment and is computed using the straight-lie¢hiod to allocate the cost
of depreciable assets to operations over themastid useful lives.

Amortization of intangible assets and goodwill and intangible asset impairments are non-cash expenses relating primarily to acipms. At
the time of an acquisition, the identifiable defnlived intangible assets of the acquired compaugh as content, technology, customer lists,
advertiser and supplier relationships, are valueHaanortized over their estimated lives. Valudss assigned to acquired indefinite-lived
intangible assets, which comprise trade namesradémarks, and goodwill that are not subject toréimagion. An impairment is recorded when
the carrying value of an intangible asset or goticdaxceeds its fair value. While it is likely that will have significant intangible amortization
expense as we continue to acquire companies, Wa/bahat intangible assets represent costs intinyehe acquired company to build value
prior to acquisition and the related amortizatiod anpairment charges of intangible assets or gdbdfrapplicable, are not ongoing costs of
doing business.

Gains and losses recognized on changes in the fair value of contingent consideration arrangements are accounting adjustments to report
contingent consideration liabilities at fair valUdese adjustments can be highly variable andxale@ed from our assessment of performance
because they are considered non-operational imenatd, therefore, are not indicative of currerfuture performance or ongoing costs of doing
business.

38




Table of Contents

RECONCILIATION OF ADJUSTED EBITDA

For a reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to operaimcome (loss) by reportable segment for the yeaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and
2012, see Note 13 to the consolidated financi&tstants.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES

The following disclosure is provided to supplemtirg descriptions of IAC's accounting policies cargd in Note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements in regard to significant afgadgment. Management of the Company is requivadake certain estimates, judgments and
assumptions during the preparation of its const#linancial statements in accordance with U.8egaly accepted accounting principles. Th
estimates, judgments and assumptions impact tleeteegbamount of assets, liabilities, revenue anqmérges and the related disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities as of the datb@ftonsolidated financial statements. Actualltesould differ from those estimates. Because of
the size of the financial statement elements takvitiey relate, some of our accounting policiesestomates have a more significant impact on
our consolidated financial statements than ottWisat follows is a discussion of some of our mogmiicant accounting policies and estimates.

Business Combinations

The purchase price of each acquisition is attrithtibethe assets acquired and liabilities assumeédan their fair values at the date of
acquisition, including identifiable intangible atsthat either arise from a contractual or leggtitrior are separable from goodwill. The fair value
of these intangible assets is based on detailedtiahs that use information and assumptions pealliy management. The excess purchase price
over the net tangible and identifiable intangitdsets is recorded as goodwill.

In connection with some business combinationsCiipany has entered into contingent consideratiamgements that are determined to
be part of the purchase price. Each of these agraagts are recorded at its fair value at the tifrieepacquisition and reflected at current fair
value for each subsequent reporting period thexeafitil settled. The contingent considerationrageaments are generally based upon earnings
performance and/or operating metrics. The Compamgiglly determines the fair value of contingemsigeration using probability-weighted
analyses over the period in which the obligatioexpected to be settled, and, to the extent tlrmgement is long-term in nature, applies a
discount rate that appropriately captures theasdociated with the obligation. Significant changgerecasted earnings or operating metrics
would result in a significantly higher or lower faialue measurement. Determining fair value is ieh#ly difficult and subjective and can have a
material impact on our consolidated financial staats. The changes in the remeasured fair valtleeafontingent consideration arrangements
each reporting period are recognized in “Generdlaiministrative expense” in the accompanying clichestied statement of operations. See Note
7 for a discussion of contingent considerationragesnents.

Recoverability of Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets,igfhconsist of the Company's acquired trade nameédrademarks, are assessed annually
for impairment as of October 1 or more frequerttign event occurs or circumstances change thatdaaoke likely than not reduce the fair value
of a reporting unit or the fair value of an indé#nlived intangible asset below its carrying vallibe 2014, 2013 and 2012 annual assessments
identified no material impairments. The value obdwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets ti@subject to annual assessment for impairment
is $1.8 billion and $405.2 million, respectively,ecember 31, 2014.

The Company has the option to qualitatively assadsther it is more likely than not that the faitueof a reporting unit is less than its
carrying value. If the Company elects to perforgualitative assessment and concludes it is not titaly than not that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value faidher assessment of that reporting unit's goddsvilecessary; otherwise goodwill must be tested
for impairment using a twetep process. The first step involves a compaddine estimated fair value of each of the Compargporting units 1
its carrying value, including goodwill. In perforng the first step, the Company determines thevidire of a reporting unit using both an income
approach based on discounted cash flows ("DCF"eamarket approach based on multiples of earngt&rmining fair value requires the
exercise of significant judgment with respect teesal items, including judgment about the amourt #ming of expected future cash flows and
appropriate discount rates. The expected cash lmed in the DCF analyses are based on the Corspangt recent budget and, for years be
the budget, the Company's estimates, which aralbaspart, on forecasted growth rates. The distmtes used in the DCF analyses are intendec
to reflect the risks inherent in the expected faitteish flows of the respective reporting units.uligstions used in the DCF analyses, including the
discount rate, are assessed annually based oegbging units' current results and forecast, dsagemacroeconomic and industry specific
factors. The discount rates used in the Companyiga goodwill impairment assessment ranged frof 1819% in 2014 and 13% to 25% in
2013. If the estimated fair value of a reportingt exceeds its carrying value, goodwill of the repa unit is not impaired and the second step of
the impairment test is not necessary. If the cagyialue of a reporting unit exceeds its estiméa@dvalue, then the second step of the goodwill
impairment test must be performed. The secondddtée goodwill impairment test compares the ingbliair value of the reporting unit's
goodwill with its carrying value to measure the amioof impairment, if any. The implied fair valuégoodwill is determined in the same manner
as the amount of goodwill recognized in a busimessbination. In other words, the estimated faiueadf the reporting unit is allocated to all of
the assets and liabilities of that unit (includanyy unrecognized intangible assets) as if the tigpunit had been acquired
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in a business combination and the fair value ofréperting unit was the purchase price paid. Ifdheying value of the reporting unit's goodwiill
exceeds the implied fair value of that goodwill,ispairment is recognized in an amount equal tbe¢kaess.

Any impairment charge that might result in the fetwould be determined based upon the excess ahtinging value of goodwill over its
implied fair value using the second step of thedaimpent analysis that is described above but, ynesent, would not be expected to be lower
the excess of the carrying value of the reportinig aver its fair value. A primary driver in the BGraluation analyses and the determination o
fair values of the Company's reporting units isebBmate of future revenue and profitability. Geig, the Company would expect an impairn
if forecasted revenue and profitability are no lengxpected to be achieved and as a result, thdaragaralue of a reporting unit(s) exceeds its fair
value. This assessment would be based, in pam, thgoperformance of its businesses relative tgétydhe Company's assessment of
macroeconomic factors, industry and competitiveaalyics and the strategies of its businesses in msgpio these factors.

At October 1, 2014, the date of our most recentiahimpairment assessment, the fair value of the2my's reporting units exceed their
carrying values. The fair value of the Search & Bggiions reporting unit currently exceeds its gang value by approximately 15%. If operating
results vary significantly from anticipated resuftgure, potentially material, impairments of gadland/or indefinite-lived intangible assets
could occur. To illustrate the magnitude of a ptggimpairment charge relative to future changesstimated fair value, had the estimated fair
value of Search & Applications been hypotheticédler by 20% as of October 1, 2014, the carryingeaf Search & Applications would have
exceeded its fair value by approximately $100 wnilli

The Company also has the option to qualitativebeas whether it is more likely than not that thevalue of an indefinite-lived intangible
asset is less than its carrying value. If the Campects to perform a qualitative assessment andlgdes it is not more likely than not that the
fair value of an indefinite-lived intangible assetess than its carrying value, the fair valug¢hef asset does not need to be determined; otherwise
the fair value of the indefinite-lived intangibleset must be determined and compared to its cgmglue. If the carrying value of the intangible
asset exceeds its fair value, an impairment loescisgnized in an amount equal to that excessestimates of fair value of indefinite-lived
intangible assets are determined using an avomelty DCF valuation analysis. Significant judgneimtherent in this analysis include the
selection of appropriate royalty and discount ratesd estimating the amount and timing of expeatéuaré cash flows. The discount rates used in
the DCF analyses are intended to reflect the figharent in the expected future cash flows gendrayethe respective intangible assets. The
royalty rates used in the DCF analyses are basea aip estimate of the royalty rates that a mar&dtgipant would pay to license the Company's
trade names and trademarks. Assumptions used avtiided royalty DCF analyses, including the distoate and royalty rate, are assessed
annually based on the actual and projected cauls flelated to the asset, as well as macroeconamitaustry specific factors. The discount
rates used in the Company's annual indefinite-livggairment assessment ranged from 10% to 20%1d 28d 10% to 18% in 2013, and the
royalty rates used ranged from 1% to 9% in both42&id 2013.

Recoverability of Long-Lived Assets

We review the carrying value of all long-lived asseomprising property and equipment and defilived intangible assets, for impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances irdicat the carrying value of an asset may not teverable. The carrying value of a long-lived
asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the surheofihdiscounted cash flows expected to result ffemuse and eventual disposition of the asset. If
the carrying value is deemed not to be recoverablénpairment loss is recorded equal to the amoymthich the carrying value of the long-
lived asset exceeds its fair value. During 2013Gbenpany wrote off certain capitalized softwaretsoshis charge is more fully described above
in "Results of Operations for the Years Ended Ddma31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 - Depreciation." Theyizey value of property and equipment
and definite-lived intangible assets is $389.2iomllat December 31, 2014.

Income Taxes

We recognize liabilities for uncertain tax posisdmased on the two-step process. The first stepasaluate the tax position for recognition
by determining if the weight of available evideredicates it is more likely than not that the piositwill be sustained on audit, including
resolution of related appeals or litigation proesssf any. The second step is to measure theenefl as the largest amount which is more than
50% likely of being realized upon ultimate settletnd his measurement step is inherently difficald aequires subjective estimations of such
amounts to determine the probability of varioussifle outcomes. We consider many factors when atialyand estimating our tax positions i
tax benefits, which may require periodic adjustraemtd which may not accurately anticipate actuedaunes. At December 31, 2014, the
Company has unrecognized tax benefits of $33.2amjlincluding interest. Changes to reserves fremiogl to period and differences between
amounts paid, if any, upon resolution of issuesacin audits and amounts previously provided neagnhterial. Differences between the reserves
for income tax contingencies and the amounts owettido Company are recorded in the period they bedamown.
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The Company accounts for income taxes under théditiamethod, and deferred tax assets and liagdiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betwesefirtancial statement carrying values of existiagets and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are une@sising enacted tax rates in effect for the yreahich those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. A valuatitowaince is provided on deferred tax assets ifdieermined that it is more likely than not tha
deferred tax asset will not be realized. As of Delger 31, 2014, the balance of deferred tax liaddjtnet, is $390.4 million. Actual income taxes
could vary from these estimates due to future chairgincome tax law, state income tax apportiortroethe outcome of any review of our tax
returns by the various tax authorities, as welleésal operating results of the Company that vagyificantly from anticipated results.

Stock-Based Compensation

As disclosed in Note 12 to the consolidated finahsiatements, the Company estimated the fair \@fls&ck options issued in 2014, 2013
and 2012 using a Black-Scholes option pricing medtd the following weighted average assumptioisk-free interest rates of 1.5%, 1.0% and
0.6%, respectively, a dividend yield of 1.5%, 2.88@ 1.2%, respectively, volatility factors of 3128% and 31%, respectively, based on the
historical stock price volatilities of IAC and a ighted average expected term of the stock optibdsBoyears, 6.2 years and 4.4 years,
respectively. For stock options, including unvesttxtk options assumed in acquisitions, the vafukeostock option is measured at the grant
(or acquisition date, if applicable) at fair valed expensed over the remaining vesting term. fipadt on non-cash compensation expense for
the year ended December 31, 2014, assuming a I#asein the risk-free interest rate, a 10% iner@athe volatility factor and a one year
increase in the weighted average expected terfmeabitstanding options would be an increase of B8#l®n, $11.9 million and $5.1 million,
respectively. The impact on non-cash compensatiparee for the year ended December 31, 2014, asguai% increase in the dividend yield
of the outstanding options, would be a decrea$d df million. The Company also issues RSUs andpednce-based RSUs. For RSUs issued,
the value of the instrument is measured at thetglae as the fair value of IAC common stock angeesed as non-cash compensation expense
over the vesting term. For performance-based RS&lged, the value of the instrument is measurdtkagrant date as the fair value of IAC
common stock and expensed as non-cash compeneaépthe vesting term when the performance tametsonsidered probable of being
achieved.

Marketable Securities and Long-term Investments

At December 31, 2014, marketable securities con$isthort-to-mediunterm debt securities issued by investment gradeocate issuers a
an equity security. Long-term investments inclugeity securities accounted for under the equity @rat methods and marketable equity
securities. The Company invests in marketable setrities with active secondary or resale mariceémsure portfolio liquidity to fund current
operations or satisfy other cash requirements edate The Company also invests in marketable eqatyrities as part of its investment strategy.

Marketable securities are adjusted to fair valusheparter, and the unrealized gains and lossesf e, are included in accumulated other
comprehensive income as a separate componentrehsiiders' equity. The specific-identification nedhs used to determine the cost of
securities sold and the amount of unrealized ganuslosses reclassified out of accumulated otheipeehensive income into earnings. The
Company recognizes unrealized losses on marketableities in net earnings when the losses arendieted to be other-than-temporary.
Additionally, the Company evaluates each cost ajuity method investment for indicators of impairrhen a quarterly basis, and recognizes an
impairment loss if the decline in value is deen®lé other-than-temporary. Future events may resutconsideration of the nature of losses as
other-than-temporary and market and other fact@g cause the value of the Company's investmerediine.

The Company employs a methodology that consideasadle evidence in evaluating potential other-themporary impairments of its
investments. Investments are considered to be regharhen a decline in fair value below the amodizest basis is determined to be other-than-
temporary. Such impairment evaluations include apatnot limited to: the length of time and extenivhich fair value has been less than the cost
basis, the current business environment, includorgpetition; going concern considerations suchrastial condition, the rate at which the
investee utilizes cash and the investee's abdiybtain additional financing to achieve its busgplan; the need for changes to the investee's
existing business model due to changing businedsegulatory environments and its ability to susbelty implement necessary changes; and
comparable valuations. During 2014 and 2013, tha@my recognized impairment charges of $66.6 miliiad $5.0 million, respectively, rela
to cost method investments and during 2012, thegaomrecorded an impairment charge of $8.7 miltelated to one of its longerm marketabl
equity securities. These charges are more fullgritesd above in "Results of Operations for the ¥damded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 -
Other (expense) income, net."

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

For a discussion of a recent accounting pronounngrsee Note 2 — Summary of Significant Accountit@licies in the notes to
consolidated financial statements.
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Iltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure About Market Risk
Interest Rate Risk

The Company's exposure to market risk for chang@gérest rates relates primarily to the Compaog&h equivalents, marketable debt
securities and long-term debt.

The Company invests its excess cash in certainegsivalents and marketable debt securities, wtietsist of money market funds and
short-to-medium-term debt securities issued bystment grade corporate issuers. The Company emaloyethodology that considers available
evidence in evaluating potential other-than-temporapairments of its investments. Investmentscamsidered to be impaired when a decline in
fair value below the amortized cost basis is deigethto be other-than-temporary. If a decline in¥alue is determined to be other-than-
temporary, an impairment charge is recorded inetirearnings and a new cost basis in the investimestablished. During 2014, 2013 and 2(
the Company did not record any other-than-tempdrapairment charges related to its cash equivakemtsmarketable debt securities.

Based on the Company's total investment in market#bt securities at December 31, 2014, a 106 Ipaént increase or decrease in the
level of interest rates would, respectively, deseear increase the fair value of these securife®2hl million. Such potential increase or decrease
in fair value is based on certain simplifying asgtions, including a constant level and rate of deaiurities and an immediate across-the-board
increase or decrease in the level of interest raibsno other subsequent changes for the remaifdéie period. Conversely, since almost all of
the Company's cash and cash equivalents balar§396f4 million is invested in short-term fixed @riable rate money market instruments, the
Company would also earn more (less) interest incougeto such an increase (decrease) in interest rat

At December 31, 2014, the Company's outstandingidei.1 billion , all of which pays interest atdd rates. If market rates decline, the
Company runs the risk that the related requiredrats on the fixed rate debt will exceed thosedasemarket rates. A 100 basis point increase
or decrease in the level of interest rates wowdslpectively, decrease or increase the fair valukeofixed-rate debt by $60.5 million. Such
potential increase or decrease in fair value iethas certain simplifying assumptions, includingpastant level and rate of fixed-rate debt for all
maturities and an immediate across-the-board isereadecrease in the level of interest rates motbther subsequent changes for the remainder
of the period.

Equity Price Risk
The Company is exposed to market risk as it rekatetanges in the market value of its investments.

At December 31, 2014, the Company has two invedirierequity securities of publicly traded compani€hese available-for-sale
marketable equity securities are reported at faline’ based on their quoted market prices with amgalized gain or loss, net of tax, included as a
component of "Accumulated other comprehensive losffie accompanying consolidated balance sheststments in equity securities of
publicly traded companies are exposed to signifilantuations in fair value due to the volatility the stock market. During 2014 and 2013, the
Company did not record any other-than-temporaryainmpent charges related to its available-for-sadekatable equity securities. During 2012,
the Company recorded an $8.7 million other-thangemary impairment charge related to one of itslabée-for-sale marketable equity securities.
The other-than-temporary impairment charge is ithetlin "Other (expense) income, net" in the accaipg consolidated statement of
operations.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

The Company conducts business in certain foreigkets, primarily in the European Union. The Compaiyimary exposure to foreign
currency exchange risk relates to investmentsreida subsidiaries that transact business in aifumal currency other than the U.S. Dollar,
primarily the Euro and British Pound Sterling. Hawge the exposure is mitigated since the Compasygkaerally reinvested cash flows from
international operations in order to grow the basses. The statements of operations of these atitgmal businesses are translated into U.S.
dollars at the average exchange rates in eachcapj#iperiod. To the extent the U.S. dollar stieegs against foreign currencies, the translation
of these foreign activities result in reduced rexeeand operating results. Similarly, the Compargvenue and operating results will increase for
our international operations if the U.S. dollar weas against foreign currencies. The Company setposed to foreign currency exchange risk
related to its assets and liabilities denominatea ¢urrency other than the functional currency.

The economic impact of foreign currency exchange movements on the Company is often linked toadmlity in real growth, inflation,
interest rates, governmental actions and otheoifacThese changes, if material, could cause tmep@oy to adjust its financing and operating
strategies. Foreign currency exchange gains asédase not material to the Company's earning8id,2013 and 2012. As foreign currency
exchange rates change, translation of the statesméoperations of the Company's internationaliesses into U.S. dollars affects year-over-year
comparability of operating results. HistoricallpetCompany has not hedged foreign currency exchasigebecause cash flows from internatis
operations are generally reinvested locally. Howgtve Company periodically reviews its strategytedging foreign currency exchange risks.
The
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Company's objective in managing its foreign curyeexchange risk is to minimize its potential expesto the changes that foreign currency
exchange rates might have on its earnings, caeals fmd financial position.
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Item 8. Consolidated Financial Statements and $plementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of IACHAttiveCorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsimeet of IAC/InterActiveCorp and subsidiarieea®ecember 31, 2014 and 2013,
and the related consolidated statements of opast@mmprehensive income, shareholders' equitycasid flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2014. Our audits aldodad the financial statement schedule listed énltldex at Item 15(a). These financial
statements and financial statement schedule amrespensibility of the Company's management. Ospoasibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and schedule basedraudiis.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstials of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBlqUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &audbtain reasonable assurance about whethéntdrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on Bliasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting princiged and significant estimates made by managenenglaas evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our apdigide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referr@dove present fairly, in all material respedts,donsolidated financial position of
IAC/InterActiveCorp and subsidiaries as of Decenttier2014 and 2013, and the consolidated resuttseaf operations and their cash flows for
each of the three years in the period ended Deae®ih@014, in conformity with U.S. generally actsgpaccounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedulen considered in relation to the basic cons@idinancial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the infation set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@snited States),
IAC/InterActiveCorp's internal control over finaatireporting as of December 31, 2014, based oeriiestablished in the Internal Control-
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee ohSpong Organizations of the Treadway Commissidi&framework) and our report dated
February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP

New York, New York
February 27, 2015

45




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

December 31,

2014 2013

(In thousands, except share data)

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 990,40 $ 1,100,44.
Marketable securities 160,64 6,00
Accounts receivable, net of allowance of $12,43F $8,540, respectively 236,08t 207,40t
Other current assets 166,74: 161,53(

Total current assets 1,553,88. 1,475,38!
Property and equipment, net 302,45¢ 293,96:
Goodwill 1,754,92 1,675,32
Intangible assets, net 491,93t 445,33t
Long-term investments 114,98: 179,99(
Other non-current assets 56,69: 164,68!
TOTAL ASSETS $ 427487 $ 4,234,68

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable, trade $ 81,16: $ 77,65!
Deferred revenue 194,98 158,20t
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 397,80: 351,03t

Total current liabilities 673,95¢ 586,89
Long-term debt 1,080,001 1,080,001
Income taxes payable 32,63t 416,38
Deferred income taxes 409,52¢ 320,74t
Other long-term liabilities 45,19: 58,39
Redeemable noncontrolling interests 40,42° 42,86

Commitments and contingencies

SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock $.001 par value; authorized 1,6000@@0shares; issued 252,170,058 and 250,982,07

shares and outstanding 78,356,057 and 76,404, 568sshespectively 252 251
Class B convertible common stock $.001 par valuthaized 400,000,000 shares; issued 16,157,499
shares and outstanding 5,789,499 shares 16 16
Additional paid-in capital 11,415,61 11,562,56
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 325,11t (32,739
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (87,700 (13,046
Treasury stock 184,182,001 and 184,945,527 shagsctively (9,661,35) (9,830,31)
Total IAC shareholders' equity 1,991,95! 1,686,73
Noncontrolling interests 1,18¢ 42 ,66"
Total shareholders' equity 1,993,14 1,729,40.
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 427487 $ 4,234,68

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

Revenue
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of depreciation shovpassely below)

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Total operating costs and expenses
Operating income
Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates
Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net
Earnings from continuing operations before incomes
Income tax provision
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations, fiéto
Net earnings
Net loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrollinigrests
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders

Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations
Diluted earnings per share from continuing operegio
Basic earnings per share
Diluted earnings per share

Dividends declared per share

Non-cash compensation expense by function:
Cost of revenue
Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense

Total non-cash compensation expense

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financete8ients are an integral part of these statements.
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Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands, except per share data)

$ 3,109,54 $ 3,022,98 $ 2,800,93
883,171 1,003,72. 991,68t
1,124,43 956,41( 894,43t
443,61 378,14: 386,46
160,51! 139,75¢ 116,52t
61,15¢ 58,90¢ 52,48
57,92¢ 59,84! 35,77:
2,730,82 2,596,78. 2,477,36
378,72 426,20: 323,56¢
(9,697) (6,615 (25,349
(56,319 (33,59¢) (6,149
(42,78°) 30,30¢ (3,012
269,92 416,30: 289,06
(35,379 (134,50 (119,21
234,55 281,79¢ 169,84
174,67. 1,92¢ (9,057
409,23l 283,72! 160,79¢
5,64: 2,05¢ (1,530
$ 41487. $ 285,78 $ 159,26¢
$ 2.8t $ 3.4C $ 1.9t
$ 271 % 321 % 1.81
$ 49 $ 34z % 1.8¢
$ 46¢ $ 32¢ % 1.71
$ 1.1 $ 0.9¢ $ 0.72
$ 94¢ $ 286 $ 6,21¢
2,14¢ 2,81: 4,76(
49,86: 42,48’ 68,64(
6,67¢ 4,84: 6,00¢
$ 59,63 $ 53,00 $ 85,62¢




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Net earnings $ 409,23( % 283,72 $ 160,79t
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax:

Change in foreign currency translation adjustment (66,872 7,358 71z

Change in unrealized gains and losses of avaifaipleale securities (net of tax

benefits of $1,852, $3,050 and $3,981 in 2014, 20182012, respectively) (8,59) 15,44 (19,82)
Total other comprehensive (loss) income (75,465 22,79¢ (19,119
Comprehensive income 333,76! 306,52 141,68:
Comprehensive loss (income) attributable to nomodlimtg interests 6,454 (2,619 (2,147
Comprehensive income attributable to IAC sharehslde $ 340,21¢  $ 304,90° $ 139,54(

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financete8ients are an integral part of these statements.
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Balance as of December 31, 2011
Net (loss) earnings for the year ended Decembe2 RI2
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax

Non-cash compensation expense

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmpt
vesting of restricted stock units and other, net of
withholding taxes

Income tax benefit related to the exercise of stations,
vesting of restricted stock units and other

Issuance of common stock upon the exercise of wesra
Dividends
Purchase of treasury stock

Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests

Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interesttatr
value

Transfer from noncontrolling interests to redeeraabl
noncontrolling interests

Other

Balance as of December 31, 2012

Net (loss) earnings for the year ended Decembe2 (13
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Non-cash compensation expense

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmpt
vesting of restricted stock units and other, net of
withholding taxes

Income tax benefit related to the exercise of stufions,
vesting of restricted stock units and other

Dividends
Purchase of treasury stock
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests

Purchase of noncontrolling interests

Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interesis a
noncontrolling interests to fair value

Transfer from noncontrolling interests to redeeraabl
noncontrolling interests

Other

Balance as of December 31, 2013

IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

IAC Shareholders' Equity

Class B
Convertible
Common Common
Stock $.001 Stock $.001
Par Value Par Value
(Accumulated  Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Deficit) Other Total IAC Total
Noncontrolling Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Treasury Shareholders' Noncontrolling  Shareholders'
Interests i Shares i Shares Capital Earnings Loss Stock Equity Interests Equity
(In thousands)
$ 50,34¢ $234 234,10. $16 16,151 $11,280,17 $ (477,78 $ (12,449 $(8,885,14) $ 1,905,04 $ 55,09: $ 1,960,141
(1,119 — - - — — 159,26¢ — — 159,26t 2,64¢ 161,91«
207 = = = = —| = (19,726 = (19,72 404 (19,327
— — —_- = — 82,807 — — — 82,80° 2,81¢ 85,62¢
— 5 515; — — (16,509 — — — (16,499 — (16,499
— — - - — 49,967 — - — 49,96° — 49,967
— 12 11,72¢ — — 284,09¢ — — — 284,11 — 284,11:
— — - - — (68,907 — - — (68,90:) — (68,907
— — - — — . — — (716,07) (716,077) — (716,075
(2,95 — - = — — — — — — — —
4,278 — - — — (4,275) — — — (4,275 — (4,275
10,04¢ — - = — — — — — — (10,049 (10,049
(2,68]) = - = — = = = = — 99t 998
$ 58,12¢ $251 250,98: $16 16,151 $11,607,36 $ (318,51 $ (32,169 $(9,601,21) $ 1,655,72 $ 51,90% $ 1,707,63!
(3,269 — —_- - — — 285,78¢ — — 285,78¢ 1,20% 286,98¢
2,30% — —_- = — — — 19,12¢ — 19,12¢ 1,367 20,49(
— — —_- - — 51,88¢ — — — 51,88! 1,122 53,00¢
— — - - — (9,89<) — — 2 (9,897) — (9,897)
— — - - — 30,98¢ — — — 30,98¢ — 30,98¢
— — - = — (77,830 — — — (77,830 — (77,830
— — - — — . — — (229,10) (229,10) — (229,10:)
(55,576 — - = — — — — — — — —
_ _ _ _ . — — — — (12,377) (12,371)
40,63¢ — - - — (42,947 — — — (42,94 2,30¢ (40,639
2,874 = = = — = = = = (2,879 (2,872
(2,242 = - = — 3,007 — — — 3,007 — 3,007
$ 42,861 $251 250,98: $16 16,151 $11,562,56 $  (32,73) $ (13,04¢) $(9,830,31) $ 1,686,73! $ 42,66¢ $ 1,729,40.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY (Con tinued)

IAC Shareholders' Equity

Class B
Convertible
Common Common
Stock $.001 Stock $.001
Par Value Par Value
(Accumulated Accumulated
Redeemable Additional Deficit) Other Total IAC Total
Noncontrolling Paid-in Retained Comprehensive  Treasury Shareholders’ Noncontrolling ~ Shareholders'
Interests $ Shares  $ Shares Capital Earnings Loss Stock Equity Interests Equity
(In thousands)
Net (loss) earnings for the year ended Decembe2@ll4  $ (5,649 $— — — $ — $ 41487 $ — $ — $ 41487 $ — $ 414,87
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax (914) — - — — — — (74,65¢) — (74,65¢) 102 (74,557)
Non-cash compensation expense 55¢ — —_- = — 59,36: — — — 59,36: (28¢€) 59,07¢

Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodmgpt
vesting of restricted stock units and other, net of
withholding taxes — 1 1,18¢ — — (167,34() — — 168,96° 1,62¢ — 1,62¢

Income tax benefit related to the exercise of stfions,

vesting of restricted stock units and other — — — — 37,451 — — — 37,45 — 37,451
Dividends — — - — — (39,557 (57,020 — — (96,577) — (96,577)
Noncontrolling interests related to acquisitions 17,88¢ — —_- = — — — — — — — —
Purchase of redeemable noncontrolling interests (41,749 — - — — — — — = = — —
Purchase of noncontrolling interests — — — — — — — — — (50,66%) (50,667)
Adjustment of redeemable noncontrolling interesis a

noncontrolling interests to fair value 27,75( — - - — (37,119 — — — (37,119 9,36¢ (27,750
Other (329) — - — — 252 — — — 258 — 252
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 40,42 $252 252,17( $16 16,157 $11,415,61 $ 325,11t $ (87,700 $(9,661,35) $ 1,991,95 $ 1,18¢ $ 1,993,14:

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financete8ients are an integral part of these statements.
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IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash flows from operating activities attributable b continuing operations:
Net earnings

Less: earnings (loss) from discontinued operatinaspf tax

Earnings from continuing operations

Adjustments to reconcile earnings from continuipgmtions to net cash provided by operating awivit

attributable to continuing operations:
Non-cash compensation expense
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards
Deferred income taxes
Acquisition-related contingent consideration faatue adjustments
Impairment of long-term investments
Equity in losses of unconsolidated affiliates
Gains on sales of long-term investments, assets dsiness
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of effetecquisitions:
Accounts receivable
Other assets
Accounts payable and other current liabilities
Income taxes payable
Deferred revenue
Other, net
Net cash provided by operating activities attributdle to continuing operations
Cash flows from investing activities attributable b continuing operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketaliles#eurities
Purchases of marketable debt securities
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments, sisset a business
Purchases of long-term investments
Other, net
Net cash used in investing activities attributabléo continuing operations
Cash flows from financing activities attributable t continuing operations:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Principal payments on long-term debt
Purchase of treasury stock
Dividends
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding taxes
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards
Purchase of noncontrolling interests
Funds returned from (transferred to) escrow foetitetender offer
Acquisition-related contingent consideration paytaen
Debt issuance costs
Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitiesttributable to continuing operations

Total cash (used in) provided by continuing operatins
Total cash used in discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casratnts
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
409,23( % 283,72 % 160,79t
174,67: 1,92¢ (9,05))
234,55 281,79¢ 169,84
59,63¢ 53,00t 85,62t
61,15¢ 58,90¢ 52,48
57,92¢ 59,84! 35,77:
(44,95) (32,89)) (57,10
76,86¢ (9,096 37,07¢
(13,367 343 —
66,60: 5,26¢ 8,68t
9,697 6,61¢ 25,34¢
(21,94¢) (50,609) (3,57¢)
(19,919 10,42: (30,99)
(3,60¢6) (34,637) (22,99)
5,20¢ (76€) (14,389
(94,49;) 49,19: 47,01(
30,14: (5,842 1,86¢
20,54¢ 19,40: 19,86¢
424,04¢ 410,96: 354,52
(259,39) (40,439 (400,259
(57,237 (80,31Y) (51,207
21,64« 12,50: 195,50:
(175,82¢) — (53,957)
58,38t 83,09: 14,61¢
(24,339 (51,080 (36,099
(3,047 (3,529 (9,927
(439,79 (79,767) (341,30)
— 500,00( 500,00(
— (15,84 —
— (264,21, (691,83()
(97,339 (79,189 (68,167
1,60¢ (5,077) 262,84:
44,957 32,89: 57,10:
(33,16%) (67,94 (4,89
12,35¢ (71,51%) —
(8,109) (25€) (10,787)
(389) (7,399 (11,009
(905) (3,787) 244
(80,980) 17,66¢ 33,52(
(96,72¢) 348,86t 46,74(
(145) (1,877 (3.47%)
(13,169 3,47¢ 2,55¢
(110,039 350,46 45,82«



Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 1,100,44 749,97 704,15:

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 99040! $ 1,10044 § 749,97

The accompanying Notes to Consolidated FinancatkeStents are an integral part of these statements.

51




IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION

IAC is a leading media and Internet company. Then@any is organized into four segments: The Matabu@ywhich consists of dating,
education and fithess businesses with brands subtatch, OkCupid, Tinder, The Princeton Review BrailyBurn; Search & Applications, whi
includes brands such as About.com, Ask.com, Dietigrtom and Investopedia; Media, which includesrasses such as Vimeo, Electus, The
Daily Beast and CollegeHumor; and eCommerce, winicludes HomeAdvisor and ShoeBuy. IAC's brands@oducts are among the most
recognized in the world, reaching users in over @ntries.

All references to "IAC," the "Company," "we," "ouot "us" in this report are to IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Search & Applications

Our Search & Applications segment consists of: Websincluding Ask.com, About.com, CityGrid, Diatiary.com, Investopedia,
PriceRunner and Ask.fm, through which we providarek services, content and other services; andiégifns, including our direct-toensume
downloadable applications operations ("B2C"), cantpership operations ("B2B"), SlimWare and Apalon.

The Match Group

The Match Group segment consists of our North Acaediating businesses (which include Match, ChewiBeople Media, OkCupid,
Tinder and other dating businesses operating wittérlnited States and Canada), our Internaticstahgl businesses (which include Meetic,
Tinder and all other dating businesses operatingjadriof the United States and Canada) and oudating businesses, The Princeton Review,
Tutor.com and DailyBurn.

Through the brands and businesses within our datilsgesses, we are a leading provider of subsamibased and ad-supported online
personals services in North America, Europe, LAtimerica, Australia and Asia. We provide these smwithrough websites and applications that
we own and operate.

The Match Group's non-dating businesses consishefPrinceton Review and Tutor.com, which togefitevide a variety of educational
services including in-person and online test pragiam and tutoring, as well as DailyBurn, a healtld fitness property that provides streaming
fitness and workout videos across a variety offpiats, including iOS, Android, Xbox and Internetagted television platforms.

Media

Our Media segment consists primarily of Vimeo, Hisand The Daily Beast.

Vimeo operates a global video sharing platformcf@ators and their audiences. Vimeo offers videators simple, professional-grade tools
to share, distribute and monetize content onlind,@ovides viewers with a clutter-free environmienivatch content across a variety of Internet-
enabled devices.

Electus is an integrated multimedia entertainmentis that unites producers, creators, advertigedsdistributors to produce video content
for distribution across a variety of platforms lretUnited States and various jurisdictions abr&ettus also operates Electus Digital, which
consists of the following websites and propertiésliegeHumor.com, Dorkly.com and WatchLOUD.com; Yabe channels WatchLOUD,

Nuevon and Hungry; and Big Breakfast (a productiompany).

The Daily Beast is a website dedicated to newsngentary, culture and entertainment that curategpabtishes existing and original online
content from its own roster of contributors in theited States.

eCommerce

Our eCommerce segment consists principally of Hodwgor and ShoeBuy.
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HomeAdvisor is a leading online marketplace forchatg consumers with home services professionalsarunited States, as well as in
France and the Netherlands under various brands.

ShoeBuy is a leading Internet retailer of footwaad related apparel and accessories.
NOTE 2—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The Company prepares its consolidated financi#stants in accordance with U.S. generally accegtedunting principles ("GAAP").
Basis of Consolidation and Accounting for Investmets

The consolidated financial statements include to@ants of the Company, all entities that are wholWned by the Company and all
entities in which the Company has a controllin@finial interest. Intercompany transactions andw@aaschave been eliminated.

Investments in the common stock or in-substancemmmmstock of entities in which the Company hasathiéity to exercise significant
influence over the operating and financial mattérthe investee, but does not have a controllingritial interest, are accounted for using the
equity method. Investments in the common stock-aubstance common stock of entities in which thex@any does not have the ability to
exercise significant influence over the operatind financial matters of the investee are accouftedsing the cost method. Investments in
companies that IAC does not control, which areim¢the form of common stock or in-substance comistook, are also accounted for using the
cost method. The Company evaluates each cost auty etethod investment for impairment on a quaytédsis and recognizes an impairment
loss if a decline in value is determined to be ethan-temporary. Such impairment evaluations ide|ibut are not limited to: the current business
environment, including competition; going conceomsiderations such as financial condition, the aat@hich the investee utilizes cash and the
investee's ability to obtain additional financimgachieve its business plan; the need for chamgé®tinvestee's existing business model due to
changing business and regulatory environmentstarability to successfully implement necessary geanand comparable valuations. If the
Company has not identified events or changes gugistances that may have a significant adverseteffethe fair value of a cost method
investment, then the fair value of such cost methedstment is not estimated, as it is impractieabldo so.

Accounting Estimates

Management of the Company is required to makeicegttimates, judgments and assumptions duringréggaration of its consolidated
financial statements in accordance with GAAP. Tretamates, judgments and assumptions impact goetesl amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue and expenses and the related disclosemntifigent assets and liabilities. Actual resultsld differ from those estimates.

On an ongoing basis, the Company evaluates itmat&s and judgments including those related tofdinealues of marketable securities
and other investments; the recoverability of godidavid indefinite-lived intangible assets; the wsdiffes and recovery of definitésed intangible
assets and property and equipment; the carryingeva accounts receivable, including the deterronatf the allowance for doubtful accounts
and revenue reserves; the fair value of acquisiteited contingent consideration; the liabilities uncertain tax positions; the valuation
allowance for deferred income tax assets; andaie/élue of and forfeiture rates for stock-basedrms, among others. The Company bases its
estimates and judgments on historical experieteégiecasts and budgets and other factors thaldhgpany considers relevant.

Revenue Recognition
The Company recognizes revenue when persuasiveregdf an arrangement exists, services are rehderaerchandise is delivered to

customers, the fee or price charged is fixed cerdeihable and collectability is reasonably assubeferred revenue is recorded when payments
are received in advance of the Company's rendefisgrvices or delivery of merchandise.
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Search & Applications

The Search & Applications segment's revenue cangigtcipally of advertising revenue, which is gexted primarily through the display of
paid listings in response to search queries, asasdtom display advertisements appearing on @ssites and to a lesser extent, the syndicati
search results generated by Ask-branded destinsgiarch websites. The Company obtains the subetamjority of its paid listings from third-
party providers, primarily Google Inc. ("GooglePaid listings are priced on a price per click basid when a user submits a search query and
then clicks on a Google paid listing displayedasgonse to the query, Google bills the advertissrgurchased the paid listing directly and shares
a portion of the fee charged to the advertiser thithCompany. The Company recognizes paid liséswgmue from Google when it delivers the
user's click. In cases where the user's click iegted due to the efforts of a third-party disttils, the Company recognizes the amount due from
Google as revenue and records the revenue shatkesrpayment obligation to the third-party distititr as traffic acquisition costs.

Search & Applications also generates revenue fralpsaiption fees, which is recognized over the teofithe applicable subscriptions
(which range from one to two years) and from sefespps and in-app purchases, which is recognizttedime of the sale.

The Match Group

Revenue of the dating businesses is derived pafigifrom subscription fees for subscription-basetine personals and related services.
Subscription fee revenue is recognized over thradaf the applicable subscriptions, which primarédpge from one to six months. Deferred
revenue at the dating businesses is $117.9 mélieh$116.5 million at December 31, 2014 and 2G&3pectively. The dating businesses also
earn revenue from online advertising, which is ggiped when an ad is displayed, and the purchaaddsbn or premium features, which is
recognized based on usage.

The Princeton Review and Tutor's revenue consigtsapily of fees received for in-person and onliast preparation classes, access to
online test preparation materials and individugditing services. Fees from classes and accesdiite onaterials are recognized over the period of
the course and the period of the online accesgectisely. Tutoring fees are generally collectedhie form of subscription fees that entitle the
subscriber to a certain number of tutoring sessiwes a certain period of time. These fees aregrized over the term of the subscription based
on usage.

DailyBurn's revenue consists primarily of subsdoiptfee revenue, which is recognized over the tdomthe applicable subscriptions, which
range from one to twelve months.

Media

Revenue of businesses included in this segmerrisrgted primarily through media production, supfions and advertising. Media
production revenue is recognized when the prodndti@vailable for the customer to broadcast oit®ttsubscription fee revenue is recognized
over the terms of the applicable subscriptionsclvisire one month or one year, and advertising tevenrecognized when an ad is displayed or
over the period earned.

eCommerce

HomeAdvisor's lead acceptance revenue is genesatbdecognized when an in-network home serviceepeibnal is delivered a consumer
lead. HomeAdvisor's membership subscription revésgenerated through subscription sales to seprigiessionals and is deferred and
recognized over the terms of the memberships, wdnietone month, three months, or gear. HomeAdvisor's website hosting revenue isrded
and recognized over the period of the hosting agesg.

ShoeBuy's revenue consists of merchandise sates;ad by incentive discounts and sales returnsisaretognized when delivery to the
customer has occurred. Delivery is considered t@ loacurred when the customer takes title and asstine risks and rewards of ownership,
which is on the date of shipment. Accruals for me¢al merchandise are based on historical experi@iipping and handling fees billed to
customers are recorded as revenue. The costsassbwaiith shipping goods to customers are recoadezbst of revenue.
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Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and shortitgestments, with maturities of less than 9Ysdaom the date of purchase.
Domestically, cash equivalents primarily consist@fmercial paper rated A2/P2 or better and AA&dahoney market funds. Internationally,
cash equivalents primarily consist of AAA rated rapmarket funds and time deposits.

Marketable Securities

At December 31, 2014, marketable securities con$isthort-to-medium-term debt securities issuedhlvgstment grade corporate issuers
and an equity security. The Company invests in etaide debt securities with active secondary @leemarkets to ensure portfolio liquidity to
fund current operations or satisfy other cash reguents as needed. The Company also invests iretaaitk equity securities as part of its
investment strategy. All marketable securitiesdassified as available-for-sale and are reportédiavalue. The unrealized gains and losses on
marketable securities, net of tax, are includegcicumulated other comprehensive income as a segamaiponent of shareholders' equity. The
specific-identification method is used to deterntime cost of securities sold and the amount ofalized gains and losses reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive income into easning

The Company employs a methodology that consideasadle evidence in evaluating potential other-themporary impairments of its
investments. Investments are considered to be regharhen a decline in fair value below the amodizest basis is determined to be other-than-
temporary. Factors considered in determining whedHess is other-than-temporary include the lemfttime and extent to which fair value has
been less than the amortized cost basis, the fimatandition and near-term prospects of the issared whether it is not more likely than not that
the Company will be required to sell the securifobe the recovery of the amortized cost basisciwvhiay be maturity. If a decline in fair value
determined to be other-than-temporary, an impaitrolkarge is recorded in current earnings and aausivbasis in the investment is established.

Certain Risks and Concentrations

A substantial portion of the Company's revenueeisved from online advertising, the market for whis highly competitive and rapidly
changing. Significant changes in this industry lmermyes in advertising spending behavior or in enstdouying behavior could adversely affect
our operating results. Most of the Company's ordideertising revenue is attributable to a servaggeement with Google, which expires on
March 31, 2016. Our services agreement requiresstbaomply with certain guidelines promulgated®gogle. Subject to certain limitations,
Google may unilaterally update its policies anddglines, which could require modifications to, colgbit and/or render obsolete certain of our
products, services and/or business practices, wiuiohd be costly to address or otherwise have aarad effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. For the yeaded December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , revennedefrom Google is $1.4 billion , $1.5
billion and $1.4 billion, respectively. This revenue is earned by the Iessies comprising the Search & Applications segmemiounts receivab
related to revenue earned from Google totaled $ltdlion and $112.3 million at December 31, 20bd 2013 , respectively.

The Company's business is subject to certain eskisconcentrations including dependence on thirtspachnology providers, exposure to
risks associated with online commerce securityaadit card fraud.

Financial instruments, which potentially subjea ompany to concentration of credit risk, consisharily of cash and cash equivalents
and marketable securities. Cash and cash equisaeaimaintained with financial institutions and ar excess of Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation insurance limits.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at amounts due demtomers, net of an allowance for doubtful acceant revenue reserves. Accounts
receivable outstanding longer than the contragiagient terms are considered past due. The Congeagmines its allowance by considering a
number of factors, including the length of time@aats receivable are past due, the Company's peldss history, the specific customer's ab
to pay its obligation to the Company and the coodiof the general economy and the customer's tndushe Company writes off accounts
receivable when they become uncollectible.
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The Company also maintains allowances to resemnediential credits issued to customers or otheemae adjustments. The amounts of these
reserves are based, in part, on historical expegien

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment, including significant impgrments, are recorded at cost. Repairs and mairterwsts are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation is computed using the straight-linehoe over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Estimated
Asset Category Useful Lives
Buildings and leasehold improvements 31to 39 Years
Computer equipment and capitalized software 2to 3 Years
Furniture and other equipment 3to 12 Years

The Company capitalizes certain internal use saéwasts including external direct costs utilizedléveloping or obtaining the software
and compensation for personnel directly associatt#dthe development of the software. Capitalizaiid such costs begins when the preliminary
project stage is complete and ceases when thecpigjsubstantially complete and ready for itsndied purpose. The net book value of capital
internal use software is $36.9 million and $30.9iamn at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Business Combinations

The purchase price of each acquisition is attrithtibethe assets acquired and liabilities assumeédan their fair values at the date of
acquisition, including identifiable intangible atsthat either arise from a contractual or leggtitrior are separable from goodwill. The fair value
of these intangible assets is based on detailedtiahs that use information and assumptions pealliy management. The excess purchase price
over the net tangible and identifiable intangitdsets is recorded as goodwiill.

In connection with some business combinationsCii@pany has entered into contingent consideratiamgements that are determined to
be part of the purchase price. Each of these agraagts are recorded at its fair value at the tifrieepacquisition and reflected at current fair
value for each subsequent reporting period thereafitil settled. The contingent considerationrageaments are generally based upon earnings
performance and/or operating metrics. The Compamgiglly determines the fair value of contingemsigeration using probability-weighted
analyses over the period in which the obligatioexpected to be settled, and, to the extent tlemgement is long-term in nature, applies a
discount rate that appropriately captures theagdociated with the obligation. Significant changgerecasted earnings or operating metrics
would result in a significantly higher or lower faialue measurement. Determining fair value is ieh#ly difficult and subjective and can have a
material impact on our consolidated financial staats. The changes in the remeasured fair valtleeafontingent consideration arrangements
each reporting period are recognized in “Generdlaiministrative expense” in the accompanying clichestied statement of operations. See Note
7 for a discussion of contingent considerationrageanents.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets

Goodwill acquired in business combinations is assigto the reporting unit(s) that is expected toeffiefrom the combination as of the
acquisition date. The Company assesses goodwilirggdinite-lived intangible assets for impairmannually as of October 1, or more frequently
if an event occurs or circumstances change thatdamore likely than not reduce the fair value aBporting unit or the fair value of an indefinite-
lived intangible asset below its carrying value.

There were no material impairment charges recoirdéie three year period ended December 31, 200@cfober 1, 2014, the date of our
most recent annual impairment assessment, thedie of the Company's reporting units exceed tteirying values. The fair value of the
Search & Applications reporting unit currently egds its carrying value by approximately 15% . léxgiing results vary significantly from
anticipated results, future, potentially materiadpairments of goodwill and/or indefinite-lived artgible assets could occur. To illustrate the
magnitude of a potential impairment charge relatd/&iture changes in estimated fair value, hacestenated fair value of Search & Applications
been hypothetically
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lower by 20% as of October 1, 2014, the carryingeaf Search & Applications would have exceedsdair value by approximately $100
million .

The Company has the option to qualitatively asedsther it is more likely than not that the faitueof a reporting unit is less than its
carrying value. If the Company elects to perforgualitative assessment and concludes it is not tilaly than not that the fair value of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value famdher assessment of that reporting unit's goddsvitecessary; otherwise, the fair value of the
reporting unit has to be determined and if they@agrvalue of a reporting unit's goodwill exceetdsiimplied fair value, an impairment loss equal
to the excess is recorded. The Company also hasptitn to qualitatively assess whether it is mikely than not that the fair value of an
indefinite-lived intangible asset is less tharcasrying value. If the Company elects to perforgualitative assessment and concludes it is not
more likely than not that the fair value of an ifidite-lived intangible asset is less than its gang value, the fair value of the asset does netine
to be determined; otherwise, the fair value ofitteefinitedived intangible asset has to be determined aitd darrying value exceeds its estims
fair value, an impairment loss equal to the exéesscorded.

The Company determines the fair values of its répgunits using both an income approach basedsmodnted cash flows ("DCF") and a
market approach based on a multiple of earningerBeéning fair value requires the exercise of digant judgment with respect to several items,
including the amount and timing of expected futteish flows and appropriate discount rates. Theaggeash flows used in the DCF analyses
are based on the Company's most recent budgetaangars beyond the budget, the Company's estimatdch are based, in part, on forecasted
growth rates. The discount rates used in the DGlyaes reflect the risks inherent in the expecttaré cash flows of the respective reporting
units. Assumptions used in the DCF analyses, imotuthe discount rate, are assessed annually lmesedch reporting unit's current results and
forecast, as well as macroeconomic and industrgifspéactors. The discount rates used in the Camifsaannual goodwill impairment assessment
ranged from 13% to 19% in 2014 and 13% to 25% (320

The Company determines the fair values of its iimiteflived intangible assets using avoided roy&8li§F analyses. Significant judgments
inherent in these analyses include the selecti@ppfopriate royalty and discount rates and esimgahe amount and timing of expected future
cash flows. The discount rates used in the DCFyagalreflect the risks inherent in the expectedréutash flows generated by the respective
intangible assets. The royalty rates used in thé Bi@alyses are based upon an estimate of theyaogsdis that a market participant would pay to
license the Company's trade names and trademasksn#ptions used in the avoided royalty DCF ana)ysekiding the discount rate and royalty
rate, are assessed annually based on the actupt@radted cash flows related to the asset, asasathacroeconomic and industry specific factors.
The discount rates used in the Company's annuefinite-lived impairment assessment ranged from 10%20% in 2014 and 10% to 18% in
2013, and the royalty rates used ranged from 1984dn both 2014 and 2013 .

The Company's reporting units are consistent wstklétermination of its operating segments. Goddsviested for impairment at the
reporting unit level. See Note 13 for additiondbimation regarding the Company's method of deteingi operating and reportable segments.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangible Assets with Defité Lives

Long-lived assets, which consist of property andiggent and intangible assets with definite liva® reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying value of an asset may not be recoverdble carrying value of a long-lived asset is
not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the urdisted cash flows expected to result from the uskeeaentual disposition of the asset. If the
carrying value is deemed not to be recoverablénaairment loss is recorded equal to the amountligh the carrying value of the long-lived
asset exceeds its fair value. Amortization of defifived intangible assets is computed either straight-line basis or based on the pattern in
which the economic benefits of the asset will kadized.
Fair Value Measurements

The Company categorizes its financial instrumergasared at fair value into a fair value hierardiat prioritizes the inputs used in pricing
the asset or liability. The three levels of the falue hierarchy are:

. Level 1: Observable inputs obtained from indepehdenrces, such as quoted prices for identicatassel liabilities in active marke
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. Level 2: Other inputs, which are observabledlyeor indirectly, such as quoted prices for saniissets or liabilities in active markets,
quoted prices for identical or similar assets alilities in markets that are not active and inghiég are derived principally from or
corroborated by observable market data. The fairegaof the Company's Level 2 financial assetgpérmearily obtained from observable
market prices for identical underlying securitieattmay not be actively traded. Certain of thesersges may have different market prices
from multiple market data sources, in which casexa@rage market price is used.

. Level 3: Unobservable inputs for which there iddibr no market data and require the Company velde its own assumptions, based or
best information available in the circumstancesualhe assumptions market participants would ngeicing the assets or liabilities. See
Note 7 for a discussion of fair value measuremsrade using Level 3 input

The Company's non-financial assets, such as gdpdwéngible assets and property and equipmentigdisas equity and cost method
investments, are adjusted to fair value only wheimgairment charge is recognized. Such fair vat@asurements are based predominantly on
Level 3 inputs.

Traffic Acquisition Costs

Traffic acquisition costs consist of payments medeartners who distribute our B2B customized berzased applications, integrate our
paid listings into their websites or direct trafficour websites. These payments include amoustsdban revenue share and other arrangements.
The Company expenses these payments in the padadeéd as a component of cost of revenue in therapanying consolidated statement of
operations.

Advertising Costs

Advertising costs are expensed in the period imcli(when the advertisement first runs for produnctiosts that are initially capitalized) and
represent online marketing, including fees paidgarch engines and third parties that distributeB@C downloadable applications, and offline
marketing, which is primarily television advertigimAdvertising expense is $971.8 million , $824.iliam and $774.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.

The Company capitalizes and amortizes the costeiased with certain distribution arrangements tleguire it to pay a fee per access point
delivered. These access points are generally ifothe of downloadable applications associated withB2C operations. These fees are amor
over the estimated useful lives of the access painthe extent the Company can reasonably estianatebable future economic benefit and the
period over which such benefit will be realizedr(geally 18 months). Otherwise, the fees are clibtgexpense as incurred.

Legal Costs
Legal costs are expensed as incurred.
Income Taxes

The Company recognizes liabilities for uncertaikpasitions based on a two-step process. Thestiegtis to evaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of avallevidence indicates it is more likely than nattthe position will be sustained on audit,
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses, if any. The second step is to metisitax benefit as the largest amount which is
more than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimagttlement.

The Company accounts for income taxes under théitiamethod, and deferred tax assets and liagdiare recognized for the future tax
consequences attributable to differences betweefirtancial statement carrying values of existiagetis and liabilities and their respective tax
bases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are une@sising enacted tax rates in effect for the yrearhich those temporary differences are
expected to be recovered or settled. A valuatitowaince is provided on deferred tax assets ifdieermined that it is more likely than not tha
deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Corypanords interest, net of any applicable relatetine tax benefit, on potential income tax
contingencies as a component of income tax expense.
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Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividirigeaeings attributable to IAC shareholders bytlegghted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted egsper share reflects the potential dilution tiwatld occur if stock options and other
commitments to issue common stock were exercisedjaity awards vested resulting in the issuanaofmon stock that could share in the
earnings of the Company.

Foreign Currency Translation and Transaction Gainsand Losses

The financial position and operating results o&fgn entities whose primary economic environmebkised on their local currency are
consolidated using the local currency as the foneli currency. These local currency assets antlitied are translated at the rates of exchange as
of the balance sheet date, and local currency tevand expenses of these operations are translaé@@rage rates of exchange during the period.
Translation gains and losses are included in actatadiother comprehensive income as a componeitas€holders' equity. Transaction gains
and losses resulting from assets and liabilitieodenated in a currency other than the functionatency are included in the consolidated
statement of operations as a component of oth@e(ese) income, net.

Translation gains and losses relating to foreidities that are liquidated or substantially liquiedare reclassified out of accumulated other
comprehensive income into earnings.

Stock-Based Compensation

Stock-based compensation is measured at the gatmbedsed on the fair value of the award and isrgdly expensed over the requisite
service period. See Note 12 for a discussion othimpany's stock-based compensation plans.

Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests

Noncontrolling interests in the consolidated sulasids of the Company should ordinarily be repodadhe consolidated balance sheet
within shareholders' equity, separately from thenfany's equity. However, securities that are reddderat the option of the holder and not
solely within the control of the issuer must besslfied outside of shareholders' equity. Accordinglredemption of the noncontrolling interest
outside the control of the Company, the interestsracluded outside of shareholders' equity ingbeompanying consolidated balance sheet.

In connection with the acquisition of certain sdlmiies, management of these businesses has retimavnership interest. The Company
is party to fair value put and call arrangementhwéspect to these interests. These put andrcafigements allow management of these
businesses to require the Company to purchaseititeiests or allow the Company to acquire suctré@dts at fair value, respectively. The put
arrangements do not meet the definition of a déviganstrument as the put agreements do not pedfddnet settlement. These put and call
arrangements become exercisable by the Compantharmdunter-party at various dates over the naxtyears. No put and call arrangements
were exercised during 2014 and 2012. During 2048,df these arrangements were exercised. Thesrautgements are exercisable by the
counter-party outside the control of the Compangcakdingly, to the extent that the fair value adgh interests exceeds the value determined by
normal noncontrolling interest accounting, the eaddi such interests is adjusted to fair value wittorresponding adjustment to additional paid-in
capital. During the years ended December 31, 2@D43 and 2012 , the Company recorded adjustnoé$ia7.8 million , $40.6 million and $4.3
million , respectively, to increase these interéstair value. Fair value determinations requiightevels of judgment and are based on various
valuation techniques, including market comparabtas discounted cash flow projections.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting StandardsrBassued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") Na14209,Revenue from Contracts
with Customers, which clarifies the principles for recognizing rewe and develops a common standard for all indisstfihe new guidance is
effective for reporting periods beginning after Betber 15, 2016. Entities have the option of usititeea full retrospective or cumulative effect
approach to adopt ASU No. 2014-09. The Companwrieently evaluating the new guidance and has niotlggermined whether the adoption of
the new standard will have a material impact orcdtssolidated financial statements or the methaaboption.
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Reclassifications

Certain prior year amounts have been reclassifiesbhform to the current year presentation.

NOTE 3—INCOME TAXES

U.S. and foreign earnings from continuing operatibafore income taxes are as follows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
U.S. $ 174,79. $ 331,52( $ 214,67
Foreign 95,131 84,78 74,38
Total $ 269,92¢ $ 416,30 $ 289,06:

The components of the (benefit) provision for ineotaxes attributable to continuing operations arfobows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Current income tax (benefit) provision :

Federal $ (45,849 $ 115,25( $ 56,43¢
State (14,787 13,94¢ 9,20¢
Foreign 19,13: 14,40: 16,49¢
Current income tax (benefit) provision (41,49 143,59¢ 82,13¢
Deferred income tax provision (benefit):

Federal 74,25t (821) 40,41+
State 3,09( (2,117 1,97¢
Foreign (47¢€) (6,15¢) (5,316
Deferred income tax provision (benefit) 76,86¢ (9,096 37,07¢
Income tax provision $ 3537: $ 134,50. $ 119,21

The current income tax payable was reduced by $#8lion , $32.9 million and $57.1 million for theears ended December 31, 2014 ,

2013 and 2012, respectively, for excess tax dezhgattributable to stock-based compensation.rélaed income tax benefits are recorded as

increases to additional paid-in capital.
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Income taxes receivable (payable) and deferreddagts (liabilities) are included in the followicaptions in the accompanying consolid:
balance sheet at December 31, 2014 and 2013 :

December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Income taxes receivable (payable):

Other current assets $ 4508 % 12,24
Other non-current assets 1,47¢ 19,217
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (41,15 (16,159
Income taxes payable (32,63%) (416,38
Net income taxes payable $ (67,809 $ (401,08,
Deferred tax assets (liabilities):

Other current assets $ 17,99: $ 34,38:
Other non-current assets 1,38( 26
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities (255) (255)
Deferred income taxes (409,529 (320,74
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (39041) $ (286,591

The tax effects of cumulative temporary differenttest give rise to significant deferred tax asseid deferred tax liabilities are presented
below. The valuation allowance relates to defetaadassets for which it is more likely than notttthee tax benefit will not be realized.

December 31,
2014 2013

(In thousands)

Deferred tax assets:

Accrued expenses $ 34,65 $ 28,00¢
Net operating loss carryforwards 55,57¢ 52,33t
Tax credit carryforwards 13,58¢ 6,13¢
Stock-based compensation 69,34 69,10:
Income tax reserves, including related interest 2,245 62,85:
Cost method investments 27,58: 2,38:¢
Equity method investments 14,99¢ 13,58«
Other 10,07t 10,21:
Total deferred tax assets 228,06: 244.61:
Less valuation allowance (98,350) (62,359
Net deferred tax assets 129,71: 182,25¢
Deferred tax liabilities:

Investment in subsidiaries (378,76Y) (377,48)
Intangible and other assets (115,470() (69,53()
Other (25,887 (21,847)
Total deferred tax liabilities (520,12} (468,85/)

Net deferred tax liabilities $ (390,41) $ (286,591
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At December 31, 2014 , the Company has federabktatd net operating losses ("NOLs") of $61.5 millamd $82.6 million , respectively. If
not utilized, the federal NOLs will expire at vantimes between 2023 and 2034, and the state M@ILexpire at various times between 2015
and 2034. Utilization of federal NOLs will be subf¢o limitations under Section 382 of the InterRalvenue Code of 1986, as amended. In
addition, utilization of certain state NOLs maydabject to limitations under state laws similaBG&ction 382 of the Internal Revenue Code
of 1986. At December 31, 2014 , the Company hasdarNOLs of $107.5 million available to offsetdut income. Of these foreign NOLs, $98.1
million can be carried forward indefinitely and $9nillion will expire at various times between 20drad 2034. During 2014 , the Company
recognized tax benefits related to NOLs of $0.8iaml. At December 31, 2014 , the Company has #8llion of state capital losses. If not
utilized, the state capital losses will expire betw 2015 and 2017. Utilization of capital lossdslve limited to the Company's ability to generate
future capital gains.

At December 31, 2014 , the Company has tax cradiyforwards of $19.0 million . Of this amount, $5nillion relates to federal credits f
foreign taxes, $8.2 million relates to state taedds for research activities, and $5.6 millioratek to various state and local tax credits. Qfehe
credit carryforwards, $10.0 million can be carrdedvard indefinitely and $9.0 million will expireithin ten years.

During 2014 , the Company's valuation allowanoedased by $36.0 million primarily due to increaisesnrealized capital losses, net

operating losses, and tax credits. At Decembe@14 , the Company has a valuation allowance of388llion related to the portion of tax loss
carryforwards and other items for which it is mtikely than not that the tax benefit will not bealieed.

A reconciliation of the income tax provision to tw@ounts computed by applying the statutory fedacalme tax rate to earnings from
continuing operations before income taxes is shasvfollows:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Income tax provision at the federal statutory Gftd85% $ 94,47 $ 145,700 $ 101,17:
Change in tax reserves, net (86,15)) 1,791 17,70:¢
Foreign income taxed at a different statutory e r (8,949 (17,429 (16,240
State income taxes, net of effect of federal tanefie 7,24( 7,46¢ 7,65(
Non-deductible goodwill associated with the sal&dfanspoon 6,982 — —
Non-deductible impairments for certain cost methmestments 23,31( 1,75¢ 22¢€
Other, net (2,54 (4,79) 8,70¢
Income tax provision $ 3537. $ 134,50. $ 119,21!

No income taxes have been provided on indefiniteiiyvested earnings of certain foreign subsidiaaggregating $605.7 million at
December 31, 2014 . The amount of the unrecogrileésired income tax liability with respect to swzrnings is $141.5 million .
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A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amoaindnrecognized tax benefits, excluding interissas follows:

December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 275,81 $ 379,28. $ 351,56:
Additions based on tax positions related to theesuryear 2,15¢ 2,887 6,27¢
Additions for tax positions of prior years 1,622 3,18¢ 45,285
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (5,617 (17,119 (17,545
Settlements (5,097) (78,959 (5,349
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (238,50 (13,479 (95])
Balance at December 31 $ 30,38t $ 275,81: $ 379,28:

The Company recognizes interest and, if applicgi#ealties related to unrecognized tax benefithénincome tax provision. Included in 1
income tax provision for continuing operations ttee years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and i2@1858.5 million benefit, $4.8 million
expense and $5.2 million expense, respectivelyohietlated deferred taxes of $35.3 million , $&llion and $3.1 million , respectively, for
interest on unrecognized tax benefits. Includetthénincome tax provision for discontinued operatitor the years ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 is a $19.7 million benefit, $1.4liomlexpense and $2.8 million benefit, respectivabt of related deferred taxes of $11.7
million , $0.8 million and $1.7 million , respectly, for interest on unrecognized tax benefitsDatember 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company ha:
accrued $2.8 million and $133.0 million , respeeltjy for the payment of interest. At December 311£2and 2013, the Company has accrued
$2.9 million and $5.1 million , respectively, foemmalties.

The Company is routinely under audit by federaltestlocal and foreign authorities in the areanobime tax. These audits include
questioning the timing and the amount of income @exdlictions and the allocation of income and dedlnstamong various tax jurisdictions. The
Internal Revenue Service is currently auditing@oenpany’s federal income tax returns for the yeaded December 31, 2010 through 2012.
Various other jurisdictions are open to examinaf@mnvarious tax years beginning with 2006. Incamnees payable include reserves considered
sufficient to pay assessments that may result #wamination of prior year tax returns. Changeegerves from period to period and differences
between amounts paid, if any, upon resolution ditawand amounts previously provided may be mdtdiéferences between the reserves for
income tax contingencies and the amounts oweddZtmpany are recorded in the period they becoraekn

The statutes of limitations for federal income k@ the years 2001 through 2009 expired on JuB014. As a result, previously
unrecognized tax benefits, including interest,lioga$374.8 million were recognized in the thirdagier of 2014. The income tax benefit to
continuing operations and discontinued operatioas $88.2 million and $175.7 million , respectiveliie remaining amount of $110.9 million
impacted various balance sheet accounts, prinraoitycurrent deferred tax assets, which were redbge&1 00.1 million . At December 31, 2014
and 2013, unrecognized tax benefits, includingriegt, are $33.2 million and $408.8 million , retpely. If unrecognized tax benefits at
December 31, 2014 are subsequently recognized; $30ion , net of related deferred tax assets iatetest, would reduce income tax provision
for continuing operations. The Company believes ithia reasonably possible that its unrecognizedhenefits could decrease by $8.8 million
within twelve months of the current reporting datenarily due to expirations of statutes of limitats; $8.4 million of which would reduce the
income tax provision for continuing operations.
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NOTE 4—GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Goodwill and intangible assets, net are as follows:

December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Goodwill $ 1,754,920 % 1,675,32.
Intangible assets with indefinite lives 405,23: 376,32¢
Intangible assets with definite lives, net 86,70 69,007
Total goodwill and intangible assets, net $ 2,246,86. $ 2,120,65!

The following table presents the balance of goddwilreporting unit, including the changes in tlaerging value of goodwill, for the year
ended December 31, 2014 :

Balance at Elj((():rhe;%ge Balance at
December 31, 2013 Additions (Deductions) Translation December 31, 2014
(In thousands)

Search & Applications $ 738,06. $ 71,61¢ $ (33,510 $ (1,346 $ 774,82.
The Match Group 775,40: 72,83 (1,93)) (47,509 798,79°
Media - Connected Ventures 8,267 — — — 8,261
eCommerce:

HomeAdvisor 131,87: 20,64¢ — (1,197) 151,32:

ShoeBuy 21,71¢ — — — 21,71¢
Total eCommerce 153,59: 20,64¢ — (1,199 173,04(

Total $ 167532 % 165,09¢ $ (35,44) $ (50,05) $ 1,754,92

Additions for Search & Applications and The MatchoGp primarily relate to the acquisitions of theldClick O&0O website businesses
and The Princeton Review, respectively. DeductfonSearch & Applications principally relate to teale of Urbanspoon.

The following table presents the balance of goddwilreporting unit, including the changes in tlaerging value of goodwill, for the year
ended December 31, 2013 :

Balance at Ef(?:;e;%r;]e Balance at
December 31, 2012 Additions (Deductions) Transfers Translation December 31, 2013
(In thousands)

Search & Applications $ 723,65( $ — % (1e0) $ 1457: $ — % 738,06
The Match Group 718,73t 62,46¢ (10,67% — 4,87¢ 775,40:
Media - Connected Ventures 8,267 — — — — 8,267
eCommerce:

HomeAdvisor 111,65¢ 5,313 — 14,37: 524 131,87

CityGrid 32,12 — (3,179 (28,949 — —

ShoeBuy 21,71¢ — — — — 21,71¢
Total eCommerce 165,50: 5,317 (3,179 (14,577 524 153,59:

Total $ 1,616,15 $ 67,78. $ (14,019 $ — 3 540 $ 1,675,32.
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Additions and deductions for The Match Group pritgaelate to the acquisition of Twoo and the eBsdiment of a deferred tax asset at
Tutor arising from pre-acquisition net operatingdes, respectively. Transfers relate to the reargtion of CityGrid in the third quarter of 2013.

The December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 goodwillnzals include accumulated impairment losses of $hdlion , $28.0 million and
$11.6 million at Search & Applications, ShoeBuy &@whnected Ventures, respectively.

Intangible assets with indefinite lives are tradenes and trademarks acquired in various acquisitdhDecember 31, 2014 and 2013,
intangible assets with definite lives are as fobow

December 31, 2014

Gross Weighted-Average
Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Net (Years)
(In thousands)
Content $ 62,60: $ (36,98) $ 25,61« 4.1
Technology 54,98: (20,989 33,99: 3.2
Trade names 30,11( (21,68)) 8,42¢ 2.6
Customer lists 24,56¢ (14,050 10,51¢ 2.6
Advertiser and supplier relationships and other 13,38( (5,230 8,15( 4.0
Total $ 185,63¢ $ (98,93) $ 86,70z 3.4

December 31, 2013

Gross Weighted-Average
Carrying Accumulated Useful Life
Amount Amortization Net (Years)
(In thousands)
Content $ 47,800 $ (22,379 $ 25,42 4.0
Technology 41,69« (25,329 16,37( 2.9
Trade names 29,28 (16,42)) 12,85¢ 3.0
Customer lists 22,58¢ (13,11¢ 9,46¢ 2.5
Advertiser and supplier relationships 10,95¢ (6,070 4,88¢ 2.9
Total $ 152,31 $ (83,310 $ 69,007 3.2

At December 31, 2014 , amortization of intangildsets with definite lives for each of the next fjsgars and thereafter is estimated to be as
follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2015 $ 44,26:
2016 24,09¢
2017 13,44:
2018 4,547
2019 358

Total $ 86,70z
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NOTE 5—MARKETABLE SECURITIES

At December 31, 2014 , current available-for-sasgkatable securities are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)

Corporate debt securities $ 159,41¢ $ 34 $ (255 $ 159,19
Total debt securities 159,41¢ 34 (255) 159,19
Equity security 98 1,35:¢ — 1,451
Total marketable securities $ 159,51¢ $ 1,387 $ (25%) $ 160,64t

The unrealized loss of $0.3 million in the tablewabrelates to fifty-eight securities with an aggee fair value of $123.2 million . There are
no investments in current available-fsale marketable debt securities that have beerami@nuous unrealized loss position for longenthaelve
months as of December 31, 2014 .

All of the Company’s marketable debt securitiesrated investment grade. The gross unrealizeddams¢he marketable debt securities
relate principally to changes in interest ratexd®se the Company does not intend to sell any radrleedebt securities and it is not more likely
than not that the Company will be required to aelf marketable debt securities before recoverpaf amortized cost bases, which may be
maturity, the Company does not consider any ahisketable debt securities to be other-than-tenhprapaired at December 31, 2014 .

At December 31, 2013, current available-for-sasgkatable securities are as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
(In thousands)

Corporate debt security $ 1,00¢ $ 4 3 — % 1,00¢
Total debt security 1,004 4 — 1,00¢
Equity securities 21¢€ 4,78( — 4,99¢
Total marketable securities $ 1,220 $ 4,78, $ — 3 6,002

The unrealized gains and losses in the tables afreviecluded in "Accumulated other comprehensigs'l in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.

The contractual maturities of debt securities d@&ssas current available-for-sale at December2B14 are as follows:

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

(In thousands)

Due in one year or less $ 54,50: $ 54,45t
Due after one year through five years 104,91t 104,74:
Total $ 159,41¢ $ 159,19

The following table presents the proceeds from nitéga and sales of current and non-current avigitédr-sale marketable securities and



related gross realized gains and losses:
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December 31,

2014 2013 2012

(In thousands)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of availables&te marketable securities $ 25,22:  $ 82,16( $ 205,94
Gross realized gains 3,362 35,69: 4,07t
Gross realized losses — — 5)

Gross realized gains and losses from the matudtidssales of available-for-sale marketable seesrére included in "Other (expense)
income, net" in the accompanying consolidated state of operations.

NOTE 6—LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Long-term investments consist of:

December 31,

2014 2013

(In thousands)
Cost method investments $ 90,91 $ 137,28t
Equity method investments 10,59 22,07
Long-term marketable equity securities 7,41( 11,71
Auction rate security 6,07( 8,92(
Total long-term investments $ 114,981 $ 179,99(

Cost method investments

In 2014, the Company recorded $66.6 million of ofth@n-temporary impairment charges for certairt oeethod investments as a result of
our assessment of the near-term prospects anctf@aondition of the investees.

In 2013, the Company recorded a $5.0 million othen-temporary impairment charge related to ameshod investment. The decline in
fair value was due to the investees continued &ssegative working capital and significant debaficing.

These charges are included in "Other (expensejriacoet” in the accompanying consolidated statewfesperations.

The Company has a 20% interest in the voting comstaek of Zhenai Inc. ("Zhenai"), a leading providé online matchmaking services in
China. Our voting power is limited by a sharehoddegreement. In light of this limitation and thgrsficance of our interest relative to other
shareholders, we do not have the ability to exersignificant influence over the operating andtiicial matters of Zhenai and this investment is
accounted for as a cost method investment.

Equity method investments

In 2014 , the Company recorded a $4.2 million othan-temporary impairment charge on one of itegiments following the sale of a
majority of the investee's assets.

In 2013, the Company recorded a non-cash charg&&6 million related to the re-measurement ofceying value of our equity method
investment in The Daily Beast to fair value in ceation with the acquisition of a controlling intste

These charges are included in "Equity in lossasmobnsolidated affiliates" in the accompanying otidated statement of operations.
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Long-term marketable equity securities

The cost basis of the Company's long-term marketadplity security at December 31, 2014 is $8.7ianilvith a gross unrealized loss of
$1.2 million , which is included in "Accumulatecher comprehensive loss" in the accompanying cates@ld balance sheet. The Company
evaluated the near-term prospects of the issulation to the severity and duration of the urizeal loss. Based on the duration, less than two
months, of the unrealized loss and the Companylityadnd intent to hold this security for a reaabie period of time sufficient for an expected
recovery of fair value, the Company does not cardide security to be other-than-temporarily imgeiat December 31, 2014. The cost basis of
the Company's long-term marketable equity secsriateDecember 31, 2013 is $8.8 million , with gressealized gains of $3.0 milliancluded ir
"Accumulated other comprehensive loss" in the aq@mying consolidated balance sheet. In 2012, tepaay recorded an $8.7 million other-
than-temporary impairment charge related to ortsafecurities that was in a continuous unreallesd position for more than one year, based on
the Company's evaluation of the near-term prospEdtse issuer in relation to the severity (faitueawas 5(ercent less than cost) and duratio
the unrealized loss. The impairment charge is deduin “Other (expense) income, net” in the accamgpey consolidated statement of operations.

Auction rate security
See Note 7 for information regarding the auctide security.
NOTE 7—FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS AND FINANCIAL INSTRU MENTS

The following tables present the Company's findringtruments that are measured at fair value @carring basis:

December 31, 2014

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable Total
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Fair Value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Measurements
(In thousands)
Assets:
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 174,720 $ — % — % 174,72
Commercial paper — 388,80: — 388,80:
Time deposits — 42,91« — 42,91«
Marketable securities:
Corporate debt securities — 159,19 — 159,19
Equity security 1,451 — — 1,451
Long-term investments:
Auction rate security — — 6,07( 6,07(
Marketable equity security 7,41( — — 7,41(
Total $ 18358, $ 590,91. $ 6,07C $ 780,56:
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration arrangements $ — % — % (30,140 $ (30,140
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December 31, 2013

Quoted Market Significant
Prices in Active Other Significant
Markets for Observable Unobservable Total
Identical Assets Inputs Inputs Fair Value
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Measurements
(In thousands)
Assets:
Cash equivalents:
Money market funds $ 698,300 $ — 3 — % 698,30°
Commercial paper — 12,00( — 12,00(
Time deposits — 32,32t — 32,32t
Marketable securities:
Corporate debt security — 1,00¢ — 1,00¢
Equity securities 4,99¢ — — 4,99¢
Long-term investments:
Auction rate security — — 8,92( 8,92(
Marketable equity securities 11,71 — — 11,711
Total $ 715,01 $ 4533 $ 8,92( $ 769,26
Liabilities:
Contingent consideration arrangements $ — 8 — $ (45,829 $ (45,829

The following table presents the changes in the @oy's financial instruments that are measurediav&lue on a recurring basis using

significant unobservable inputs (Level 3):

For the Year Ended

December 31, 2014

December 31, 2013

Contingent Contingent
Auction Rate Consideration Auction Rate Consideration
Security Arrangements Security Arrangements
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ 8,92( $ (45,82¢) $ 8,10 $ (1,909
Total net gains (losses):

Included in earnings — 13,36 — (349
Included in other comprehensive (loss) income (2,850 3,02t 82C (2,445
Fair value at date of acquisition — (8,819 — (41,387
Settlements — 8,10¢ — 25€
Balance at December 31 $ 6,07C § (30,140 $ 892( % (45,829

Auction rate security

The Company's auction rate security is valued bgalinting the estimated future cash flow streambesecurity over the life of the
security. Credit spreads and other risk factorsatse considered in establishing fair value. Thet basis of the auction rate security is $10.0
million , with a gross unrealized loss of $3.9 ioifl and $1.1 million at December 31, 2014 and Ddmer81, 2013 , respectively. The unrealized
losses are included in "Accumulated other comprelreross” in the accompanying consolidated balaheet. At December 31, 2014 , the
auction rate security is rated BBB+ and mature0iB5. The Company does not consider the auctiemsetturity to be other-than-temporarily



impaired at December 31, 2014 , due to
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its high credit rating and because the Company doeitend to sell this security, and it is notrebkely than not that the Company will be
required to sell this security, before the recowvarits amortized cost basis, which may be maturity

Contingent consideration arrangements

As of December 31, 2014 , there are five contingensideration arrangements related to businesssitions. Four of the contingent
consideration arrangements have limits as to thérman amount that can be paid; the maximum contingayments related to these
arrangements is $166.9 million and the fair valfithese four arrangements at December 31, 20129%$nillion . The fair value of the one
contingent consideration arrangement without atlanithe maximum amount is $0.7 million at Decen®ier2014 . The contingent consideration
arrangements are generally based upon earningsiperfice and/or operating metrics. The Company pilynases probability-weighted analyses
to determine the amount of the gross liability, @odhe extent the arrangement is long-term inneatapplies a discount rate, which captures the
risks associated with the obligation. The numbesoagiharios in the probability-weighted analyses\weay; generally, more scenarios are prepared
for longer duration and more complex arrangem@rits.most significant contingent consideration ageanent relates to the acquisition of
Twoo.com.

The Twoo.com contingent consideration arrangensepayable in three annual installments, which bég&014. Payments are based upon
EBITDA and number of monthly active users. The 204allment of $7.4 million was paid in the secapdhrter of 2014. The remaining
aggregate amount of the 2015 and 2016 installmeyrhpnts cannot exceed €77.9 million ( $94.9 milkwDecember 31, 2014 ). The estimate of
the fair value for the Twoo.com remaining paymemds determined using a probability weighted analifsat forecasted EBITDA and monthly
active users based primarily on management's alt@nojections and strategic plans. The fair vaifithis arrangement is determined using a
discount rate of 15% .

The fair values of the contingent consideratiommgements are sensitive to changes in the forezfstsnings and/or the relevant operating
metrics and changes in discount rates. The Compangasures the fair value of the contingent congia arrangements each reporting period,
and changes are recognized in “General and admaitivg expense” in the accompanying consolidatatkstent of operations. The contingent
consideration arrangement liability at December281,4 includes a current portion of $10.7 milliovdanon-current portion of $19.6 million ,
which are included in “Accrued expenses and othereat liabilities” and “Other long-term liabilitg” respectively, in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.

Financial instruments measured at fair value only ér disclosure purposes

The following table presents the carrying value dredfair value of financial instruments measurefhia value only for disclosure purposes:

December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value
(In thousands)
Long-term debt $ (1,080,00) $ (1,099,81) $ (1,080,00) $ (1,058,39)

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated usimayket prices or indices for similar liabilitiesdataking into consideration other factors
such as credit quality and maturity, which are ILévmputs.
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NOTE 8—LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt consists of:

December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)

4.875% Senior Notes due November 30, 2018 (the3'8xhior Notes"); interest payable each May 3(

and November 30, which commenced May 30, 2014 $ 500,000 $ 500,00(
4.75% Senior Notes due December 15, 2022 (the "S@hior Notes"); interest payable each June 15 and

December 15, which commenced June 15, 2013 500,00( 500,00
5% New York City Industrial Development Agency LibbeBonds due September 1, 2035 (the "Libert

Bonds"); interest payable each March 1 and Septefnhehich commenced March 1, 2006 80,00( 80,00(
Total long-term debt $ 1,080,000 $ 1,080,001

We may redeem the 2013 Senior Notes at the redemptices set forth below, together with accrued ampaid interest thereon to the
applicable redemption date, if redeemed duringuledve-month period beginning on November 30 ofytbars indicated below:

Year Percentage

2015 103.25(%
2016 101.62%
2017 and thereafter 100.000%

At any time prior to December 15, 2017, we may ead¢he 2012 Senior Notes at a redemption pricel ¢égtlae sum of the principal
amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interesaanake-whole premium. Thereafter, we may redéen2®12 Senior Notes at the redemption
prices set forth below, together with accrued amghid interest thereon to the applicable redemputais, if redeemed during the twelve-month
period beginning on December 15 of the years ineichelow:

Year Percentage

2017 102.37'%
2018 101.58%
2019 100.79%
2020 and thereafter 100.00%

The 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes are unconditiomgailfyranteed by certain domestic subsidiaries, wénieldesignated as guarantor
subsidiaries. The guarantor subsidiaries are thme $ar the 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes. See Nofer2fuarantor and non-guarantor financial
information.

The indentures governing the 2013 and 2012 Serated\contain identical covenants that would linoit ability to pay dividends or make
other distributions and repurchase or redeem ogksh the event a default has occurred or we aténncompliance with the maximum leverage
ratio of 3.0 to 1.0. At December 31, 2014 , theszewno limitations pursuant thereto. There aretemidil covenants that limit our ability and the
ability of our subsidiaries to, among other thingjsincur indebtedness, make investments, orasaléts in the event we are not in compliance with
the financial ratio set forth in the indenture, diidincur liens, enter into agreements restrigtour subsidiaries' ability to pay dividends, eritto
transactions with affiliates and consolidate, memgsell all or substantially all of our assets.

On December 21, 2012, the Company entered int®@ B8llion revolving credit facility, which expirean December 21, 2017. The annual
fee to maintain the revolving credit facility is Basis points. In addition, the terms of the reig\credit facility require that we maintain a
leverage ratio of not more than 3.0 to 1.0 andictsiur ability to incur
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additional indebtedness. At December 31, 2014 &3 2there are no outstanding borrowings underebelving credit facility. IAC's obligation
under the revolving credit facility is unconditidiyaguaranteed by the same domestic subsidiaretsgiiiarantee the 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes
and is also secured by the stock of certain ofdounestic and foreign subsidiaries.

IAC's payment obligation under the Liberty Bondsadlateralized by a mortgage interest in the coafgoheadquarters building.

Long-term debt maturities are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)

2018 $ 500,00(
2022 500,00(
2035 80,00(
Total $ 1,080,001

NOTE 9—SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Description of Common Stock and Class B Convertibl€ommon Stock

Each holder of shares of IAC common stock and IA&EB common stock vote together as a single eldbgespect to matters that may
be submitted to a vote or for the consent of |IABareholders generally, including the electionitgalors. In connection with any such vote, each
holder of IAC common stock is entitled to one viateeach share of IAC common stock held and eatieh@f IAC Class B common stock is
entitled to ten votes for each share of IAC ClagmBimon stock held. Notwithstanding the foregothg, holders of shares of IAC common stock,
acting as a single class, are entitled to elect @b#ée total number of IAC's directors, and, ie #vent that 25% of the total number of directors
shall result in a fraction of a director, then twders of shares of IAC common stock, acting sisigle class, are entitled to elect the next higher
whole number of IAC's directors. In addition, Detae law requires that certain matters be approyeatidholders of shares of IAC common
stock or holders of IAC Class B common stock votisga separate class.

Shares of IAC Class B common stock are convertititeshares of IAC common stock at the option eftielder thereof, at any time, on a
share-for-share basis. Such conversion ratio widlli events be equitably preserved in the eveanhgfrecapitalization of IAC by means of a stock
dividend on, or a stock split or combination oftstanding shares of IAC common stock or IAC ClasoBimon stock, or in the event of any
merger, consolidation or other reorganization of Mith another corporation. Upon the conversioslwres of IAC Class B common stock into
shares of IAC common stock, those shares of IAGLEBacommon stock will be retired and will not lobject to reissue. Shares of IAC common
stock are not convertible into shares of IAC CBsommon stock.

Except as described herein, shares of IAC comnak sind IAC Class B common stock are identical. fiblelers of shares of IAC
common stock and the holders of shares of IAC (Bassmmon stock are entitled to receive, sharsliare, such dividends as may be declared
by IAC's Board of Directors out of funds legallyadtable therefore. In the event of a liquidatiorssadlution, distribution of assets or winding-of
IAC, the holders of shares of IAC common stock dralholders of shares of IAC Class B common stoeleatitled to receive, share for share, all
the assets of IAC available for distribution tosteckholders, after the rights of the holdersrof BAC preferred stock have been satisfied.

At December 31, 2014 , Mr. Diller, Chairman of #eard and Senior Executive of the Company, holf8s1illion shares, representing
100% of IAC's outstanding Class B common stock4®8% of the outstanding total voting power of @@mpany.

Reserved Common Shares

In connection with equity compensation plans, 28illon shares of IAC common stock are reserveDetember 31, 2014 .
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Warrants

No warrants were outstanding at December 31, 2@043 and 2012 . No warrants were issued duringhttee years ended December 31,
2014 . During the year ended December 31, 20123, hillion warrants were exercised. Some of thoaerants were exercised on a cashless or
net basis and IAC received proceeds of $284.1anifiiom the exercise of warrants exercised on aggpasis during the year endg@gcember 31
2012 . A total of 11.7 million common shares wesguied in connection with the exercise of theseamsr

Common Stock Repurchases
During 2014 , the Company did not purchase anyeshair IAC common stock. During 2013 and 2012 Gbenpany purchased 4.5 million
and 15.5 million shares of IAC common stock for reggte consideration, on a trade date basis, &.$28illion and $716.1 million ,

respectively.

On April 30, 2013, IAC's Board of Directors auttmad the repurchase of up to 10 million shares & thmmon stock. At December 31,
2014 , the Company has approximately 8.6 millioareh remaining in its share repurchase authorizatio

NOTE 10—ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

The following tables present the components of aedated other comprehensive loss and items refilbsiut of accumulated other
comprehensive loss into earnings:

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Unrealized Gains

Foreign Currency (Losses) On
Translation Available-For-Sale Accumulated Other
Adjustment Securities Comprehensive Loss
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ (20,357) $ 7,306 $ (23,04¢)
Other comprehensive loss before reclassificatioesof tax benefit of $0.7 million
related to unrealized losses on available-for-sefeirities (66,49¢) (6,239 (72,729
Amounts reclassified related to unrealized gains\ailable-for-sale securities, r
of tax provision of $1.2 million — (1,929 (1,925
Net current period other comprehensive loss (66,496 (8,15%) (74,659
Balance at December 31 $ (86,849 $ (852 $ (87,700
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Foreign Currency Unrealized (Losses) Accumulated Other
Translation Gains On Available- Comprehensive
Adjustment For-Sale Securities (Loss) Income
(In thousands)
Balance at January 1 $ (25,079 $ (7,096 $ (32,169
Other comprehensive income before reclassificatinesof tax provision of $3.9
million related to unrealized gains on availabledale securities 4,721 43,23t 47,95¢
Amounts reclassified related to unrealized gainga\ailable-for-sale securities, n
of tax provision of $6.9 million — (28,839 (28,83
Net current period other comprehensive income 4,721 14,40: 19,12:
Balance at December 31 $ (20,35) $ 7,306 $ (13,04¢)
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Unrealized gains reclassified out of accumulatégiotomprehensive loss related to the maturitiessates of available-for-sale securities
are included in "Other (expense) income, net" @ahcompanying consolidated statement of operatibm®alized gains reclassified out of
accumulated other comprehensive loss into othgref@se) income, net for the year ended Decembe03P2, was $2.1 million .

NOTE 11—EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation asie and diluted earnings per share attributabla@shareholders.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
(In thousands, except per share data)

Numerator:
Earnings from continuing operations $ 23455 $ 23455 $ 281,79¢ $ 281,79¢ $ 169,84 $ 169,84
Net loss (earnings) attributable to noncontrollin
interests 5,64: 5,64: 2,05¢ 2,05¢ (1,530 (1,530
Earnings from continuing operations attributable
to IAC shareholders 240,20( 240,20( 283,85¢ 283,85¢ 168,31 168,31
Earnings (loss) from discontinued operations
attributable to IAC shareholders 174,67: 174,67: 1,92¢ 1,92¢ (9,057 (9,057
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders $ 414,870 $ 41487 $ 28578 $ 28578 $ 159,26t $ 159,26t
Denominator:
Weighted average basic shares outstanding 83,29: 83,29: 83,48( 83,48( 86,24" 86,24"
Dilutive securities including stock options,
warrants and RSU8® — 5,26¢ — 3,26 — 6,84:
Denominator for earnings per share—weightec
average sharéd® 83,29: 88,55¢ 83,48( 86,74: 86,24 93,08¢
Earnings (loss) per share attributable to IAC shar@olders:
Earnings per share from continuing operations $ 2.8t $ 271 % 340 $ 321 % 198 % 1.81
Discontinued operations 2.1C 1.97 0.02 0.02 (0.10 (0.10
Earnings per share $ 49t % 468 9 34z % 32¢ $ 18 % 1.71

(@) If the effect is dilutive, weighted averagemroon shares outstanding include the incrementaéshbat would be issued upon the assumed ex@fcsteck options

and vesting of restricted stock units ("RSUs"). far years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and&fiirdximately 0.3 million , 0.4 million and 0.8 fioh shares,
respectively, related to potentially dilutive satias are excluded from the calculation of dilugsdnings per share because their inclusion wowld haen anti-

dilutive.

(b)

Performance-based stock units ("PSUs") areded in the denominator for earnings per shafig the applicable performance condition(s) hasbmet and (i) the

inclusion of the PSUs is dilutive for the respeetreporting periods. For each of the years endegiber 31, 2014 and 2012 less than 0.1 million RB&atswvere
probable of vesting were excluded from the caloofedf diluted earnings per share because the peaiace conditions had not been met. For the yededen
December 31, 2013, all PSUs that were considereé probable of vesting were included in the datén of diluted earnings per share as their perémce

conditions had been met.

NOTE 12—STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

IAC currently has three active plans under whiclas have been granted. These plans cover stoickispb acquire shares of IAC



common stock, RSUs, PSUs and restricted stocke#isas/provide for the future grant of these arfteoequity
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awards. These plans authorize the Company to greatds to its employees, officers, directors amsattants. At December 31, 2014 , there are
9.1 million shares available for grant under thenpany's stock-based compensation plans.

The plans were adopted in 2005, 2008 and 2013, &atated term of ten years , and provide thaéxieecise price of stock options granted
will not be less than the market price of the Conypmcommon stock on the grant date. The plansatispecify grant dates or vesting schedules
of awards as those determinations have been detbgathe Compensation and Human Resources CoraroittdC's Board of Directors (the
"Committee™). Each grant agreement reflects théingschedule for that particular grant as deteedliby the Committee. Broad-based stock
option awards issued to date have generally véstequal annual installments over a four -yearqabend RSU awards currently outstanding
generally vest in two 50% installments over a ttaee four -year period, in each case, from thetgtate. PSU awards currently outstanding vest
in two installments of up to 50% over a two -yearipd from the date of grant. In addition to equtyards outstanding under the three plans,
stock options and other equity awards outstandimiguterminated plans and plans assumed in adquossire reflected in the information set
forth below.

The amount of stock-based compensation expensgrizeal in the consolidated statement of operai®nsduced by estimated forfeitures,
as the expense recorded is based on awards thatiarately expected to vest. The forfeiture ratestimated at the grant date based on historical
experience and revised, if necessary, in subsegeeiads if actual forfeitures differ from the eséited rate. At December 31, 2014 , there is
$113.2 million of unrecognized compensation cost,af estimated forfeitures, related to all equigsed awards, which is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of ajmiately 2.4 years.

The total income tax benefit recognized in the ageanying consolidated statement of operationshieryears ended December 31, 2014 ,
2013 and 2012 related to stock-based compensati2Ri.2 million , $19.3 million and $31.3 milliomespectively.

Stock Options

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2014chadges during the year ended December 31, 2GKAf@lows:

December 31, 2014

Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(Shares and intrinsic value in thousands)
Outstanding at January 1, 2014 8,07 % 36.9¢
Granted 747 67.9¢
Exercised (1,790 31.8¢
Forfeited (496) 46.8¢
Expired (15) 31.1¢
Outstanding at December 31, 2014 6,52( $ 41.1¢ 6.0 $ 133,07
Options exercisable 3,64-! $ 33.5( 4.7 $ 99,52:

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théedénce between IAC's closing stock price
on the last trading day of 2014 and the exercige pmultiplied by the number of in-the-money opgdthat would have been received by the
option holders had all option holders exercised thgtions on December 31, 2014 . This amount chatigsed on the fair market value of IAC's
common stock. The total intrinsic value of stockiaps exercised during the years ended Decembe&@¥, , 2013 and 2012 is $63.3 million ,
$65.6 million and $84.8 million , respectively.
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The following table summarizes the information atstock options outstanding and exercisable at Déee 31, 2014 :

Options Outstanding Options Exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-

Average Weighted- Average Weighted-

Outstanding at Remaining Average Exercisable at Remaining Average

December 31, Contractual Exercise December 31, Contractual Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices 2014 Life in Years Price 2014 Life Price
(Shares in thousands)

$10.01 to $20.00 431 45 $ 17.91 431 45 $ 17.91
$20.01 to $30.00 90t 4.3 22.1¢ 90t 4.8 22.1¢
$30.01 to $40.00 1,14¢ 6.3 31.8¢ 74¢ 6.2 31.6(
$40.01 to $50.00 2,91: 5.7 45.1¢ 1,42¢ 4.C 44.0t
$50.01 to $60.00 381 7.3 58.51 13€ 7.8 58.4¢
$60.01 to $70.00 49z 9.3 66.1¢ — — —
$70.01 to $80.00 25C 9.3 71.5¢ == — —
6,52( 6.0 $ 41.1¢ 3,641 47 $ 33.5(

The fair value of each stock option award is edimian the grant date using the Black-Scholes ngtiecing model. The Black-Scholes
option pricing model incorporates various assumnmgtiancluding expected volatility and expected telbaring 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , expected
stock price volatilities were estimated based enGompany's historical volatility. The risk-fregdrest rates are based on U.S. Treasury yields fo
notes with comparable terms as the awards, intedfebe grant date. Expected term is based upohititorical exercise behavior of our
employees and the dividend yields are based orslAStorical dividend payments. The following dre weighted average assumptions used in
the Black-Scholes option pricing model:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
Expected volatility 31% 2% 31%
Risk-free interest rate 1.5% 1.C% 0.€%
Expected term 4.8 year 6.2 year 4.4 year
Dividend yield 1.5% 2.C% 1.2%

Approximately 0.7 million , 0.7 million and 3.6 ridn stock options were granted by the Companyrdytine years ended December 31,
2014 , 2013 and 2012, respectively. The weightedage fair value of stock options granted durhgytears ended December 31, 2014 , 2013
and 2012 with exercise prices equal to the mankeep of IAC's common stock on the date of graat®6.67 , $10.67 and $10.69 , respectively.
There are no stock options issued during the yeated December 31, 2014 and 2013 with exercisepgdreater than the market value of IAC's
common stock on the date of grant. The weightedsayeexercise price and weighted average fair v@flgéock options granted during the year
ended December 31, 2012 with exercise prices griwta the market value of IAC's common stock endhate of grant are $ 60.00 and $ 7.61 ,
respectively.

Cash received from stock option exercises anddla¢ed tax benefit realized for the years endeceBéer 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are:
$39.1 million and $25.5 million ; $40.7 million agd 7.2 million ; and $58.2 million and $28.2 milig respectively. In December 2013, the
Company's former Chief Executive Officer (the "Extdee") became the Chairman of The Match Grougdnnection with the Executive's
compensation arrangement, the Executive exercigenhillion stock options, which were settled by ®empany for $9.2 million in cash. In
January 2014, a portion of the Executive's outstankAC stock options were canceled and replacel aqguity denominated in various
subsidiaries of The Match Group. The incrementpkese associated with this modification is $7.4iomil.
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Restricted Stock Units and Performance-based Stodknits

RSUs and PSUs are awards in the form of phantonesloa units, denominated in a hypothetical eqeivahumber of shares of IAC
common stock and with the value of each RSU and &glal to the fair value of IAC common stock at dag¢e of grant. RSUs and PSUs may be
settled in cash, stock or both, as determined &yCtbmmittee at the time of grant. Each RSU and Bi@ldt is subject to service-based vesting,
where a specific period of continued employmenttrpass before an award vests. PSUs also includerpemce-based vesting, where certain
performance targets set at the time of grant meisidhieved before an award vests. The Companymaesgexpense for all RSUs and PSUs for
which vesting is considered probable. For RSU grathe expense is measured at the grant date &airthalue of IAC common stock and
expensed as non-cash compensation over the véstingFor PSU grants, the expense is measuree gramt date as the fair value of IAC
common stock and expensed as non-cash compeneaéinthe vesting term if the performance targetscansidered probable of being achieved.

Unvested RSUs and PSUs outstanding at Decemb@034,and changes during the year ended Decemb2034 ,are as follows:

RSUs PSUs
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number Grant Date Number Grant Date
of shares Fair Value of shares® Fair Value
(Shares in thousands)
Unvested at January 1, 2014 69z $ 43.5( 32z % 31.21
Granted 257 67.6¢ 35 71.3¢
Vested (299) 36.7( (102) 31.1¢
Forfeited — — (220 31.3Z
Unvested at December 31, 2014 75C g 53.61 35 % 71.3¢

(@) Included in the table are PSUs which veshagind of two years in varying amounts dependiranuertain performance conditions. The PSU tabte@lincludes these
awards at their maximum potential payout.

The weighted average fair value of RSUs and PSasted during the years ended December 31, 20143 &@d 2012 based on market
prices of IAC's common stock on the grant date $&&13 , $42.32 and $46.24 , respectively. Thé faavalue of RSUs and PSUs that vested
during the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2012@t2i was $20.4 million , $14.5 million and $13elion , respectively.

Equity Instruments Denominated in the Shares of Ceain Subsidiaries

IAC has granted stock options and phantom equittg wwhich are denominated in the equity of itssdiaries, to employees and
management of certain subsidiaries. These equitydswest over a period of years or upon the oenae of certain prescribed events. In some
cases, IAC has taken a preferred interest in theidiary with a face value equal to the subsidsaagquisition price; or, when funding a start-up
business, its investment cost, or a certain fixbemmamount. In some cases, these preferred itgexesrete interest or dividends at a prescribed
rate of return. The value of the stock options pln@ntom equity units is tied to the value of thenown stock of the entity, with the equity awards
employees and management receive as a whole ggmegaksenting a small minority of the total commsdock outstanding. Accordingly, these
interests only have value to the extent the releliasiness appreciates in value above the preferteest (including the accretion of interest or
dividends), our investment cost or other fixed antaur, in the case of stock options, the initidleautilized to determine the exercise price. Tl
interests can have significant value in the evésignificant appreciation. The interests are udtiaty settled in IAC common stock or cash at the
option of IAC, with fair market value generally demhined by negotiation or arbitration, at varioased through 2024. The expense associated
with these equity awards is initially measuredadt ¥alue at the grant date and is expensed asasimcompensation over the vesting term. The
aggregate number of IAC common shares that woulgdpaired to settle these interests at currennestid fair values, including vested and
unvested
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interests, at December 31, 2014 is 5.8 million shawhich is included in the calculation of diluestnings per share if the effect is dilutive. The
comparable amount at December 31, 2013 is 1.8omifhares.

NOTE 13—SEGMENT INFORMATION

The overall concept that IAC employs in determinitsgoperating segments is to present the finaitiaimation in a manner consistent v
how the chief operating decision maker views th&rmsses, how the businesses are organized agneisemanagement, and the focus of the
businesses with regards to the types of servicpsonlucts offered or the target market. Operategneents are combined for reporting purposes if
they meet certain aggregation criteria, which ppalty relate to the similarity of their economibaracteristics or, in the case of the eCommerce
reportable segment, do not meet the quantitatiestiolds that require presentation as separatatopgesegments.

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Revenue:

Search & Applications $ 1,596,25 $ 1,604,950 $ 1,465,79!

The Match Group 897,24! 805,39( 714,22:

Media 181,78( 191,43: 164,05:

eCommerce 435,36: 422,06¢ 457,18:

Inter-segment elimination (2,090 (859) (317)
Total $ 3,109,54 $ 3,022,98 $ 2,800,93:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Operating Income (LosSs):

Search & Applications $ 311,34 $ 340,11 % 305,64«
The Match Group 240,91. 228,15 200,16¢
Media (40,177 (20,807 (46,90
eCommerce (1,257) (62) 15,32
Corporate (132,09) (121,209 (150,662)

Total $ 378,72 $ 426,20 $ 323,56¢

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Adjusted EBITDA: @

Search & Applications $ 362,02¢ $ 385,85. $ 328,14:
The Match Group 264,73t 266,94¢ 236,77¢
Media (36,720 (16,976 (38,55¢)
eCommerce 17,28: 22,89( 31,20(
Corporate (63,25) (60,417) (60,119

Total $ 544,07¢ $ 598,30. $ 497,44t
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December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)

Segment Assets®?

Search & Applications $ 341,88t $ 409,11t
The Match Group 297,16t 341,37
Media 87,44¢ 92,50(
eCommerce 50,13 41,821
Corporate 1,251,38 1,229,20!

Total $ 2,028,011 $ 2,114,02!

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Capital expenditures:

Search & Applications $ 17,70 $ 22,21 % 15,32(
The Match Group 22,10t 19,991 19,85:
Media 1,56¢ 1,197 1,17¢
eCommerce 9,62( 8,921 8,48¢
Corporate 6,241 27,98 6,36¢

Total $ 57,231 $ 80,31: $ 51,20:

(@ The Company's primary financial measure isusidjd EBITDA, which is defined as operating incameluding: (1) non-cash compensation expense;d@jetiation; and
(3) acquisition-related items consisting of (i) atimation of intangible assets and goodwill anéirgible asset impairments and (ii) gains and lossaxgnized on changes
in the fair value of contingent consideration agements. The Company believes this measure isldsefanalysts and investors as this measure allow®re meaningful
comparison between our performance and that of@upetitors. Moreover, our management uses thisuneanternally to evaluate the performance oftmsiness as a
whole and our individual business segments. Thealiems are excluded from our Adjusted EBITDA meadecause these items are non-cash in naturgyeahdlieve
that by excluding these items, Adjusted EBITDA esponds more closely to the cash operating incamergted from our business, from which capital stments are
made and debt is serviced. Adjusted EBITDA hasagefimitations in that it does not take into acaebthe impact to IAC's statement of operationsesfain expenses.

(b) Consistent with the Company's primary mettiescribed in (a) above), the Company excludegpfieable, goodwill and intangible assets frommieasure of segment
assets presented above.

Revenue by geography is based on where the custsiioeated. Geographic information about revematlang-lived assets is presented
below:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Revenue
United States $ 2,146,18 $ 2,081,48 $ 1,966,38.
All other countries 963,35¢ 941,50: 834,55(
Total $ 3,109,54 $ 3,022,98 $ 2,800,93.
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United States
All other countries

Total

Search & Applications
The Match Group
Media

eCommerce
Corporate

Total

Search & Applications
The Match Group
Media

eCommerce
Corporate

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)
$ 281,87¢ $ 271,91¢
20,58( 22,04¢
$ 302,45¢ $ 293,96«
The following tables reconcile Adjusted EBITDA tpearating income (loss) for the Company's reportabgments:
Year Ended December 31, 2014
Acquisition-
related
Contingent
Non-Cash Consideration Operating
Adjusted Compensation Amortization Fair Value Income
EBITDA Expense Depreciation of Intangibles Adjustments (Loss)
(In thousands)
362,02¢ $ — $  (1646) $  (33,90) $ (3260 $ 311,34
264,73t 287 (25,629 (11,399 12,91: 240,91:
(36,720 (647) (927) (2,09¢) 21¢ (40,177
17,28: (559) (8,019 (10,53)) 56€ (1,257
(63,259 (58,719 (10,129 == == (132,09))
544,07¢ $ (59,63) $ (61,150 $ (57,920 $ 13,36 $ 378,72
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Acquisition-
related
Contingent
Non-Cash Consideration Operating
Adjusted Compensation Amortization Fair Value Income
EBITDA Expense Depreciation of Intangibles Adjustments (Loss)
(In thousands)
385,85 $ Q) $ (18,17) $ (27,55) $ — $ 340171
266,94 (1,129 (20,209 (17,126 (34%) 228,15
(16,976 (639) (2,122 (1,070 — (20,809
22,89( 29 (8,88) (14,09 — (61)
(60,417 (51,27¢) (9,519 - - (121,209
598,30: $ (53,009 $ (58,909 $  (59,84) $ (349 $ 426,20

Total
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Year Ended December 31, 2012

Non-Cash Operating
Compensation Amortization Income
Adjusted EBITDA Expense Depreciation of Intangibles (Loss)

(In thousands)
Search & Applications $ 328,14: (34) ¢ (14,999 $ (7,468) $ 305,64«
The Match Group 236,77t (2,81¢) (16,339 (17,459 200,16¢
Media (38,55%) (770) (1,399 (6,179 (46,907)
eCommerce 31,20( 2 (11,210 (4,669 15,32
Corporate (60,119 (82,005 (8,539 — (150,662
Total $ 497 ,44! (85,62 % (52,48) $ (35,77) % 323,56¢

The following tables reconcile segment assetstal sssets:
December 31, 2014
Indefinite-Lived Definite-Lived
Segment Assets Goodwill Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Total Assets

(In thousands)
Search & Applications $ 341,88t 774,82 $ 211,09¢ $ 44,35¢ 1,372,15!
The Match Group 297,16t 798,79 180,55¢ 27,05¢ 1,303,571
Media 87,44¢ 8,261 1,80( 4,90( 102,41!
eCommerce 50,13 173,04( 11,78: 10,39: 245,34¢
Corporate® 1,251,38: — — — 1,251,38.
Total $ 2,028,01 1,754,921 $ 405,23: $ 86,70: 4,274,87:

December 31, 2013
Indefinite-Lived Definite-Lived
Segment Assets Goodwill Intangible Assets Intangible Assets Total Assets

(In thousands)
Search & Applications $ 409,11t 738,06. $ 195,80 $ 40,55( 1,383,53.
The Match Group 341,37 775,40: 167,54 11,81¢ 1,296,14.
Media 92,50( 8,261 1,80( 944 103,51:
eCommerce 41,821 153,59: 11,18( 15,69¢ 222,29:
Corporate® 1,229,20! — — — 1,229,20!
Total $ 2,114,02! 1,675,32. % 376,32¢ $ 69,00° 4,234,68

(c) Corporate assets consist primarily of cash and egslvalents, marketable securities and IAC's headgrs building

NOTE 14—COMMITMENTS

The Company leases land, office space, data cidiéities and equipment used in connection wishopperations under various operating
leases, many of which contain escalation claudes.dJompany is also committed to pay a portion efrtHated operating expenses under a data
center lease agreement. These operating expermsestancluded in the table below.
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Future minimum payments under operating lease agrets are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, (In thousands)
2015 $ 32,25¢
2016 31,10¢
2017 26,72
2018 23,33¢
2019 17,77¢
Thereafter 191,10t
Total $ 322,30:

Expenses charged to operations under these agreeaner$41.2 million , $36.7 million and $30.6 moitl for the years ended December 31,
2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

The Company's most significant operating leasesisventy-seven year land lease for IAC's headqsdtelding in New York City and
approximates 55% of the future minimum paymentsuhgaer all operating lease agreements in the tdislee.

The Company also has funding commitments that cpoddntially require its performance in the everd@mands by third parties or
contingent events as follows:

Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period

Less Than 1-3 3-5 More Than Ar;gtt?rllts
1 Year Years Years 5 Years Committed
(In thousands)
Purchase obligations $ 10,71¢ $ 521 $ — 3 — % 11,23:
Letters of credit and surety bonds 1,27¢ — 73 1,43i 2,78¢
Total commercial commitments $ 11,98¢ $ 521 § 73 % 1437 $ 14,01°

The purchase obligations primarily include advarscommitments, which commitments are reducibleeaminable such that these
commitments can never exceed associated revenaen@aningful amount. The letters of credit supg@tCompany's casualty insurance
program.

NOTE 15—CONTINGENCIES

In the ordinary course of business, the Compamyparty to various lawsuits. The Company estaldisaserves for specific legal matters
when it determines that the likelihood of an unfalabe outcome is probable and the loss is reaspmeatimable. Management has also identified
certain other legal matters where we believe aavorible outcome is not probable and, thereforeeserve is established. Although
management currently believes that resolving clagainst us, including claims where an unfavorabkeome is reasonably possible, will not
have a material impact on the liquidity, result®pérations, or financial condition of the Compatmgse matters are subject to inherent
uncertainties and management's view of these reattay change in the future. The Company also eteduather contingent matters, including
income and non-income tax contingencies, to agkedikelihood of an unfavorable outcome and edimaxtent of potential loss. It is possible
that an unfavorable outcome of one or more of theessuits or other contingencies could have a ri@tenpact on the liquidity, results of
operations, or financial condition of the CompaBge Note 3 for additional information related toame tax contingencies.
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NOTE 16—SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Transactions:

The Company recorded acquisition-related contingensideration liabilities of $8.8 million and $41million during the years 2014 and
2013, respectively. See Note 7 for additional infation on contingent consideration arrangements.

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:

Years Ended December 31,

2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)

Cash paid (received) during the year for:

Interest $ 54,027 $ 28,70 $ 5,21¢
Income tax payments 63,52: 112,08 43,31¢
Income tax refunds (10,479 (17,689 (8,189

NOTE 17—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Each of the Company and Expedia has a 50% ownergkigst in two aircraft that may be used by lmtimpanies. The Company and
Expedia purchased the second of these two aiduafig 2013. The Company paid $25 million ( 50%taf total purchase price and refurbish
costs) for its interest. Members of the aircrdfight crews are employed by an entity in whichleat the Company and Expedia has a 50%
ownership interest. The Company and Expedia hareedgo share costs relating to flight crew compgas and benefits pro-rata according to
each company's respective usage of the aircraftylicch they are separately billed by the entitgatibed above. The Company and Expedia are
related parties since they are under common coigian that Mr. Diller serves as Chairman and &eBkecutive of both IAC and Expedia. For
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201 payments made to this entity by the Compaese not material.

NOTE 18—BENEFIT PLANS

IAC has a retirement savings plan in the UnitedeStéhat qualifies under Section 401(k) of therimié Revenue Code. Participating
employees may contribute up to 50% of their preg@pnings, but not more than statutory limits. Ié@htributes fifty cents for each dollar a
participant contributes in this plan, with a maximuaontribution of 3% of a participant's eligibler@ags. Matching contributions for the plan for
the years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and &@1%7.5 million , $6.5 million and $6.5 milliomespectively. Matching contributions are
invested in the same manner as each participasitiatary contributions in the investment optionsypded under the plan. An investment option
in the plan is IAC common stock, but neither pasaot nor matching contributions are required tanvested in IAC common stock.

IAC also has or participates in various benefinplgrincipally defined contribution plans, foriitgernational employees. IAC's
contributions for these plans for the years endedeimber 31, 2014 , 2013 and 2012 are $2.5 millgh9 million and $2.3 million respectively
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NOTE 19—CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT DETAILS

Other current assets:

Prepaid expenses

Capitalized downloadable search toolbar costs, net
Production costs

Deferred income taxes

Income taxes receivable

Other

Other current assets

Property and equipment, net:

Buildings and leasehold improvements
Computer equipment and capitalized software
Furniture and other equipment

Projects in progress

Land

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
Property and equipment, net

Other non-current assets:

Production costs

Income taxes receivable

Restricted cash - funds held in escrow for Meetier offer
Other

Other non-current assets
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December 31,

2014 2013

(In thousands)

39,31. % 23,94
29,60¢ 21,17
24,59¢ 17,71%
17,99: 34,38

4,50¢ 12,24:
50,72¢ 52,07"
166,74: $ 161,53(

December 31,

2014 2013

(In thousands)

230,57 $ 246,28:
238,96( 208,42
87,78¢ 84,78
19,55 14,64
5,117 5,117
581,99 559,26;
(279,53)) (265,29))
302,45¢ $ 293,96

December 31,

2014 2013

(In thousands)

11,58¢ $ 22,42;
1,47¢ 19,217
— 71,51:
43,62¢ 51,58t
56,69! $ 164,68!
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December 31,

2014 2013
(In thousands)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities:
Accrued employee compensation and benefits $ 101,83( $ 85,00¢
Accrued advertising expense 87,48 63,40¢
Accrued revenue share expense 50,62« 72,27¢
Income taxes payable 41,157 16,15¢
Other 116,70° 114,19:
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities $ 397,800 $ 351,03t
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Revenue:
Service revenue 2,957,73 $ 2,869,82 % 2,639,40
Product revenue 151,81 153,16! 161,52:
Revenue 3,109,54 % 3,022,98 % 2,800,93:
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Cost of revenue:
Cost of service revenue 757,19 $ 884,18¢ $ 833,37-
Cost of product revenue 125,98 119,53: 158,31
Cost of revenue 883,17t $ 1,003,72 % 991,68t
Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2012
(In thousands)
Other (expense) income, net:
Impairment of long-term investments (66,60) $ (5,26¢) $ (8,68%5)
Foreign currency exchange losses, net (1,55¢) (2,88%) (1,050
Gains on sales of long-term investments and a bssin 21,94¢ 35,85¢ 3,32¢
Interest income 4,35 2,60¢ 3,46
Other (926) (4) (65)
Other (expense) income, net $ (42,78) $ 30,30¢ $ (3,019

NOTE 20—GUARANTOR AND NON-GUARANTOR FINANCIAL INFOR MATION

The 2013 and 2012 Senior Notes are unconditiogalranteed, jointly and severally, by certain ddioesibsidiaries which are 100%
owned by the Company. The following tables presentensed consolidating financial information at®uaber 31, 2014 and 2013 and for the
years ended December 31, 2014 , 2013 and 201A0r:on a stand-alone basis; the combined guarautiosidiaries of IAC; the combined non-
guarantor subsidiaries of IAC; and IAC on a cordatkd basis.
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Balance sheet at December 31, 2014:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents 766,07t $ 1,021 $ 223,30¢ $ — % 990,40!
Marketable securities 159,19 — 1,451 — 160,64t
Accounts receivable, net 13 155,26 80,81: — 236,08t
Other current assets 23,92: 91,10¢ 57,48’ (5,773 166,74
Intercompany receivables — 1,688,40:. 970,81( (2,659,21) —
Property and equipment, net 4,95( 232,81¢ 64,69( — 302,45¢
Goodwill — 1,249,80 505,11¢ — 1,754,92
Intangible assets, net — 325,77 166,16! — 491,93t
Investment in subsidiaries 5,035,30. 930,44 — (5,965,74) —
Other non-current assets 44.,61( 20,68: 109,37 (2,98¢) 171,67t
Total assets 6,034,07. $ 4,695,31: $ 2,179,21: $ (8,633,72) $ 4,274,87:
Accounts payable, trade 3,05¢ % 55,32( $ 22,78 $ — % 81,16
Other current liabilities 73,49: 328,92( 191,19 (817) 592,79:
Long-term debt 1,000,00! 80,00( — — 1,080,00!
Income taxes payable 2,24( 4,771 25,62¢ — 32,63t
Intercompany liabilities 2,659,21. — — (2,659,21) —
Other long-term liabilities 304,11 104,21¢ 54,32¢ (7,944 454,72(
Redeemable noncontrolling interests — — 40,427 — 40,427
IAC shareholders' equity 1,991,95: 4,122,08: 1,843,66: (5,965,74) 1,991,95.
Noncontrolling interests — — 1,18¢ — 1,18¢
Total liabilities and shareholders' equ|ty 6,034,07 $ 4,695,31 $ 2,179,21 $ (8,633,72) $ 4,274,87;
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Balance sheet at December 31, 2013:

Cash and cash equivalents
Marketable securities
Accounts receivable, net
Other current assets
Intercompany receivables
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill

Intangible assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Other non-current assets

Total assets

Accounts payable, trade

Other current liabilities

Long-term debt

Income taxes payable

Intercompany liabilities

Other long-term liabilities
Redeemable noncontrolling interests
IAC shareholders' equity
Noncontrolling interests

IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations IAC Consolidated

(In thousands)
$ 782,02: $ — % 318,42 $ — % 1,100,44.
1,007 — 4,997 — 6,00
38 135,65! 71,71¢ — 207,40¢
45,11: 76,57 40,66 (814) 161,53(
— 569,03( 847,42: (1,416,45) —
5,31¢ 221,38t 67,26: — 293,96¢
— 1,180,15! 495,16: — 1,675,32.
— 302,08 143,25 — 445,33¢
3,833,75. 782,84( - (4,616,59) -
83,20° 15,52 252,57t (6,629 344,67!
$ 4,750,45; $ 3,283,24 $ 224147 $ (6,040,48) $ 4,234,68
$ 431C $ 51,52 $ 21,81¢ $ — % 77,65
41,62 280,54¢ 187,07: — 509,24
1,000,00! 80,00( — — 1,080,00!
383,92t 6,76¢ 25,69( — 416,38
1,416,45. — — (1,416,45) _
217,40 96,23¢ 72,94: (7,44%) 379,14
— — 42,86 — 42,86
1,686,731 2,768,16! 1,848,43. (4,616,59) 1,686,73!
— — 42,66" — 42,66¢
$ 475045, $ 328324 $ 224147 $ (6,040,48) $  4,234,68

Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb@d, 2014:

Revenue

Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below)

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation
Amortization of intangibles

Total operating costs and expenses
Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolide

affiliates

Interest expense
Other income (expense), net

Earnings (loss) from continuing operations
before income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)
Earnings (loss) from continuing

operations

Earnings from discontinued operations, n

of tax

Net earnings (loss)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling

interests

Net earnings (loss) attributable to IAC

shareholders

Comprehensive income (loss)attributable
to IAC shareholders $

IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continu ed)

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations IAC Consolidated

(In thousands)
— 3 2,286,62. $ 834,76! (12,839 3,109,54
99¢ 525,18t 359, 74¢ (2,759 883,17¢
2,13¢ 904,22: 226,38: (8,307) 1,124,43
105,22: 211,29: 127,05: 45 443,61(
6,49¢ 110,37" 44,47: (82¢) 160,51
1,42¢ 40,64¢ 19,08¢ — 61,15¢
— 37,66 20,26¢ — 57,92¢
116,27 1,829,38| 797,00( (11,839 2,730,82I
(116,279 457,24 37,76¢ — 378,72
253,58: 34,61: 457 (298,349 (9,697
(51,989 (4,246 (80) — (56,319
2,68¢ (3,315 (42,16() — (42,78)
88,00: 484,29: (4,029 (298,34 269,92¢
152,19 (172,12 (15,44 — (35,379
240,20! 312,16t (19,462 (298,34 234,55
174,67. — 57C (570 174,67
414,87: 312,16! (18,899 (298,91, 409,23(
— — 5,64: — 5,64:
414,87 % 312,16¢ % (13,25) (298,91, 414,87
340,21¢ $ 303,97¢ $ (84,76) (219,209 340,21¢
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb&d, 2013:

Revenue $
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below)

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolide
affiliates

Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Earnings from continuing operations

Earnings (losses) from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Net earnings

Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Net earnings attributable to IAC
shareholders

Comprehensive income attributable to
IAC shareholders

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

— 3 2,183,96' $ 843,13: (4,115 3,022,98
2,45¢€ 600,51: 403,61 (2,860) 1,003,72.
2,56 769,11! 185,86 (1,137 956,41(

97,02t 164,17 117,06¢ (122 378,14
4,68¢ 100,35( 34,72¢ — 139,75¢
1,38¢ 38,93¢ 18,58¢ — 58,90¢

— 40,27, 19,56¢ — 59,84:

108,11! 1,713,36- 779,42( (4,115 2,596,78:
(108,11) 470,60: 63,71 — 426,20
439,92! 62,40: (309) (508,639 (6,615)
(29,41)) (3,979 (200) — (33,596
(35,33)) (35,040 100,68 — 30,30¢
267,06: 493,98t 163,89( (508,639 416,30:
16,79¢ (156,17() 4,872 — (134,50;)
283,85¢ 337,81¢ 168,76: (508,63¢) 281,79¢
1,92¢ — (39 39 1,92¢
285,78: 337,81¢ 168,72: (508,60() 283,72¢
— — 2,05¢ — 2,05¢
285,78: $ 337,81t % 170,78: (508,600) 285,78«
304,900 $ 338,68. $ 181,48: (520,169) 304,90°
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Statement of operations for the year ended Decemb@d, 2012:

Revenue $
Operating costs and expenses:

Cost of revenue (exclusive of
depreciation shown separately below)

Selling and marketing expense
General and administrative expense
Product development expense
Depreciation

Amortization of intangibles

Total operating costs and expenses

Operating (loss) income

Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolide
affiliates

Interest expense
Other (expense) income, net

Earnings from continuing operations before
income taxes

Income tax benefit (provision)

Earnings from continuing operations

(Loss) earnings from discontinued
operations, net of tax

Net earnings

Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling
interests

Net earnings attributable to IAC
shareholders

Comprehensive income attributable to
IAC shareholders

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries Eliminations IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

— 3 1,986,52 $ 820,75¢ $ (6,357 $ 2,800,93.
5,19¢ 597,58t 393,81 (4,905) 991,68t
4,081 669,44 222,37 (1,465 894,43t
121,91¢ 152,16¢ 112,35¢ 17 386,46
5,611 83,00¢ 27,90 — 116,52¢
832 35,54+ 16,10¢ — 52,481

— 10,95¢ 24,81 — 35,771

137,63 1,548,71. 797,36 (6,35%) 2,477,36!
(137,63) 437,81! 23,39( — 323,56¢
309,63t 37,86¢ (22,54%) (350,307 (25,349
(1,835 (4,172 (140) — (6,149
(82,900 (3,739 83,62: — (3,012
87,26 467,77 84,32 (350,307 289,06:
81,05( (146,33) (53,93) — (119,21}
168,31 321,44 30,39: (350,307) 169,84°
(9,05)) — 84z (842) (9,05)
159,26t 321,44 31,23: (351,149 160,79¢

_ — (1,530 — (1,530

159,26t $ 321,44. % 29,70: $ (351,149 % 159,26¢
139,54( $ 322,21: $ 29,82¢ $ (352,04() $ 139,54(
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decembgt, 2014:

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitieattributable to
continuing operations

Cash flows from investing activities attributable b continuing
operations:

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketaliifes#urities
Purchases of marketable debt securities

Proceeds from sales of long-term investments dngsaess
Purchases of long-term investments

Other, net

Net cash used in investing activities attributabléo continuing
operations

Cash flows from financing activities attributable t continuing
operations:

Dividends

Issuance of common stock, net of withholding taxes
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards
Purchase of noncontrolling interests

Funds returned from escrow for Meetic tender offer
Acquisition-related contingent consideration paytaen
Debt issuance costs

Intercompany

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiesttributable to
continuing operations

Total cash (used in) provided by continuing operatins
Total cash used in discontinued operations

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casle&nts
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Guarantor Non-Guarantor

IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ (114,77) $ 543,08 $ (4,266 $ 424,04t
== (191,239 (68,159 (259,39)
(1,849 (40,42;) (14,96¢) (57,23
21,64 — — 21,64
(175,82 — — (175,82
— — 58,38¢ 58,38¢
(4,800 (7,049 (12,497 (24,339
(2,000 11 (1,059 (3,04:)
(162,82Y) (238,69:) (38,27) (439,795
(97,339 — — (97,339
1,60¢ — — 1,60¢
34,21« — 10,74: 44,957
— (30,000 (3,165 (33,16Y)
— — 12,35« 12,35«
== (736) (7,379 (8,109)
(387) — — (387)
323,66! (271,30 (52,35) ==
— (1,365 46( (905)
261,76¢ (303,41() (39,339 (80,98()
(15,83() 98¢t (81,88)) (96,726
(11€) — (29) (145)
— 36 (13,20 (13,16¢)
(15,946 1,021 (95,119 (110,03Y)
782,02. — 318,42: 1,100,44.
$ 766,07 $ 1,021 $ 223,30t $ 990,40!
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decemb@at, 2013:

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries IAC Consolidated

(In thousands)
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitieattributable to

continuing operations $ (9508) $ 537,11t $ (31,079 $ 410,96:

Cash flows from investing activities attributable b continuing

operations:
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (6,382 (34,059 (40,439
Capital expenditures (1,389 (63,93)) (14,99) (80,31)
Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketaliiesdeurities 12,50: — — 12,50:
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments asetas 7,83¢ 50,85( 24,40: 83,09:
Purchases of long-term investments (17,819 — (33,26¢) (51,080
Other, net — (2,725 (1,809 (3,529

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitieattributable to

continuing operations 1,14( (21,189 (59,719 (79,767

Cash flows from financing activities attributable to continuing

operations:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 500,00( — — 500,00(
Principal payments on long-term debt (15,849 — — (15,849
Purchase of treasury stock (264,21,) — — (264,21.)
Dividends (79,189 — — (79,189
Issuance of common stock, net of withholding taxes (5,077) — — (5,077)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards 32,08: — 81C 32,89:
Purchase of noncontrolling interests — — (67,94°) (67,94°)
Funds transferred to escrow for Meetic tender offer — — (71,519 (71,519
Acquisition-related contingent consideration paytnen — (25€) — (25€)
Debt issuance costs (7,399 — — (7,399
Intercompany 216,35¢ (514,46:) 298,10! —
Other, net — (2,225 (2,567) (3,787)

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activitiegsttributable to

continuing operations 376,71 (515,94 156,89: 17,66¢

Total cash provided by (used in) continuing operatins 282,77t a7 66,10° 348,86t

Total cash used in discontinued operations (1,829 — (48) (1,877)

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatants — 17 3,461 3,47¢

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 280,94 — 69,52( 350,46

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 501,07 — 248,90:. 749,97

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 782020 % — 318,42. $  1,100,44
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Statement of cash flows for the year ended Decemb@gt, 2012:

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activitieattributable to

continuing operations

Cash flows from investing activities attributable b continuing
operations:

Acquisitions, net of cash acquired

Capital expenditures

Proceeds from maturities and sales of marketaliifes#urities
Purchases of marketable debt securities

Proceeds from sales of long-term investments dngsaess
Purchases of long-term investments

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitieattributable to
continuing operations

Cash flows from financing activities attributable t continuing
operations:

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Purchase of treasury stock

Dividends

Issuance of common stock, net of withholding taxes
Excess tax benefits from stock-based awards
Purchase of noncontrolling interests
Acquisition-related contingent consideration paytaen
Debt issuance costs

Intercompany

Other, net

Net cash (used in) provided by financing activitiesttributable to
continuing operations

Total cash (used in) provided by continuing operatins
Total cash (used in) provided by discontinued opetins
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatants
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivakent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period

Guarantor Non-Guarantor
IAC Subsidiaries Subsidiaries IAC Consolidated
(In thousands)

$ (116,35) $  453,69: $ 17,18¢  $ 354,52
(35,159 (331,18)) (33,919 (400,25.)
(3,969 (29,55() (17,68:) (51,20)
195,50: — — 195,50:
(53,952 — — (53,952
14,19« 272 15C 14,61¢
(27,18) (724) (8,189 (36,094
(351) (155) (9,41)) (9,929
89,07 (361,339 (69,04 (341,30
500,00 — — 500,00(
(691,83 — — (691,83()
(68,165) — — (68,165)
262,84: — — 262,84:
52,20¢ 4,89 — 57,10:
(1,93¢) == (2,955 (4,89))
— (10,782 — (10,782
(11,007 — — (11,007
(55,02() (86,44¢) 141,46t —
— — 244 244
(12,900 (92,339 138,75! 33,52(
(40,176 18 86,89¢ 46,74(
(3,979) — 49¢ (3,472
— (19) 2,57¢ 2,55¢
(44,14") — 89,97 45,82
545,22! — 158,93: 704,15:
$ 501,07" $ — 3 248,90; $ 749,97
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NOTE 21—QUARTERLY RESULTS (UNAUDITED)

Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
March 31 @ June 30@® September 307© December 31

(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2014

Revenue $ 740,24 $ 756,31 $ 782,23, $ 830,75¢
Cost of revenue 209,23: 210,73( 224,69 238,51
Operating income 71,71 95,69( 100,95: 110,37:
Earnings (loss) from continuing operations 34,30¢ (17,999 150,26: 67,98¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, h&o (814) (86¢) 175,73( 62t
Net earnings (loss) 33,49: (18,869) 325,99: 68,61
Net earnings (loss) attributable to IAC sharehader 35,88t (17,99¢) 326,81 70,172
Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:
Basic earnings (loss) per share from continuingatjmns® $ 044 $ 0.21) $ 1.81 $ 0.8:
Diluted earnings (loss) per share from continuipgrations®  $ 04z $ 0.21) $ 1.7¢ $ 0.7¢
Basic earnings (loss) per shéte $ 0.4 % (0.22) % 391 $ 0.84
Diluted earnings (loss) per shéfe $ 041 $ (0.22) % 3.6 $ 0.7¢
Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended Quarter Ended
March 31 @ June 30® September 307 December 319
(In thousands, except per share data)
Year Ended December 31, 2013
Revenue $ 742,24¢  $ 799,41. $ 756,87. $ 724,45!
Cost of revenue 257,47 273,93t 249,88t 222,42:
Operating income 84,55 106,69t 122,00: 112,95:
Earnings from continuing operations 52,70¢ 58,54( 91,72: 78,82¢
(Loss) earnings from discontinued operations, h&o (944) (1,06¢) 3,91« 24
Net earnings 51,76¢ 57,47: 95,63 78,85:
Net earnings attributable to IAC shareholders 53,631 58,29( 96,94( 76,917
Per share information attributable to IAC shareholders:
Basic earnings per share from continuing operations $ 0.6 $ 071 % 112 $ 0.9:
Diluted earnings per share from continuing openeti $ 0.6z $ 0.6 % 108 $ 0.8¢
Basic earnings per shdfe $ 0.6 $ 0.7¢C $ 117 % 0.9:
Diluted earnings per shafe $ 0.61 $ 0.67 $ 11 % 0.8¢
[€) During the fourth quarter of 2014, certain expengere reclassified between cost of revenue, sedlimdymarketing expense, general and administratigense and prodt

development expense. Accordingly, cost of revemasgnted above for periods prior to the fourth gmanf 2014 differs from the amounts reflectediea Company’s
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q for the first, setand third quarters of 2014 and 2013 and for dloeth quarter of 2013 reflected in the Companytsuahreport on Form
10-K.

(b) The second quarter of 2014 includes an aftether-than-temporary impairment charge of $&3l6on related to the write-down of a cost methindestment to fair
value.
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(c) (Loss) earnings from discontinued operatioms,of tax, in the third quarter of 2014 includes telease of tax reserves as a result of theatiqirof the statutes of
limitations for federal income taxes for the ye2091 through 2009.

(d) Quarterly per share amounts may not add to théetennual per share amount because of differéndke average common shares outstanding duriry mer@od
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements With Accotemts on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Not applicable.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of the Compg's Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig lia disclosure controls and procedures in ai@énprove their overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatiblesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Exchange BE management, including the Chairman and Senxaechktive and the Chief Financial
Officer, conducted an evaluation, as of the entthefperiod covered by this report, of the effectags of the Company's disclosure controls and
procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rule 13a}1Bésed on this evaluation, the Chairman and $&xecutive and the Chief Financial
Officer concluded that the Company's disclosurdrotsiand procedures were effective as of the ditldeoperiod covered by this report.

Management's Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for dstabl and maintaining adequate internal contr@rdinancial reporting (as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) for the Canyp The Company's internal control over financglorting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliabilitynafitial reporting and the preparation of finanstatements for external purposes in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted mlthmited States. Management assessed the effezsivef the Company's internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2014. In imgkhis assessment, our management used theafiteeffective internal control over
financial reporting described in "Internal Contrdirtegrated Framework" issued by the Committee @inSpring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission in 2013. Based on this assessment, raareag has determined that, as of December 31, #d£,ompany's internal control over
financial reporting is effective. The effectiveneg®ur internal control over financial reporting @ December 31, 2014 has been audited by
Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered pudticounting firm, as stated in their attestatiqrorg included herein.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig lia internal control over financial reportimgarder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatihiesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), IAC management, including the Ghaim and Senior Executive and the Chief Financifit@f also conducted an evaluation of
the Company's internal control over financial rejpgyrto determine whether any changes occurredhduhie quarter ended December 31, 2014
that have materially affected, or are reasonakblylito materially affect, the Company's internahtrol over financial reporting. Based on that
evaluation, there has be no such change duringuheer ended December 31, 2014.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of IACHAttiveCorp

We have audited IAC/InterActiveCorp's internal cohbver financial reporting as of December 31,£20dased on criteria established in
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued byGoenmittee of Sponsoring Organizations of the TwegdCommission (2013 framework) (the
COSO criteria). IAC/InterActiveCorp's managemeneisponsible for maintaining effective internal tohover financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal coantret financial reporting included in the accomgagyManagement's Report on Internal Control
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility isetqpress an opinion on the company's internal cbatrer financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statedof the Public Company Accounting Oversightr8d&nited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethettigéfénternal control over financial reporting
was maintained in all material respects. Our anditided obtaining an understanding of internaltagrover financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etnaduthhe design and operating effectiveness ofiralecontrol based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considezeelssary in the circumstances. We believe thadwdit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repagtis a process designed to provide reasonableassuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahstatements for external purposes in accordanttegenerally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal control over financial reportingludes those policies and procedures that (ftiipeto the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleetttiansactions and dispositions of the assetsatdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to pempiation of financial statements in accordanck getnerally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the compenpeing made only in accordance with authorizatimihmanagement and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurancediaggsrevention or timely detection of unauthorizedjuisition, use or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effetiie financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or detmisstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgect to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, IAC/InterActiveCorp maintained, afl material respects, effective internal contretéofinancial reporting as of
December 31, 2014, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stadsda the Public Company Accounting Oversight Blo@snited States), the consolidated
balance sheet of IAC/InterActiveCorp and subsiémids of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and thedelatesolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income, shareholders' equity andftash for each of the three years in the periodeghDecember 31, 2014 and our report dated
February 27, 2015 expressed an unqualified opitiiereon.

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP
New York, New York
February 27, 2015
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Iltem 9B. Other Information

Not applicable.

PART lll

The information required by Part 11l (Items 10, 12, 13 and 14) has been incorporated herein leyae€e to IAC's definitive Proxy
Statement to be used in connection with its 201B6uahMeeting of Stockholders (the "2015 Proxy Steget"), as set forth below in accordance
with General Instruction G(3) of Form 10-K.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corprate Governance

The information required by Items 401 and 405 ofiRation S-K relating to directors and executivioefs of IAC and their compliance
with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Act is set famtthe sections entitled "Information Concerninigegdtor Nominees" and "Information
Concerning IAC Executive Officers Who Are Not Dites" and "Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership RépgrCompliance,” respectively, in the
2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporated hereiet®rence. The information required by Item 40&efjulation S-K relating to IAC's Code of
Ethics is set forth under the caption "Part I-ItefBusiness-Description of IAC Businesses-Additiomérmation-Code of Ethics" of this annual
report and is incorporated herein by reference.ifftgmation required by subsections (c)(3), (dgad (d)(5) of Item 407 of Regulation S-K is
set forth in the sections entitled "Corporate Gogece" and "The Board and Board Committees” irR@s Proxy Statement and is incorporated
herein by reference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 402 of Regulati®K relating to executive and director compensaisaset forth in the sections entitled
"Executive Compensation" and "Director Compensdtiotthe 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporata@in by reference. The information
required by subsections (e)(4) and (e)(5) of It&n df Regulation S-K relating to certain compersatommittee matters is set forth in the
sections entitled "The Board and Board Committe&gmpensation Committee Report" and "Compensa&@iommittee Interlocks and Insider
Participation" in the 2015 Proxy Statement anah@®iporated herein by reference; provided, thatrtfiemation set forth in the section entitled
"Compensation Committee Report" shall be deematdhed herein and shall not be deemed incorpotatedference into any filing under the
Securities Act or the Exchange Act.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder M#trs

The information regarding ownership of IAC commadock and Class B common stock required by Itemaf@Begulation S-K and
securities authorized for issuance under IAC'souErequity compensation plans required by ltem@0df( Regulation S-K is set forth in the
sections entitled "Security Ownership of Certaim&éial Owners and Management" and "Equity Comptos Plan Information," respectively,
in the 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorporatedihday reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

Information regarding certain relationships anated transactions involving IAC required by Item#4 Regulation S-K and director
independence required by Item 407(a) of Regulaidhis set forth in the sections entitled "CertRiglationships and Related Person
Transactions" and "Corporate Governance," respagtiin the 2015 Proxy Statement and is incorparatrein by reference.
Iltem 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

Information required by Item 9(e) of Schedule 148arding the fees and services of IAC's indepen@gistered public accounting firm
and the pre-approval policies and procedures agipkdo services provided to IAC by such firm isfeeth in the sections entitled "Fees Paid to

Our Independent Registered Public Accounting Fiamd "Audit and Non-Audit Services Pre-Approval Byli respectively, in the 2015 Proxy
Statement and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART IV

Iltem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedes

(a) List of documentsfiled as part of this Report:

(1) Consolidated Financial Statements of IAC
Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfimgn: Ernst & Young LLP.
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 94 2013.
Consolidated Statement of Operations for the YEaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Incom#hélears Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders' Equityhieryears Ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(2) Consolidated Financial Statement Schedule oAC

Schedule
Number

Il Valuation and Qualifying Accounts.

All other financial statements and schedules stédl have been omitted since the required infoomasi either included in the Consolidated
Financial Statements or the notes thereto, is pliGable or is not required.
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(3) Exhibits

The documents set forth below, numbered in accaeaiith Item 601 of Regulation S-K, are filed heitbwincorporated herein by
reference to the location indicated or furnisheckivith.

Exhibit
No. Description Location

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Registration Staetron
IAC/InterActiveCorp. Form 8-A/A, filed on August 12, 2005.

3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Restated Certiicatt Incorporation Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant's Current Report omfr 8-K,
of IAC/InterActiveCorp. filed on August 22, 2008.

3.2 Amended and Restated By-laws of IAC/InterActiveCfmgstated as Exhibit 3.1(ii) to the Registrant's Current Repamt
of December 1, 2010). Form 8-K, filed on December 6, 2010.

4.1 Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes due 2022, datexf Becember 21 Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Annual Report omnrd.0K
2012, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guarantors edrtherein and for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.
Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.

4.2 Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes @22 2dated as of Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Registration Staehon
April 11, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Gaators named Form S-4, filed on May 3, 2013.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.2 Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes @22 2dated as of Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant's Registration Staehon
May 30, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guaoas named  Form S-4, as amended, filed on June 5, 2013.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.4 Indenture for 4.875% Senior Notes due 2018, dateaf Alovember  Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Registration Staehon
15, 2013, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guaranttamed therein Form S-4, filed on December 13, 2013.
and Computershare Trust Company, N.A., as Trustee.

4.5 Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes @22 2dated as of Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfamm
March 12, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Gudors named 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2014.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.€  Supplemental Indenture for 4.875% Senior Notes2id3, dated as Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfamm
of March 12, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, thaggantors 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31, 2014.
named therein and Computershare Trust Company, BsAlrustee.

4.7 Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes @22 2dated as of Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfamm
May 1, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, Match GroupC as 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014.
Guarantor and Computershare Trust Company, N.Alrastee.

4.&  Supplemental Indenture for 4.875% Senior Notes2flie8, dated as Exhibit 4.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfamm
of May 1, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, Matcha@p, LLC as 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014.
Guarantor and Computershare Trust Company, N.Alrastee.

4. Supplemental Indenture for 4.75% Senior Notes @22 2dated as of Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfamm
May 15, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the Guaoas named  10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.1C Supplemental Indenture for 4.875% Senior Notes2ie8, dated as Exhibit 4.4 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporfanm
of May 15, 2014, among IAC/InterActiveCorp, the @Grators named 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2014.
therein and Computershare Trust Company, N.A. rastée.

4.11 In accordance with Iltem 601(b)(4)(iii)(A) of Regtitm S-K, certain
instruments relating to long-term obligations of Registrant have
been omitted but will be furnished to the Commissipon request.

10.1 Amended and Restated Governance Agreement, datdddagust 9, Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report o
2005, by and between the Registrant and Barry Dille Form 10Q) for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, z
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10.z

10.:

10.¢

10.t

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.1(

10.11

10.1z

10.1:

10.1¢

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 1, 201@nidyamong the
Registrant, Liberty Media Corporation, Liberty U$#ldings, LLC
and Barry Diller.

Letter Agreement, dated as of December 1, 201@nblybetween the

Registrant and Barry Diller.

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of August 20, 200&nd among
the Registrant, Ticketmaster, Interval Leisure @rdac., HSN, Inc.
and Tree.com, Inc.

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual IncentRkn.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options urtber
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual IncentRkn.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted StockdJunder the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2013 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1)

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options uriber
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual IncentRkn.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Restricted StockdJunder the
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2008 Stock and Annual IncentRian.(1)

IAC/InterActiveCorp 2005 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1)

Form of Terms and Conditions of Stock Options uriber
IAC/InterActiveCorp 2005 Stock and Annual Incent®ian.(1)

Summary of Non-Employee Director Compensation Ageanents.
)

2011 IAC/InterActiveCorp Deferred Compensation HianNon-
Employee Directors.(1)
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Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-
K, filed on December 6, 2010.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current ReporfFomm 8-
K, filed on December 6, 2010.

Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Current Reporfomm 8-
K, filed on August 22, 2008.

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Reporform
10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 30, 2013.

Exhibit 10.6 to the Registrant's Annual Report onnft 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report annf- 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Annex F to the Registrant's Definitive Proxy Statein
filed on July 10, 2008.

Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report annf- 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.

Exhibit 10.7 to the Registrant's Annual Report annf- 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012.

Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Annual Report onnft 10-
K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2008.
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaort o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 30&0
Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 3020

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaort o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,120
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10.1t  Stock Option Agreement between the Registrant ardyBDiller, Exhibit 10.8 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report o
dated as of June 7, 2005.(1) Form 10Q for the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2
10.1¢  Match.com, Inc. Equity Program.(1) Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaort o
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 309200
10.17 Second Amended and Restated Employment Agreemamt&e Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Report o
Victor A. Kaufman and the Registrant, dated as aféh 15, 2012.(1 Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,20
10.1¢ Employment Agreement between Jeffrey W. Kip andRbegistrant, Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repart o
dated as of March 20, 2012.(1) Form 10-Q for the fiscal year ended March 31, 2012.
10.1¢ Employment Agreement between Gregg Winiarski aedRBagistrant Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaort o
dated as of February 26, 2010.(1) Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended March 31,0
10.2C Google Services Agreement, dated as of Januar@QB, between the Exhibit 10.25 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
Registrant and Google Inc. Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 30820
10.21  Amendment No. 4 to Google Services Agreement, daseaf April 1, Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Quarterly Repaort o
2011, between the Registrant and Google Inc. Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended June 301201
10.2: Credit Agreement, dated as of December 21, 2012ngm Exhibit 10.20 to the Registrant's Annual Report on
IAC/InterActiveCorp, as Borrower, the Lenders pattgreto, Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31220
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as Administrative Agant] the other
parties thereto.
21.1 Subsidiaries of the Registrant as of December 314 22)
23.1 Consent of Ernst & Young LLP.(2)
31.1 Certification of the Chairman and Senior Execupuesuant to
Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the Securities ErgleaAct of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarb@rkes- Act of
2002.(2)
31.z Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo Rule 13&t4(a)
or 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@®4adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002.(2)
32.1 Certification of the Chairman and Senior Execupuesuant to 18
U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Se@fiérof the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.(3)
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursudo 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 96&dBarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.(3)
101.INS  XBRL Instance
101.SCt XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels
101.PRI XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation
(8] Reflects management contracts and management eaadodicompensatory pla

(2) Filed herewitt

3) Furnished herewit
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1éf(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Resyisthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredaltyp authorized.

February 27, 2015 IAC/INTERACTIVECORP
By: /s/ JEFFREY W. KIP
Jeffrey W. Kip
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bblptihe following persons on behalf of
the Registrant and in the capacities indicatedebriary 27, 2015 :

Signature Title
/s BARRY DILLER Chairman of the Board, Senior Executive and Dinecto
Barry Diller

Vice Chairman and Director

Victor A. Kaufman

/s/ JEFFREY W. KIP Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Office
Jeffrey W. Kip

/s/ MICHAEL H. SCHWERDTMAN Senior Vice President and Controller (Chief AccanmOfficer)
Michael H. Schwerdtman

/sl EDGAR BRONFMAN, JR. Director
Edgar Bronfman, Jr.

/s/ CHELSEA CLINTON Director
Chelsea Clinton

/s/ SONALI DE RYCKER Director
Sonali De Rycker

/s MICHAEL D. EISNER Director
Michael D. Eisner

/sl BONNIE HAMMER Director
Bonnie Hammer

/sl BRYAN LOURD Director
Bryan Lourd

/s DAVID S. ROSENBLATT Director
David S. Rosenblatt

/s/ ALAN G. SPOON Director
Alan. G. Spoon
/s ALEXANDER VON FURSTENBERG Director

Alexander von Furstenberg



/s/ RICHARD F. ZANNINO Director

Richard F. Zannino
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Schedule II
IAC/INTERACTIVECORP AND SUBSIDIARIES
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
Balance at
Beginning Charges to Charges to Balance at
Description of Period Earnings Other Accounts Deductions End of Period
(In thousands)

2014

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 854( $ 1522t @ § (116) $ (11,219 @ % 12,437
Sales returns accrual 1,20¢ 19,74 — (19,839 1,11¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance 62,35: 34,13: @ 1,86¢ ®@ — 98,35(
Other reserves 2,51¢ 2,20¢
2013

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 8,77t $ 1227t W § 564 $ (13,079 @ ¢ 8,54(
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret 2,31: 164 © 45 (2,527 © —
Sales returns accrual 1,24¢ 19,17¢ — (19,219 1,20¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance 60,78 8,86¢ ™ (7,292 ®© — 62,35:
Other reserves 1,92¢ 2,51¢
2012

Allowance for doubtful accounts and revenue

reserves $ 7,30¢ $ 12237 @ 654 $ (11,42H @ $ 8,77¢
Magazine publishing allowance for newsstand ret — 10,42¢ © 33 (8,14¢) © 2,31:
Sales returns accrual 1,02( 17,72¢ — (17,509 1,24¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance 45,08« 9,32( ©® 6,37¢ © — 60,78:
Other reserves 2,11¢ 1,92¢

@ Additions to the allowance for doubtful accounts eharged to expense. Additions to the revenuevesare charged against reve

@ Amount is primarily related to other-than-temporamnpairment charges for certain cost method inveatmand an increase in federal net
operating losses, foreign tax credits, and stateredits.

® Amount is primarily related to unbenefited unreadizosses on available-fsale marketable equity securities included in aadatad othe
comprehensive income.

@ Write-off of fully reserved accounts receival
® Additions to the magazine publishing allowancerfewsstand returns are related to magazine puldjstiiNewsweek and are charged
against revenue. The Newsweek print business waasitioned to a digital only publication in DecemB612 (and was subsequently sold

in August 2013).

® Amount represents returns of magazines at NewswiéekNewsweek print business was transitioneddigigal only publication in
December 2012 (and was subsequently sold in ARDL]).

™ Amount is primarily related to foreign and fedemat operating losses, partially offset by a de@@asleferred tax assets for investments in
subsidiaries and available-for-sale securities.

® Amount is primary related to the release of a #maallowance on unrealized gains on availablesfae securities included in
accumulated other comprehensive income.
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© Amount is primarily related to an unbenefited ottfean-temporary impairment charge related to a-Hengn marketable equity security, an
increase in deferred tax assets for investmerdshsidiaries and an increase in federal net operédsses.
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Entity

IAC/InterActiveCorp Subsidiaries
As of December 31, 2014

Exhibit 21.1

Jurisdiction of Formation

8831-8833 Sunset, LLC

About Information Technology (Beijing) Co., Ltd.

About International

About, Inc.

Amsel, LLC

Apalon Apps LLC

APN, LLC

Aqua Acquisition Holdings LLC
Ask Applications, Inc.

Ask.fm Europe

Buzz Technologies, Inc.
Cameo Acquisition, LLC

CH Pacific, LLC

CityGrid Media, LLC
CollegeHumor Press LLC
Comedy News Ventures, Inc.
Connect, LLC

Connected Ventures, LLC
ConsumerSearch, Inc.
CraftJack Inc.

CV Acquisition Corp.

Daily Burn, Inc.
DatingDirect.com Limited
Delightful.com, LLC

Diamant Production Services, LLC
Diamond Dogs, LLC
Dictionary.com, LLC

ECS Sports Fulfillment LLC
Electus Productions, LLC
Electus, LLC

Elicia Acquisition Corp.

ES1 Productions, LLC

ES2 Productions, LLC
Failure to Appear Productions, LLC
Falcon Holdings Il, LLC

FC & Co

Felix Calls, LLC

Five Star Matchmaking Information Technology (Bijj Co., Ltd.

Format First, LLC
FriendScout24 GmbH
GetAFive, Inc.

Good Hang, LLC
Hatch Labs, Inc.

High Line Venture Partners Follow On Fund GP, LLC
High Line Venture Partners Follow On Fund, L.P.
High Line Venture Partners GP IlI, LLC

Delaware

People’s Republic of China

Cayman Islands
Delaware
Delaware

Republic of Belarus
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

Ireland

Washington

Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Maryland
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

lllinois
Delaware
Delaware

United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware

France
Delaware

People’s Republic of China

Delaware
Germany
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware






Entity Jurisdiction of Formation

High Line Venture Partners GP IlI, LLC Delaware
High Line Venture Partners GP, LLC Delaware
High Line Venture Partners Il, L.P. Delaware
High Line Venture Partners I, L.P. Delaware
High Line Venture Partners, L.P. Delaware
Higher Edge Marketing Services, Inc. California
Home Industry Leadership Board Colorado
HomeAdvisor B.V. Netherlands
HomeAdvisor, Inc. Delaware
HowAboutWe, LLC Delaware
HSN Capital LLC Delaware
HSN Home Shopping Network GmbH Germany
HSN, LLC Delaware
HTRF Ventures, LLC Delaware
Humor Rainbow, Inc. New York
IAC 19" St. Holdings, LLC Delaware
IAC Falcon Holdings, LLC Delaware
IAC Family Foundation, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search & Media (Canada) Inc. Canada
IAC Search & Media B.V. Netherlands
IAC Search & Media Brands Computer Technology Ctul, People’s Republic of China
IAC Search & Media Brands, Inc. California
IAC Search & Media Deutschland GmbH Germany
IAC Search & Media Europe Limited Ireland
IAC Search & Media Finance Co. Cayman Islands
IAC Search & Media Hong Kong, Limited Hong Kong
IAC Search & Media International, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search & Media Massachusetts, Inc. Massachusetts
IAC Search & Media Technologies Limited Ireland
IAC Search & Media UK Limited United Kingdom
IAC Search & Media Washington, LLC Washington
IAC Search & Media, Inc. Delaware
IAC Search Europe B.V. Netherlands
IAC Search, LLC Delaware
IAC Shopping International, Inc. Delaware
IAC/Expedia Global, LLC Delaware
IACF Developments LLC Delaware
ImproveNet, Inc. Delaware
Insider Pages, Inc. Delaware
InstantAction, LLC Delaware
InterActiveCorp Films, Inc. Delaware
InterActiveCorp Films, LLC Delaware
InterCaptiveCorp, Ltd. Bermuda
Internet Shopping Network LLC Delaware
Investopedia Canada, Inc. Canada
Investopedia LLC Delaware
iWon Points LLC New York
La Centrale des Marchés Privés S.ar.l. France
Life123, Inc. Delaware
Lucky Morning Productions, LLC Delaware
M8 Singlesnet LLC Delaware

Maker Shack, LLC California



Mash Dating, LLC Delaware




Entity

Jurisdiction of Formation

Massive Media Europe NV
Massive Media Limited

Massive Media Match NV

Match Group, LLC

Match ProfilePro, LLC

Match.com Canada Ltd.
Match.com Europe Limited
Match.com Events LLC

Match.com France Limited
Match.com Global Investments SARL
Match.com Global Services Limited
Match.com HK Limited

Match.com International Holdings, Inc.

Match.com International Limited
Match.com Investments, Inc.
Match.com Japan KK

Match.com Japan Networks GK
Match.com LatAm Limited
Match.com Nordic AB

Match.com Offshore Holdings, Ltd
Match.com Pegasus Limited
Match.com, Inc.

Match.com, L.L.C.

Matchcom Mexico, S. de R.L., de C.V.

Matvin, LLC

Meetic Espana, SLU

Meetic Italia SRL

Meetic Netherlands BV
Meetic SAS

Mhelpdesk, Inc.

Mile High Insights, LLC
Mindspark Interactive Network, Inc.
MM LatAm, LLC

Mojo Acquisition Corp.
Neu.de GmbH

Newsweek Philippines Inc.
Nexus Limited

Nice Little Day, LLC
Notional, LLC

NRelate LLC

Parperfeito Comunicacao SA
People Media, Inc.

People Media, LLC

Picnic, LLC

Pricerunner Denmark ApS
Pricerunner International AB
Pricerunner SAS
Pricerunner Sweden AB
Pricerunner, Ltd.

Pronto, LLC

Rebel Entertainment, Inc.
Riviere Productions

Belgium
United Kingdom
Belgium
Delaware
Delaware
Canada
United Kingdom
Delaware
France
Luxembourg
United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Delaware
United Kingdom
Cayman Island
Japan
Japan
United Kingdom
Sweden
Mauritius
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Mexico
Delaware
Spain
Italy
Netherlands
France
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Germany
Philippines
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Brazil
Delaware
Arizona
Delaware
Denmark
Sweden
France
Sweden
United Kingdom
Delaware
Delaware
California



Search Floor, Inc. California




Entity

Jurisdiction of Formation

ServiceMagic Canada Inc.
ServiceMagic Europe S.ar.l.
ServiceMagic GmbH

ServiceMagic International S.ar.l.

ServiceMagic IP Ireland Limited
ServiceMagic Limited

Shanghai Huike Network Technology Co., Ltd.

Shoebuy.com, Inc.

Shoptouch, Inc.

SIA “Ask.fm”

Slimware Utilities Holdings, Inc.
Soulmates Limited

Soulmates Technology Pty Ltd.
SpeedDate.com, LLC

Stage Four, LLC

Starnet Interactive Ltd.

Starnet Interactive, Inc.
Styleclick Chicago, Inc.
Styleclick, Inc.

Styleclick.com Enterprises Inc.
Targeted Media Solutions LLC
TDB Holdings, Inc.

The Daily Beast Company LLC
The IAC Foundation, Inc.
Tinder, Inc.

TMC Realty, L.L.C.

TPR Education Canada, ULC
TPR Education Holdings, Inc.

TPR Education IP Holdings, LLC
TPR Education Offshore Holdings LLC

TPR Education Worldwide, LLC
TPR Education, LLC
Tutor.com, Inc.

USA Electronic Commerce Solutions LLC

USA Video Distribution LLC
USANi LLC

USANi Sub LLC

Vimeo, LLC

Wanderspot LLC

Werkspot BV

Canada
Luxembourg
Germany
Luxembourg
Ireland
United Kingdom
People’s Republic of China
Delaware
Delaware
Latvia
Delaware
New Zealand
New South Wales Australia
Delaware
Delaware
Israel
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
California
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Nova Scotia
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Delaware
Washington
Netherlands



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference ifaellewing registration statements (and any amenmdmthereto) of IAC/InterActiveCorp
of our reports dated February 27, 2015, with reseethe consolidated financial statements andddeeof IAC/InterActiveCorp, and the
effectiveness of internal control over financighogting of IAC/InterActiveCorp, included in this Anal Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended
December 31, 2014.

COMMISSION FILE NO.:
Form S-8, No. 333-127410

New York, New York
February 27, 2015

Form S-8, No.
Form S-4, No.
Form S-8, No.
Form S-8, No.
Form S-8, No.
Form S-8, No.

333-127411
333-124303
333-146940
333-154875
333-174538
333-192186

/sl ERNST & YOUNG LLP



Exhibit 31.1

Certification

I, Barry Diller, certify that:

Dated:

I have reviewed this report on FormHK@er the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 &,

Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact orténgtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamig other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifie periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))3(nd internal control over financial reportirg @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd aave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being pregah

b) Designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataore with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralisslosure controls and procedures and presenteutsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure controtsprocedures, as of the end of the period covsrékis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisttal quarter in the case of an annual repo& fas materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan

The registrant's other certifying officer(sgdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@huaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thatamnmittee of the registrant's board of directanspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the regig's ability to record, process, summarize a&pait financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmtfiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

February 27, 2015 /sl BARRY DILLER

Barry Diller
Chairman and Senior Executive




Exhibit 31.2

Certification

I, Jeffrey W. Kip, certify that:

Dated:

I have reviewed this report on FormHK@er the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 &;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notadomny untrue statement of a material fact ort@ngtate a material fact necessary to
make the statements made, in light of the circuntstsunder which such statements were made, nietadisg with respect to the peri
covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamid other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operstand cash flows of the registrant as of, angtifi@ periods presented in this report;

The registrant's other certifying officer(spdrare responsible for establishing and maintgimiisclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15@))3(nd internal control over financial reportirag @efined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd aave:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidh&ibsidiaries, is made knowr
us by others within those entities, particularlyidg the period in which this report is being preggh

b) Designed such internal control over finanogdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaia reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in atanre with generally accepted accounting principles

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registralisslosure controls and procedures and presentisi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contntsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousréhis report based on such
evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change in thestegit's internal control over financial reportthgt occurred during the registrant's
most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant's fofisital quarter in the case of an annual repody tias materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the regasit's internal control over financial reportingdan

The registrant's other certifying officer(sgdrhave disclosed, based on our most recent el@tuaf internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetauminmittee of the registrant's board of direct@nrspersons performing the equivalent
functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weakgees in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which
are reasonably likely to adversely affect the tegig's ability to record, process, summarize a&mwrt financial information; ar

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a sigmiifiole in the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting.

February 27, 2015 /sl JEFFREY W. KIP

Jeffrey W. Kip
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Barry Diller, certify, pursuant to Section 906tbe Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Secti®®0, that, to my knowledge:

(8] the Annual Report on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 @/lIAterActiveCorp (the "Report") which this statemt
accompanies fully complies with the requirementSe€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafgeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780

(d)); and
2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of
IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Dated: February 27, 2015 /sl BARRY DILLER
Barry Diller

Chairman and Senior Executive



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Jeffrey W. Kip, certify, pursuant to Section 986the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. 8ecti350, that, to my knowledge:

(8] the Annual Report on Form XOfor the fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 &@/lIAterActiveCorp (the "Report") which this statemt
accompanies fully complies with the requirementSe€tion 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchafgeof 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780

(d)); and
2) the information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of operations of
IAC/InterActiveCorp.
Dated: February 27, 2015 /sl JEFFREY W. KIP
Jeffrey W. Kip

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer



